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Directors’ Report

EEEHRE

The board of directors (the “Board”) of REXLot Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) submit herewith their report together with the audited
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (together the
"Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2016.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. Its
subsidiaries and joint ventures are principally engaged in lottery
system and games development business and distribution and
marketing of lottery products in China.

JOINT VENTURES AND SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the Company’s joint ventures and principal subsidiaries
are set out in notes 19 and 46 to the consolidated financial
statements respectively.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2016 and
the state of the Group’s affairs as at that date are set out in the
financial statements on pages 71 to 203.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group (including
the Disposal Group as defined in note 14 to the consolidated
financial statements) were additions of HK$25,683,000 (2015:
HK$59,294,000) to property, plant and equipment for the Group’s
operations. Details of movements in property, plant and equipment
during the year are set out in note 15 to the consolidated financial
statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Distributable reserves of the Company at 31 December 2016,
calculated under Part 6 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
(Cap. 622), amounted to HK$355,955,000 (2015: HK$759,451,000).
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the bye-laws
of the Company (the “Bye-laws”) or the laws in Bermuda, which
would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to

existing shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”).

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
A summary of the consolidated results and of the assets and liabilities
of the Group for the last five financial years is set out on page 204.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME
Particulars of the retirement benefits scheme of the Group are set out
in note 37 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE OPTIONS

On 28 June 2012, the Company adopted a share option scheme (the
“2012 Scheme”) which, unless otherwise terminated, will remain valid
and effective for a period of 10 years from 28 June 2012.

The purpose of the 2012 Scheme is to enable the Company to grant
options to eligible participants as incentives and/or rewards for their
contribution to, and continuing efforts to promote the interests of,
the Group.

According to the 2012 Scheme, the Board may grant options to the
eligible participants as defined in the 2012 Scheme to subscribe for
such number of shares as the Board may determine. Options granted
should be accepted within 30 days from the date of the letter of
grant. Upon acceptance of the options, the grantee shall pay HK$1.00
to the Company by way of consideration for the grant. Subject to the
terms of the 2012 Scheme and all applicable laws, the Board has the
power to determine the period within which payments or calls must
or may be made.

The exercise price of options shall be determined by the Board, which
shall be at least the highest of (i) the closing price of the shares as
stated in the daily quotations sheet of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on the date of the grant, which
must be a business day; (i) the average closing price of the shares as
stated in the daily quotations sheets of the Stock Exchange for the
five business days immediately preceding the date of the grant; and
(i) the nominal value of a share.

Directors’ Report (continued)

EEEeHE (&)

BEREE

KRR ZARME (TRRIMA]) sk B REEGIL &
EBANRBRLFIABEARARARRT (TRFE]) %
B 2 BARBEREE -

EEHERE
AEBRBETEVREEZGAEEREERERE
BEHNE2048 -

BB E
AEBERRBENFBZFEHNEEMBERERME
37 -

B

RZT——FRXAZ+NB AARRN—IFERE
AE([Z2E—=F518)) BRIESTERILE BAAZ
E-——FERAZHN\BRATERFEEARER-

—E-—FHIBERARFARAERZHEALE
HBRE (FANSHAREMEL 2ERM R AR
AEBENBHAELZTHEE N 2 BB R, HE R -

RE-_FT-——F53 EFEAR_FT—_FalM
REZABRZEBATRLBRE UABEESH
#E%EZ&T°&EZ$&F%Q&&M#E%E
FT30E MR A - B RS %&Aﬁﬁ$”ﬁ§
M1.008TTIERERBREZRE R - — %5t
JZ%%&%EQ%&@%%@ §$Aﬁ%§Eb
RS AT R VR A SR ECR AN B2 HAR -

BREZTEEREESEE AZPARTIZER
EONEHASR (LEAREER)BEEMERIMA

AEHF%W\%J%!E¥Wﬁiﬁwﬂxﬁ2W&mF'
(IMEEZRHEHEEEZABIAEABESR
PR D 2 FHA W E : ik 2EE-

Annual Report 2016 —Z—/"FF5

5



Directors’ Report (continued)

EEEeHE (&)

The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon the
exercise of all options to be granted under the 2012 Scheme and any
other share option scheme(s) of the Company must not exceed 10%
of the issued share capital of the Company on the date of approval
and adoption of the 2012 Scheme provided that the Company
may at any time seek approval from its shareholders to refresh the
limit to 10% of the shares in issue as at the date of approval by
the Shareholders in general meeting where such limit is refreshed.
Options previously granted under any share option schemes of
the Company (including those outstanding, cancelled, lapsed in
accordance with such schemes or exercised options) will not be

counted for the purpose of calculating the limit as refreshed.

The total number of shares issued and which may fall to be issued
upon exercise of the options granted under the 2012 Scheme and any
other share option scheme(s) of the Company (including exercised,
cancelled and outstanding options) to each eligible participant
in any 12-month period up to and including the date of grant
shall not exceed 1% of the shares in issue as at the date of grant
unless such grant has been duly approved by ordinary resolution
of the shareholders of the Company in general meeting at which
the relevant eligible participant and his associates abstained from
voting. Options granted to substantial shareholders or independent
non-executive directors or any of their respective associates in
any 12-month period in excess of 0.1% of the Company’s issued
share capital on the date of grant or with a value in excess of
HK$5,000,000 must be approved in advance by the Company's
shareholders.

The period during which an option may be exercised will be
determined by the Board at its absolute discretion, save that no
options can be exercised more than 10 years after it has been
granted. There is no general requirement that an option must be held
for any minimum period before it can be exercised. The 2012 Scheme
will expire on 28 June 2022.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, 355,000,000 share
options were granted under the 2012 Scheme. The closing price of
the ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each in the Company (the “Share(s)")
on 28 September 2016, being the trading date immediately before
the date of offer to grant of such options was HK$0.1020.

REXLot Holdings Limited fJZe-R #1ZR B R AR

RITERE-_F——F 3 RARTEAE bR
BBz EBREM A BT 2RO LR TEE
BHRHARKK -_Z-—_FHIERLARFEHTR
R2Z10% MR B A BERER R R AR EREH
EERBRENERZ LR ZBRARG L eENE
ELREBZEETRHZ10% FAHEEMETZ L
PR - S5 BTAR 4% R X BEAA BB R 51 8 IR H 2 BB A i
(BEBEBEZSHEERTE CDEH BRRHET
EzBRE)BTEFEER-

REEREBERHBREARNETM2EAR BT
ERE T~ Fat 8 R AR B MEM E 88 AT
AREzBRE (BREETR EETHERHARITEZ
BRE)MEBTRAIRAZETTELAERLEA
ITZEOAE TEEARHBEES A ZEHITR
MZ21% BRIFFERLEERBRRAS LEARAK
RUEBRAREASAE (HESERZ2BALRE
BEAARG LRERE)  AMERIR - R ER12
BEABERETERRRBIFFATERFARSZAZ
FABEARLBAALNRNK L BMHERTRAZ
0.1% 3L f& {E 7 415,000,000 7T 2 & M 12 - A 78 5t 4%
RATRRALE -

BRETEHCSHEZS2RDBETE BREEBK
B H AR 105 1R N AT 7T 68 B8 A o AKX B 3 R
TEAVEAREEREZREHRZ —KRRAE-—F
— BN T ZF A=t N \BER-

RBE-_ZET—-—XR"NE+_A=+—-—BILFE"
355,000,000/ R ERIRIE —T — —F5rEIE L -
RZE—RNFAA-F+N\B(AEERHERESZY
AEAIZR5H) ARG EREE.0E T LB
B (M |) 2 W& A0.10207 7T °



The fair value of options granted during the year was determined by
using the Black-Scholes Option Pricing Model. The value of options
was based on generally accepted valuation procedures and practices
that rely extensively on the use of various subjective assumptions and
the consideration of many uncertainties. The key assumptions used in
the valuation of the options granted were as follows:
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Share options granted
during the year
FRERHBERE

Date of grant i A

BB TE M 0B
LR P %

Expected volatility of share price
Risk free rate of interest
Expected option life (in year)
TEEI R B %
NAE

Expected dividend yield
Fair value

The expected volatility is based on the historical volatility of the
Company’s share price over the previous year.

During the year, options in relation to 122,000,000 Shares has lapsed.
As at the date of this report, the total number of Shares available for
issue upon exercise of the options outstanding under 2012 scheme
was 310,000,000 Shares (representing 3.09% of the Shares in issue
as at the date of this report).

At the special general meeting of the Company held on 31 October
2016, an ordinary resolution was passed refreshing the scheme
mandate limit so that the Company would be allowed to grant
options under the 2012 Scheme for subscription of up to a total of
1,001,849,533 Shares, representing 10% of the issued share capital
of the Company as at 31 October 2016.

The overall limit on the number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised
under the 2012 Scheme and any other share option schemes for
the time being of the Company shall not, in aggregate, exceed such
number of shares as equals 30% of the shares in issue from time to
time.
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29 September 2016
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Directors’ Report (continued)
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The following table discloses details of the movements in the share TREBEREBEZE-_T—RFT_A=Z=1T—HLEFER
options granted under the 2012 Scheme during the year ended 31 BT —FHEARBECEREZHTE-
December 2016.

Number of share options

BREHE
Weighted
average closing
share price
At Granted Exercised Lapsed At Exercise immediately
1 January during during during 31 December  Date of  price per  Exercisable before
Category of participant 2016 the year the year the year 2016 grant share  period exercise date
b330k
RZB-R% BHARG
RZB-R% +=A R nELH
SEALER -A-H FREY ERTE EREA =t-8 REBH ke &S BmE
HKS HKS
BT BT
Directors/substantial shareholder
EE/IERR
Chan How Chung, Victor - 5,000,000 - - 5,000,000 29/09/2016  0.1082  29/09/2016 - N/A
= 28/09/2018 TEm
Boo Chun Lon - 5,000,000 - - 5,000,000 29/09/2016  0.1082  29/09/2016 - N/A
Rk 28/09/2018 TER
Yuen Wai Ho - 5,000,000 - - 5,000,000 29/09/2016  0.1082  29/09/2016 - N/A
s 28/09/2018 TEm
Chow Siu Ngor - 5,000,000 - - 5,000,000 29/09/2016  0.1082  29/09/2016 - N/A
oNE 28/09/2018 TEm
Lee Ka Lun - 5,000,000 - - 5,000,000 29/09/2016  0.1082  29/09/2016 - N/A
FEH 28/09/2018 THA
Employees 2,000,000 . - (2,000,000) - 07/01/2014  1.0900 13/01/2014 - N/A
1] 06/01/2016 TER
120,000,000 - - (120,000,000) - 27/06/2014  0.9100  15/07/2014 - N/A
26/06/2016 TER
- 330,000,000  (45,000,000) - 285,000,000  29/09/2016  0.1082 29/09/2016 - 0.1311
28/09/2018
Total
@t 122,000,000 355,000,000  (45,000,000) (122,000,000) 310,000,000

REXLot Holdings Limited fJZe-R #1ZR B R AR



DIRECTORS
The directors of the Company (the “Director(s)”) during the financial
year and up to the date of this report were:

Executive Directors
Chan How Chung, Victor
Boo Chun Lon

Independent Non-executive Directors
Yuen Wai Ho

Chow Siu Ngor

Lee Ka Lun

In accordance with bye-law 99 of the Bye-laws, Mr. Boo Chun Lon
and Mr. Chow Siu Ngor shall respectively retire and are eligible for
re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting. Mr. Boo and
Mr. Chow offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting.

CHANGES IN THE INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS

Pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of The Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities of the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”), the changes in
information of Directors of the Company required to be disclosed are
set out below:

1. Mr. Lee Ka Lun, an independent non-executive Director, was
appointed as an independent non-executive director of Ever
Harvest Group Holdings Limited, a company listed on the main
board of the Stock Exchange, with effect from 6 July 2016.

2. Mr. Chan How Chung, Victor, an executive Director, was entitled
to an emolument of HK$504,700 per month plus allowance and
discretionary bonus with effect from 1 March 2016.

Details of the updated biographical details of Directors and senior
management are set out on pages 38 to 39 of this report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No Director proposed for re-election and re-appointment at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has an unexpired service
contract, which is not determinable by the Company or any of its
subsidiaries within one year without payment of compensation, other
than normal statutory compensation.

Directors’ Report (continued)

EEEeHE (&)

BEE
RAFBREERBEAREAY ARARZEX([E
=W

BITES
BREH
N3

WY KRTEE
Fise
;2

RIBFAFRAAEG Mk AEERB NERESD
IREEERRAFAE LERERE ERTAERBERE
BE-BEERPEERERERERRBFRE LE
gL

EZERNEH
BB RAES EmRA (T EmAER])%$13.51B(1)
G AABIABRBCESEREHHINWT

. BUNNTESFTRBALRZEIR/KERHE
BERERAR (BMRXAERLETRAF) ZBIIE
HITEE BT RNFLARBEER-

2. HTEERFREEZEMESE A504,7008 T
SRR EBIBIRA - 8 —FT—R"F=ZA—Hi
AR

EHEEHES NS REREASBEHBIHNAR
E 382 H39H -

ES2BREBEEN

RBREERRBFAS LERNERE 2 EEHMERA
RAEHEAEANE AR LN EE (—BREE
BERIATER—FAKIEZ RERRBEEL -

Annual Report 2016 —Z—/"FF5H

9



10

Directors’ Report (continued)
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DIRECTORS" MATERIAL INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

(i)

On 4 January 2016, the Group entered into a sale and purchase
agreement (as supplemented and amended) (the “Sale and
Purchase Agreement”) with Sunjet Investments Limited (the
“Purchaser”), in relation to, among other things, the sale
and purchase of the entire issued share capital of Multi
Glory Limited. Mr. Chan How Chung, Victor (“Mr. Chan”), a
Director and a substantial shareholder of the Company, is also
a director of the Purchaser and is its substantial shareholder.
In consideration of the Purchaser entering into the Sale and
Purchase Agreement, on 2 August 2016, the Company executed
a deed of guarantee pursuant to which the Company agreed to
guarantee in favour of the Purchaser the due performance and
observance by the seller of all its obligations under or pursuant
to the Sale and Purchase Agreement.

As disclosed in the announcements of the Company dated
7 October 2015, 3 May 2016 and 2 August 2016, Kingly Profits
Corporation (“Kingly”) (being a holder of the 4.50% convertible
bonds due 2019 (the “2019 Bonds"), which is indirectly wholly-
owned by Mr. Chan), has provided three undertakings to the
Company during the year (the “Undertaking(s)”), among other
things, to provide valid block voting instructions in favour of the
respective extraordinary resolution in relation to the 2019 Bonds
and not to exercise the put option in relation to a “Relevant
Event” as stated in the announcements in respect of the 2019
Bonds it holds.

Pursuant to the Undertaking dated 7 October 2015, Kingly
further undertook to, from time to time, if it shall receive
any early redemption payment (in respect of the 2019 Bonds
it holds) from the Company, provide a further unsecured
shareholder’s loan to the Company in the amount equal to such
early redemption principal payment so received by it.

REXLot Holdings Limited fZe-R #1Z R B R AR
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Pursuant to the aforesaid Undertakings, Kingly also agreed to
provide the following unsecured shareholder’'s loans to the
Company, each for an initial term of one year, as summarised
below:

Directors’ Report (continued)
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B EallAES K KinglyR B AR A B M A T E 42
REREEZ 2RO BBH—F HHWT:

Amount of loan

Amount of at coupon rate
Date of Undertaking Interest-free loan of 2019 Bonds
R-EB-NF
BEH2REA=E
AR B GEERER FEZENSE
(HK$) (HKS$)
(&) (&)
7 October 2015 —ZE-hFE+ AR 100,000,000* 15,000,000*
3,000,000*
3 May 2016 —E-RFRA=H 1,425,000% 19,353,116.52%
2 August 2016 —E-X"ENAZ=H 1,992,351.62% 45,000,000%
* For partial redemption of the convertible bonds * FESH B AR EH
# For general working capital # RIE—mREEES

(i) On 2 August 2016, Mega Market Assets Limited (“Mega
Market") has agreed to grant an interest-free unsecured
loan and due for repayment on the completion date of the
Disposal to the Company in an amount up to HK$360,000,000
(the “Mega Market Loan”) to finance the Company's partial
redemption of the convertible bonds. Mr. Chan is also a director
and a substantial shareholder of Mega Market.

(iv) During the year, Mr. Chan provided interest-free unsecured and
repayment on demand loans in the amount of approximately
HK$87,132,000 to the Company.

(v)  During the year, Kingly provided an interest-free unsecured
and repayment on demand shareholder’s loan in the amount
of approximately HK$280,000,000 for the Company's general
working capital.

Particulars of Directors’ interest in other transactions are also set out
in the section headed “Connected Transactions and Related Party
Transactions” in this Directors’ Report.

Save as disclosed above, no other significant transactions,
arrangements or contracts in relation to the Group’s business to
which the Company’s subsidiaries or any of its holding companies
and fellow subsidiaries was a party, and in which a director of the
Company had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

(i) RZT—"F/\AZH Mega Market Assets
Limited ([Mega Market |) 2R B A AR & #%
i & %8 & %360,000,0007 7T 2 % B E I &
REHEEBEEX BB EERE ZEH ([Mega
MarketB ) * BLAR A FIE R #6057l R E
ERE o RIEE TN AMega MarketZ EEFHFE T
ERRER -

(iv) FR-BRELBEARAREREERALARE
KB & 2 B F487,132,0005%8 7T °

(v) FR-KnglyREE B ERBRBEREREEY
% 5 B 5 #47280,000,0005 7T - AR A 7 B E
—RBEES -

EEMEEMRSERABENEANANEZTSRS [H
BRXGLRBAMAIRS] — 8

B EXPRREEIN ARAM B LB REERZERA
A R [R) K B BB A B 7E G 4R B SR AR 4F B N E ] BE RS 4R
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TREEEAREIEMERZR S RHAEN-
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Directors’ Report (continued)
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INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES

As at 31 December 2016, the interests or short positions of the
Directors and chief executives and their associates in the shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company and its associated
corporations, as recorded in the register maintained by the Company
pursuant to Section 352 of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(the "SFO") or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code"), were as follows:

EERBETRAEZER
RZF-RET-A=+—RB EERERITRAER
PA B 1% % 2 B B N0 AR B S H AT AR B DK B 2 AR
- HERDIEBFTEECHEARTAREIESR
HERM (TBFEMEGD])FINKAFEZSR
MEZRBELXAR  ABRBE LT ETAZERETES
ZHMBESTR ([BEFE ] EAGEARA KRR
FrefmsoRBamT:

Long position in the Shares and underlying Shares in the REATDRGREEARG ZHFR
Company
Approximate
Number of percentage of
Number of underlying issued share capital
Name of Director Nature of interest Shares held Shares held Total of the Company
HERTRE
EEpg BEtE FERHEE FsHEERD 8 E st BRHAEAL
Chan How Chung, Victor Interest of controlled 1,494,941,855 166,056,118 1,660,997,973 16.56%
REHE corporation/beneficial (Note 1) (Notes 2 and 3)
owner (1) (HE2k3)
VNI -
EE%EA
Boo Chun Lon Beneficial owner - 5,000,000 5,000,000 0.05%
Rk B BRBEAA (Note 4)
(Hizt4)
Yuen Wai Ho Beneficial owner - 5,000,000 5,000,000 0.05%
e BRBEAA (Note 4)
(Hizt4)
Chow Siu Ngor Beneficial owner - 5,000,000 5,000,000 0.05%
B E BRBEAA (Note 4)
(Hizt4)
Lee Ka Lun Beneficial owner - 5,000,000 5,000,000 0.05%
TR EXBEEA (Note 4)
(Hizt4)
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Notes:

(1) Among these Shares, 1,187,640,997 Shares are held by Keen Start
Limited and 307,300,858 Shares are held by Kingly Profits Corporation.
Both Keen Start Limited and Kingly Profits Corporation are indirectly
wholly-owned by Mr. Chan.

(2)  Kingly Profits Corporation is deemed to be interested in 161,056,118
underlying Shares to be derived from the 4.50% convertible bonds due
2019 in the aggregate outstanding principal amount of HK$220,646,883
issued by the Company on 8 July 2014 at the applicable conversion price
of HK$1.37 per Share.

(3)  Mr. Chan is beneficially interested in 5,000,000 underlying Shares to be
derived from the share options granted by the Company under the 2012
Scheme.

(4)  The underlying Shares to be derived from the share options granted by
the Company under the 2012 Scheme.

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year under review, the
Directors or chief executives had any interests or short positions in
the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any
of its other associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV
of the SFO and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622)) as
recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 352 of the
SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Other than the 2012 Scheme as disclosed in the “Share Options” and
the convertible bonds as disclosed in the “Convertible Bonds” set out
in this Directors’ Report, no equity-linked agreements that will or may
result in the Company issuing shares or that require the Company
to enter into any agreements that will or may result in the Company
issuing shares were entered into by the Company during the year or
subsisted at the end of the year ended 31 December 2016.
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(2)  Kingly Profits Corporation##% A7161,056,118% AR
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ARRANGEMENT TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBENTURES
Save as disclosed in this Directors’ Report, at no time during the
year under review was the Company, its fellow subsidiaries or any of
its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the Directors
to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or
debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN COMPETING BUSINESS

As at 31 December 2016, pursuant to Rule 8.10(2) of the Listing
Rules, details of the interests held by the Directors in businesses that
are considered to compete or is likely to compete, either directly or
indirectly, with the businesses of the Group, are disclosed as follows:

Name of company

DAEEH

BEROSES 2LZH
BRAREBEFEMEMBEBEEIN ARF HRRHBB A
A EARAH B A AR R EFE AT ARG E2EE
MzHE BEEESAHEBEALRRANEFMEMAF
R kEsmEsR -

ESNBFMERh R
RIB-—RET-A=+—HB BRELTRAUE
8.10(2)f6k » EEFTHFA T K% 1R /3 B 7] B B A 52 8] 3¢
BEEERREERFZIEBRaFBRENT

Competing business

BEMER

RPI Finance Limited (“RPI")
WEMBERAR ([HRME])

Mr. Chan How Chung, Victor is a director and deemed to be the
substantial shareholder of RPI. The terms and conditions of the
financing loans of RPI are market driven and agreed at arm’s length
between the borrowers and the financier. When making decisions
on the above competing business, the relevant director, in the
performance of his duty as a director of the Company, has acted and
will continue to act in the best commercial interest of the Group.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Bye-laws provides that every Director or other officers shall be
indemnified and secured harmless out of the assets of the Company
from and against all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and
expenses which they shall or may incur or sustain in or about the
execution of their duties in their respective offices or otherwise in
relation thereto.

A permitted indemnity provision that meets the requirements
specified in section 469(2) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
(Cap. 622) for the benefits of the Directors is currently in force and
was in force throughout the year.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

Brief biographical details of Directors and senior management are set
out on pages 38 to 39 of this report.

14 REXLot Holdings Limited #1Z=h#AZE R AT

Money lending

&%
RERBRELERDEUB2EE THRERZ AR ZE
BRFR -BRFB U BERZGERRIGHATSE
M YHEEETEAFHERE - NEIR] L EF
MREBZARE BEHES (RETRER/AAAE
EZRBBER)EETHELEERDNTAAEERER
EMNRZ2ITE -

BAETFHREERKRX

AEAAETR SRESREMSRBE AR
ERANTRESAZBBZBME UL TS SR ATAE
EEARXZAARM KA BER - BB -BELH
XEBUARRZEEFEHZBEREREZIBE-

BRIERFREIMER ARAGHAERE AR A
FAEEB(REER) (5622F)FE469(2)1%5 A~
BEZERETNBEE -

EERSREBEAERRE

EELSRAEREAEBRENERNAREEIES
39H -



INTERESTS OF SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS
As at 31 December 2016, the interests or short positions of the

following parties (other than a Director or chief executive of the

Directors’ Report (continued)
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FTERRERS
R-ZZF-RETZA=Z+—RB BEAQBAREZS
HEGPIE3B6RBEFEZECMME T§|Jxﬁ(ﬁ$

Company) in the shares and underlying shares of the Company as RRABEZHHEEHTHABIN RARARMN RIEH
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant ROFPHEE 2 ERIOKET :
to Section 336 of the SFO were as follows:
Long position in the Shares and underlying Shares in the Company REARBRGREBARG ZHFR
Number of Approximate
Number of underlying Percentage of
Name of Shareholder Nature of interest Shares held Shares held Total issued share capital
HERTRE
BRREE 2 BENE FsRo8E FisHERRD 8 A @ BHEAL
Smart Ease Corporation Interest of controlled 1,494,941,855 161,056,118 1,655,997,973 16.51%
corporation (Notes A and B)
REH D AER (H#FARB)
Keen Start Limited Beneficial owner 1,187,640,997 - 1,187,640,997 11.84%
ExBEEA (Note A)
(HfzA)
Kingly Profits Corporation Beneficial owner 307,300,858 161,056,118 468,356,976 4.67%
ExBEEA (Note B)
(HfstB)
PYN Elite Fund (non-UCITS)  Custodian corporation/ 686,732,497 - 686,732,497 6.85%
approved lending agent
RERR/RUBERE
Notes: HaE -
A.  These Shares are held by Keen Start Limited as beneficial owner. Keen A. ZZER D HKeen Start Limited/E AERFEAAREA -

Save

Start Limited is wholly-owned by Smart Ease Corporation, which in turn,
is wholly-owned by Mr. Chan How Chung, Victor. The interest disclosed
herein was included in the interest of Mr. Chan as disclosed in the section
headed
Report.

“Interests of Directors and Chief Executives” in this Directors’

These Shares and underlying Shares are held by Kingly Profits Corporation
as beneficial owner. Kingly Profits Corporation is wholly-owned by
Smart Ease Corporation, which in turn, is wholly-owned by Mr. Chan.
The interest disclosed herein was included in the interest of Mr. Chan
as disclosed in the section headed “Interests of Directors and Chief

Executives” in this Directors’ Report.

as disclosed above, the register required to be kept under

Section 336 of the SFO shows that as at 31 December 2016, the
Company had not been notified of any other person who had an

interest or short position in the shares and underlying shares of the

Company.

Keen Start LimitedggSmart Ease Corporation® & #
A+ M Smart Ease CorporationfAfRERE A2 EHA -
MINAEEZERE [EERERTRABZER] —&
e Rt RBE Rt A\REEZBEN -

B. ZER D AR (D B Kingly Profits Corporation{E A&
%5 B A¥5 A © Kingly Profits Corporationfd Smart Ease
CorporationZ & # A ' ifiSmart Ease Corporationf &
GERERE BN AEEERE [EERERTHA

BriEm] —HEE RUBEZERFTAREEZ
EEA
B EXFTEEIN  RIBEFHFLRHEEGIE3I361KETT
BEzEEMABR R_Z—A"F+_A=1+—8
ZIS"ﬁjﬁﬂﬁg%ﬂ@{fﬂﬁ‘rﬁz/\iﬁéﬂiﬁﬂﬂ&fﬁ&*ﬁ%ﬁ
A& 17 7 e 2R gk
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the year.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group made
approximately 27% of its entire sales to five largest customers
and sales to the largest customer included therein amounted to
approximately 6%. Purchases from the Group's five largest suppliers
accounted for approximately 38% of the total purchases for the year
and purchases from the largest supplier included therein amounted to
approximately 13%.

None of the Directors, or any of their respective associates or any
other Shareholders, which, to the best knowledge of the Directors,
owns more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital, had
any beneficial interest in the Group's five largest customers and five
largest suppliers during the year.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS

The Sale and Purchase Agreement and the transactions contemplated
thereunder, as detailed in this report, constituted a non-exempt
connected transaction under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. Details
of the transactions are set out in the circulars of the Company dated
29 February 2016 and 30 September 2016.

The subscription of the 2019 Bonds by Kingly, as detailed in note
35 to the consolidated financial statements, and the transactions
contemplated thereunder constitute a non-exempt connected
transaction under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

All the shareholder’s loans made by Mr. Chan and Kingly to the
Company, the Mega Market Loan as disclosed in section headed
“Directors’ Material Interests in Transactions, Arrangements or
Contracts” in the Directors’ Report and the personal guarantee given
by Mr. Chan as disclosed in note 44 to the consolidated financial
statements were fully exempted connected transactions under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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As disclosed in the announcements of the Company dated 29 March
2016, 3 May 2016 and 2 August 2016, during the year, the Company
paid the consent fees in an aggregate amount of approximately
HK$4,359,000 to Kingly in relation to the 2019 Bonds. The payments
of the consent fee to Kingly was regarded as a connected transaction
under the Listing Rules, which were not subject to the independent
Shareholders’ approval requirement under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.

Particulars of transactions and balances with related parties of the
Group during the year ended 31 December 2016 are set out in note
44 to the consolidated financial statements.

The Company confirms that it has complied with the applicable
requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Save as disclosed above, the other transactions with related parties
did not fall under the definition of
in Chapter 14A of the Listing

“connected transaction” or
“continuing connected transaction”

Rules.

BANK BORROWINGS

Details of bank borrowings of the Group and the Disposal Group as at
31 December 2016 are set out in notes 34 and 14 to the consolidated
financial statements.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the
Company’s total issued share capital was held by the public as at the
date of this report.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
The Board hereby presents the annual results of the Group for the
financial year ended 31 December 2016.

Business Review and Prospects
During the year under review, the Group was principally engaged in
lottery system and games development business and distribution and

marketing of lottery products in China.

The Chinese lottery market comprises two lotteries, namely, the China
Welfare Lottery and the China Sports Lottery. The Group provides
services to both lotteries.

Lottery Business

The Group’s lottery business can be broadly divided into System
and Games Development Business (“SGDB"”) and Distribution and
Marketing Business (“DMB").
accounted for 100% of the Group’s total revenue.

Revenue of the lottery business
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For the year ended 31 December 2016, revenue of the Group
amounted to approximately HK$1,252,144,000, representing
a decrease of 19.4% over the same period last year (2015:
approximately HK$1,554,394,000). The Group recorded a loss before
taxation of approximately HK$416,091,000 (profit before taxation in
2015: approximately HK$205,358,000).

The decline in revenue mainly reflected the slowdown of the industry
development which created immense pressure on the Group’s
lottery business. Due to the challenging operating environment for
the lottery industry in China, particularly in the scratch card and
paperless electronic lottery distribution markets, impairment loss on
goodwill, intangible assets and other provisions were made in relation
to the Group's interest in joint ventures and the Group's operating
units. Keen market competition substantially increased the cost of
sales/services and selling and distribution expenses including salary,
marketing cost and other operating costs in China. The slowdown
of economy growth in China and the tightening of capital controls
have posed another set of challenges to the Group’s operations. In
response to these macro-environmental factors, the Group strictly
adhered to a prudent approach to financial management during the

year under review.

Lottery sales of the Chinese lottery market will take time to fully
recover from the unfavorable impact of internet distribution channel
suspension since early 2015, though a slow recovery has been seen
during the year given the gradual change in purchasing habit among
lottery players returning to traditional physical distribution channel.
In the meantime, positive momentum brought by the shift in their
preference to sports betting lottery and high-frequency games
was partially offset by the moderate contraction among traditional
instant lottery and pool-based drawing games. The Chinese lottery
market is anticipated to experience a slow growth in sales until an
official resumption of the internet lottery distribution channel. The
resumption is expected to generate a positive impact on the market.
Nevertheless, the Group continued to show strong resilience and
delivered solid performance on the back of the broad base of its
business portfolio in the entire value chain of the lottery industry.
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In order to align the Group's lottery business to the latest
development in the lottery market, the Group embarked on a
transformation to restructure its Welfare Computer Ticket Games
("CTG") business. In January 2016, the Company announced a plan
to realise one of its long-term investments in the traditional Welfare
CTG market which covered business operations of the manufacturing
and provision of Welfare CTG machines and supporting systems
for the traditional lottery market. During the year, the Group made
concerted efforts to expedite the restructuring and closing the
transaction. General expenses of the Group was increased due to
various corporate expenses in relation to the delay in the closing of
the transaction. Despite that, this strategic move unlocked substantial
value of the assets and allowed the Group to focus on its operating
priorities in order to drive future growth and deliver long-term value
for our shareholders. After the restructuring, the Group will remain
solidly positioned in the Welfare CTG market by supporting the
development of non-traditional CTG and peripheral lottery system.

As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 14 February
2017, the Disposal (as defined in the section headed “Material
Acquisitions and Disposals of Subsidiaries” in this Directors’ Report)
was completed. As a result of the completion of the Disposal,
members of the Disposal Group have ceased to be subsidiaries of
the Company and the net proceeds of the Disposal would be applied
by the Company for redemption of the convertible bonds of the
Company.

Reference is made to the announcement of the Company dated
29 March 2017, the Company has launched a proposal, after partial
repayment of the outstanding bonds, to seek the bondholders’
consent for, among other things, further extension of the relevant
event redemption date of the put bonds and the maturity date of the
bonds due 2016 and to waive the events of default for the respective
bonds.

Although 2016 has turned out to be a challenging year for the Group
in view of the difficult operating environment, it is expected that
after the repayment of the remaining outstanding bonds, the Group
will once again resume a sound financial position underpinned by
improved overall cashflow, gearing and liquidity position which allow
us to pursue our strategy and refocus the Group on growing our
business.
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Chinese Lottery Market
Chinese lottery market registered total lottery sales of RMB394.6
billion in 2016, increased by 7% compared with 2015.

Total sales of Welfare Lottery was RMB206.5 billion, increased by 2%
compared with 2015. Welfare CTG accounted for about 71% of total
Welfare Lottery sales; Welfare Scratch Cards was about 7% and Video
Lottery Terminals (“VLT") took about 22%.

Welfare CTG sales in 2016 was RMB146.8 billion, increased by 3%.
Welfare Scratch Cards sales was RMB14.9 billion, down 8%. VLT sales
increased 5% to RMB44.5 billion. Sales of Keno was RMB266 million,
decreased 39%.

Total sales of Sports Lottery was RMB188.1 billion. Sports CTG
accounted for about 93% of total Sports Lottery sales and Sports

Scratch Cards was about 7%.

Sales of Sports CTG, including Single Match Games (“SMG"),
increased by 15% to RMB174.6 billion. Sports Scratch Cards sales was
RMB13.6 billion, down by 3%. Total sales of Sports VLT was about
RMB7.9 million.

System and Games Development Business

The Group’s SGDB is an active participant in the provision of lottery
system and specialised equipments for both CTG and scratch card
products in China. During the year under review, the Group’s
SGDB delivered satisfactory performance which reflected the steady

execution of its strategy in a time of evolving market dynamics.

Welfare CTG Business

In 2016, performance of the Welfare CTG market was still impacted
by the suspension of internet distribution where such impact slowly
reduced as the year progressed. The full year sales of Welfare CTG in

China turned around with a low single digit increase.

In the traditional segment of Welfare CTG market, growth of national
draw based games was flat during the year. In parallel, regional and
high frequency games showed a faster pace of development in the
second half of the year and successfully outperformed the segment
growth for the full year. As lottery players gradually shifted their
purchasing habit, physical retail network played an important role in
retaining and attracting new players during the year.
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During the year under review, the Group continued to forge ahead
with the profound transformation to focus on the non-traditional
market segment for the Group’s Welfare CTG segment. The Group
will remain solidly positioned in the upstream lottery market after
completion of the restructuring and repositioning over lottery games
development and peripheral lottery system innovation. This business
segment is expected to achieve a satisfactory level of profitability as

markets improve.

Welfare Scratch Cards Business
The Group’s Welfare Scratch Cards Business involved in both

validation and printing of Welfare Scratch Cards in China.

During the year under review, the Group's Welfare Scratch Cards
Business suffered from the reduction of total sales volume in the
market. Competition from other instant type of lottery products was
obviously a significant factor behind the drop in scratch cards sales.
Although the magnitude of sales decline was reduced by the efforts
made by lottery authorities, underperformance of the scratch card
market continued to dampen the performance of the Group’s Welfare
Scratch Cards business.

The Group has jointly controlled interests in the validation system
and specialised equipment provider which provides validation services
for the Welfare Scratch Cards market. In light of the continuing
slowdown in scratch card market, a provision was recognised for the
impairment loss on goodwill and intangible assets included in the
interests in joint ventures in relation to the aforesaid operations.

The Group also participated in Welfare Scratch Cards printing business
through a cooperative venture with Shijiazhuang Offset Printing
House, one of the three entities authorised to print for the Welfare
Scratch Cards programs. The Group’s printing operations rolled
out various new scratch cards designs during the year to meet the
demand from lottery authorities. Leveraging on its design and printing
capability, the Group is ideally positioned to play an important role

when this market regains its momentum.
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Sports CTG Business

The Group’s Sports CTG business was engaged in the manufacturing
and sales of CTG terminals to provincial Sports Lottery Centres across
China serving the needs of traditional CTG segment and supporting
the development of SMG.

Replacement demand for new Sports CTG/SMG terminals were driven
by the needs to modernise sales equipment in the physical lottery
distribution network. During the year under review, the Group actively
participated in the procurement bidding and delivered its Sports CTG
terminals in different provinces.

Distribution and Marketing Business

The Group’s DMB is a major participant in lottery distribution in
China.
platform which consists of a widely diversified and recognised physical

It has successfully established a comprehensive distribution

retail network and a portfolio of innovative and advanced electronic

lottery platforms.

The Group's downstream lottery operations pledge to provide reliable,
efficient and innovative lottery services to address the needs of end
consumers in lottery market and assist lottery authorities to promote
and develop the Chinese Lottery market in sustainable manner. Over
the years, the Group has fostered long-term relationships with lottery
authorities and acted as innovator for technologies which help to
improve the way lottery products are marketed, distributed and
experienced.

The Group’s DMB was working against some major headwinds in
2016. Performance of the scratch card distribution business was
hampered by the shrinking sales volume in the market. Meanwhile,
the operating environment for paperless electronic lottery
business, including mobile lottery business, remained difficult given
considerable uncertainty persisted in relation to relevant regulatory
development during the year. During the year under review, the
Group recognised an impairment loss on goodwill and other
provisions in relation to the operating units in the paperless electronic
lottery business. Nevertheless, the Group’s DMB maintains a solid
foundation in the paperless electronic lottery platforms and ready to
expand when market evolves.
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Scratch Cards Distribution Business

The Group’s scratch cards distribution business focuses on the
distribution and sales of scratch cards through a physical lottery
distribution network. This network comprised of a widely diversified
and recognised sales distribution channels located in selected prime
locations. The Group’s DMB is one of the largest distributors for
scratch cards in terms of sales value and number of point-of-sales
established.

Despite the efforts made by lottery authorities to stimulate sales,
downward pressure of scratch card sales exacerbated during the
second half of the year. Overall performance of scratch cards sales in
the market continued to be impacted by the fierce competition from
other lottery products, particularly from other instant type of lottery
products. Meanwhile, competition in the scratch card distribution
market intensified with entry of new market participants and created
pressure for business performance. The Group continued its efforts to
restructure its sales network to stay competitive in the current tough

market situation.

Single Match Games Business

Total sales of SMG in China exceeded market expectation against the
back drop of internet distribution channel suspension by achieving a
strong growth to reach RMB67.2 billion in 2016.

This encouraging result reflected the strength of major sports
event in expanding the player base for this lottery product. Also,
it demonstrated the underlying significance of the physical retail
network since internet distribution had been suspended in early 2015.
During the year under review, the Group operated its SMG business
through physical distribution network and was able to benefit from
the market growth.
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SMG, which was launched in 2009 in China, has successfully evolved
to be the single largest lottery product in the Chinese market
and displayed its huge potential. It is also believed that internet
distribution platform will play an important role in releasing the
enormous potential of SMG. The Group remains positive on the long-
term prospect of internet lottery distribution channel and maintains
its investment in this area through its interest in the Okooo platform.
Okooo has been transforming itself into an interactive portal for SMG
consumers to publish, share and explore relevant content online.
Okooo aims to retain its user base by providing innovative services
with quality information and content for SMG consumers. The
ongoing regulatory development will eventually open up long-term

growth opportunities for SMG market.

Mobile Lottery Business and Mobile Electronic Lottery Platform
The Group conducts its mobile lottery business through its self
developed Mobile Electronic Lottery Platform (“Mobile ELP"),
which offers a multi-functional back-end system with convenience
interface to facilitate lottery distribution over mobile devices. Mobile
ELP improves the convenience of lottery purchase by connecting
players directly to the centralised system of provincial lottery
centre, enabling a safe and reliable lottery purchase experience.
The adoption of Mobile ELP provides provincial lottery centres with
technological breakthrough to better connect with players located
in their respective provinces and attract purchases from the locals.
The Group has established a solid foundation which allows us to
seize market opportunities driven by the reopening of mobile lottery
distribution method after regulatory approvals. During the year under
review, the operating environment for mobile lottery business was
very challenging. The development of mobile technology for lottery
distribution slowed down in response to the ambiguous regulation
associated with mobile lottery platform.

Sports Video Lottery

Sports VLT was first introduced in Hainan Province to support the local
tourism development. The Group was honored to be chosen as one of
the first companies to play an active role in supporting the launch of
this new lottery product for Sports Lottery. The Sports VLT in Hainan
Province, featuring four distinctive lottery games, is still at its infancy
and growing in a faster pace during the year. Total sales of Sports
VLT in the market grew by 38% year-on-year. The Group’s franchised
outlet, located at the unique prime location to serve both domestic
and in-bound tourists, was able to benefit from the favorable
development of this relative new lottery product. The Group will
continue to deliver players with fantastic lottery experience through
its franchised lottery outlet. The Group is confident on the long-term
growth of this lottery product and its potential contribution to the

lottery market.
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Outlook

The performance of Chinese lottery market in 2016 showed
a glimmer of recovery from the latest regulatory and industry
development in 2015. As one of the major players in the market, the
Group possesses strong fundamentals to deliver appropriate financial
performance in the challenging operating environment today. With its
comprehensive lottery solutions and products, the Group is going to
capitalise on the opportunities across the market to emerge from this
downturn in a much stronger competitive position.

More than a decade ago, the Group entered the Chinese lottery
market through the acquisition of a lottery system supplier in the
upstream lottery market which later became the foundation of the
Group's lottery business. Over the years, the Group worked hard
to grow the business and expand its operations to the downstream
market of lottery distribution. The Group’s growth strategy centers
on developing its business for sustainable growth prospect with
reasonable shareholders’ return over the long term. The disposal and
value realisation of our long-term investment in traditional Welfare
CTG market was a clear testimony to the agile execution of this
strategy.

Looking ahead, uncertainties of regulatory development in the
Chinese lottery market will likely hamper the short-term development
of the industry. Whilst it is uncertain when the legal framework
regulating the paperless electronic distribution channels will be
formalised, it is believed that paperless electronic lottery distribution
will eventually become an important driver for growth in the
Chinese lottery market and it will bring ample opportunities for the
industry players. The Group’s DMB has already taken significant
steps to prepare for that. However, the prolonged suspension of the
internet distribution channel is introducing increased uncertainty
and operating pressure to lottery market and industry participants.
Although the impact of the suspension is fading, it has restrained
the growth momentum in the Chinese lottery market and caused
profound impact to the operating environment and strategic planning
of the Group.

Directors’ Report (continued)

EEEeHE (&)

RE

TREEETENR_T-RNFORE 2RAN_F—F

FOBRMEERTEERTERNE - ZKEITJFD
BEMETE2REZ — BERBE BORYENE

BRERE SHBERUBRR -AEBAGEZEN
HEMRDERER ZHILEMSTROKE &
HEALHEFTRBRFED -

@EﬁﬂL%iﬁh’$E.%’§Wﬁgif%7};$m%ﬁ'ﬂ%gj&§
HEFMESPEXENS  WEZATEXNAERSE
%ﬁ%‘%%a“%mﬂéE ZER - AEESNBRERER &
BENRBETHAEREAM S AEENEERKRE
DHREAASEERAISNER GERRNGER
RER - AEEHEEARNEHRBYEMETISH R
KRE #EEER BHEERTE —XRHOAE

RERR TEEETSHNEETERAT KA TR
ERTENEHER - BERTERMMCEFRARS
FOERIERNERNZERE AR BEEALEFY
FREZARKERA/TEARETSHNIZERD B
TESLEETREREE - AEENLARTIHES
EEREZERE  RUEFEE - A REBEEER
SRR EARBERVEN S RITERZREGFTRES D
BEUELRKERN BEAREFNTZEZTHEER
TEYEMSNERZBECRRY  HAEENERE
RENRKBRIERNFRETLE -

Annual Report 2016 —Z—/"FFH 2 5



Directors’ Report (continued)

EEeHE (&)

Once the financial challenge posed by the redemption obligation
under the convertible bonds has been successfully addressed, the
Group is poised to focus on growing its business. China has had
a strong start in 2016 for the 13th Five-Year Plan Period and the
Chinese government is promoting domestic investments to achieve
the ambitious objectives laid out in its development blueprint. The
past success of the Group tied to its strategy to set the foundation for
long-term growth by taking a prudent approach towards investment
opportunities. As the key aspects of the 13th Five-Year Plan open up
immense opportunities, the Group intends to introduce and establish
strategic partnership to enhance the Group’s human and finance
capability and identify potential projects which offers immense
growth potentials and can provide a solid foundation for substainable
future growth. Diversification will put us on the front foot to move
our business forward when the Group’s core business is facing an
increasing uncertainty amid the latest market development. Going
forward, the Group will continue to forge ahead with transformation
to pursue profitable growth and make contributions for sustainable
development of the industry which supports the good causes that
benefit the general public in China.

Financial Review

Result

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group recorded a revenue
of HK$1,252,144,000 (2015: HK$1,554,394,000), representing a
decrease of 19.4% over that of the last year. The decrease was mainly
attributable to the Group's lottery business in China.

Loss attributable to equity shareholders for the year was
HK$393,007,000 (profit attributable to equity shareholders for 2015:
HK$150,879,000). The loss per share was 3.93 HK cents (earnings
per share for 2015: 1.51 HK cents). Diluted loss per share for the year
ended 31 December 2016 is the same as the basic loss per share as
both the share options and the convertible bonds outstanding during
the year had an anti-dilutive effect on the basic loss per share.

The Board does not recommend the payment of dividend in respect of
the year ended 31 December 2016 (2015: HK$Nil).
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Liquidity, Financial Resources and Funding

At 31 December 2016, the Group's total equity amounted to
HK$5,511,177,000 as compared to HK$6,085,403,000 at the end of
the previous year.

At 31 December 2016, the Group (including the Disposal Group) had
cash and bank balances of approximately HK$2,237,048,000 (2015:
approximately HK$1,242,791,000). This balance includes HK$Nil
(2015: approximately HK$330,000) of clients’ funds that were kept in
designated segregated bank accounts.

In 2011 and 2012, the Company issued 6.00% convertible bonds
originally due 2016 and extended to 2017 (the “2016 Bonds”)
in principal amount of HK$964,700,000 and HK$429,000,000
respectively. Each 2016 Bond is convertible into fully paid ordinary
shares of HK$0.01 each of the Company (the “Shares”) at the
applicable conversion price of HK$0.5600 per Share. The 2016 Bonds
bear interest at the rate of 6.00% per annum payable semi-annually
in arrears. During the year ended 31 December 2016, there was no
conversion of the 2016 Bonds into Shares by the bondholders of the
Company (the “Bondholders”). On 22 June 2016, the Company made
a partial payment of approximately 6.79% of the principal in respect
of all the 2016 Bonds for the amount of HK$22,430,266.08. On 30
September 2016, the Company made further partial payment of the
2016 Bonds for the amount of HK$52,155,000. As at 31 December
2016, the principal amount of the 2016 Bonds outstanding was
HK$255,729,733.92 (2015: HK$330,315,000).

In 2014, the Company issued 4.50% convertible bonds due 2019
(the 2019 Bonds”) in principal amount of HK$1,900,000,000. Each
2019 Bond is convertible into fully paid Shares at the applicable
conversion price of HK$1.3700 per Share. The 2019 Bonds bear
interest at the rate of 4.50% per annum payable semi-annually in
arrears. During the year ended 31 December 2016, there was no
conversion of the 2019 Bonds into Shares by the Bondholders. On 22
June 2016, the Company made a partial payment of approximately
6.79% of the principal in respect of all the 2019 Bonds for the
amount of HK$122,569,741. On 30 September 2016, the Company
made further partial payment of the 2019 Bonds for the amount of
HK$285,000,000. As at 31 December 2016, the principal amount
of the 2019 Bonds outstanding was HK$1,397,430,259 (2015:
HK$1,805,000,000).
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The gearing ratio as at 31 December 2016 was 32.36% (2015:
35.70%).
borrowings including the convertible bonds, obligations under

The gearing ratio was derived by dividing the total

finance leases and bank borrowings includes those classified
as part of liabilities associated with assets classified as held for
sale of approximately HK$1,783,405,000 (2015: approximately
HK$2,172,736,000) by the amount of total equity. The liquidity ratio
of the Group, represented by a ratio between current assets over
current liabilities, was 260% (2015: 347%),
of financial resources. The decrease of liquidity ratio mainly due to

reflecting adequacy

the increase in amount due to related parties for the year ended 31
December 2016.

The Group had outstanding bank borrowings at 31 December 2016
of HK$142,357,000 (2015: HK$71,429,000). The bank borrowings
of HK$137,456,000 (2015: HK$71,429,000) was loaned to the
Disposal Group in 2016. The bank borrowings were denominated in
Renminbi and interest bearing at prevailing commercial lending rates.
The Group's land and building and trade receivables were pledged
to secure the bank borrowings. All these borrowings were expected
to be repaid by internal funds generated by the Group, including the
Disposal Group.

Taking into account the financial resources available to the Group
including internally generated funds and available banking facilities,
the Group has sufficient working capital to meet its present
operational requirements.

Impairment Loss on Goodwill and Intangible Assets

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group made a provision
of HK$226,319,000 (2015: HK$99,321,000) and HK$58,823,000
(2015: HK$Nil) for impairment losses on goodwill and intangible
assets respectively. The impairment loss on goodwill HK$103,923,000
(2015: HK$99,321,000) was made to the Group’s cash-generating
unit and the remaining impairment losses on goodwill and intangible
assets of HK$122,396,000 and HK$58,823,000 respectively were
included in the interest in joint ventures.

REXLot Holdings Limited fJZe-R #1ZR B R AR

RZE—RF+ZA=+—HZzABEKLEAR32.36%
(ZE—HF:35.70%) BELEAHEERE (&
? BmRES BEHES Fﬁ&fﬁmﬂg( BIEH A

DEARBELEZEEERZBE—F»E) Nk
1,783,405,000/ L (= F — A 4 : 492,172,736,000

BIL) ) BAERBE - AEEURDEERURS
BEFEZRDES LK AE260% (ZFE—HF:

347% ) RBFEERZTR RBESLERTHREE
RHNEE-_E—RFt+-A=1+—RHLEEENEA
Bk 75 SR IB 3G AN AT L

AEBR-_E—ARF+-_A=Z=+—HZKEERT
1%1%7,%142,357,000%%7’5(:%—£¢:71,429,000
BIL) c R ZZ—7N4F 0 137,456,000 0 (T —F
171,429,000 0) ZRITEBEDNE TFHESEH-
%E%ﬂﬁfétx/\ﬁ‘ﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁ A BAIR 1T B 3 B AR K AT

cHESB 2 I REFUREKRE ZERE EE
?ﬁ*fﬂ%ﬁﬁmﬁﬁz%‘ﬁoK%l%ﬁEﬁt@ﬁﬁﬁ%E
BUARER (RELESRBE)EEZABESHEE -

EAAEETBAZGEER BENSESRTH
RETEE AEEARRRLBESRNES S

BEREFAEZHEERS

BHE-_Z-—R"HF+-_A=+—HLEFE Xx&EEH}
MEREREERMBEEED R EL226,319,000/
T (ZZF—FHH:99,321,000% 7t) %58,823,000
B (ZE—AF T T)BEE - HEREEE
103,923,000 7T ( —ZZ — R 4 :99,321,000/87T) Iy
MAEEzRecELESEUEL B TEEREREA
EREEED B122,396,000/ 7t % 58,823,0007 7T
EFAREGEDRE -



The impairment loss on goodwill HK$103,923,000 was recognised
for the Group's cash-generating unit which is principally engaged
in lottery distribution and marketing business was fully impaired
due to challenging operating environment for the lottery industry in
China which aggravated its business performance. Accordingly, full
impairment loss on goodwill of HK$103,923,000 was recognised.

Full impairment losses of goodwill and intangible assets with carrying
value amounting to HK$122,396,000 and HK$58,823,000 respectively
included in the interests in joint ventures were recognised in profit or
loss for the year due to the continuing slowing down of the scratch
card market in China. The carrying amounts of the interests in joint
ventures exceeded their recoverable amounts of approximately
HK$170,000,000. Pre-tax discount rate of 18.3% and terminal value
growth rate of 3% had been used in the calculation of the value in
use of the interests in joint ventures.

Pledge of Assets

As at 31 December 2016, trade receivables of approximately
HK$15,052,000 (2015: HK$Nil) were pledged to a bank to secure
general banking facilities granted to the Group.

As at 31 December 2016, the Disposal Group’s land and building
with total market value of approximately HK$118,667,000 (2015:
approximately HK$122,500,000) was pledged to banks to secure the
bank borrowings granted to the Disposal Group.

Share Capital

45,000,000 new Shares were issued and allotted by the Company
during the year upon exercise of share options granted by the
Company.

As at 31 December 2016, the total number of issued Shares was
10,028,495,338.

Save as disclosed above, there was no change in the Company's
capital structure during the year ended 31 December 2016.
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Convertible Bonds

The 2016 Bonds

The Company issued the 2016 Bonds in 2011 and 2012 respectively
in an aggregate principal amount of HK$1,393,700,000 which was
convertible into fully paid Shares at an initial conversion price of
HK$0.6175 per Share. The 2016 Bonds are listed on the Singapore
Exchange Securities Trading Limited.

On 14 September 2016, the maturity date of the 2016 Bonds has
been extended from 28 September 2016 to 28 February 2017. On
22 June 2016 and 30 September 2016, the Company made partial
payments of the 2016 Bonds in the amount of HK$22,430,266.08
and HK$52,155,000 respectively. As at 31 December 2016,
the principal amount of the 2016 Bonds outstanding was
HK$255,729,733.92 (2015: HK$330,315,000). Each 2016 Bond is
convertible into fully paid Shares at the applicable conversion price
of HK$0.5600 per Share. During the year ended 31 December 2016,

there was no conversion of the 2016 Bonds.

Further updates of the 2016 Bonds are set out in the section headed
“Latest Proposals in relation to the Bonds” below.

The 2019 Bonds

The Company issued the 2019 Bonds in 2014 in the principal amount
of HK$1,900,000,000. Each 2019 Bond was convertible into fully
paid Shares at an initial conversion price of HK$1.4070 per Share. The
2019 Bonds are listed on the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading
Limited.

On 22 June 2016 and 30 September 2016, the Company made partial
payments of the 2019 Bonds in the amount of HK$122,569,741 and
HK$285,000,000 respectively. As at 31 December 2016, the principal
amount of the 2019 Bonds outstanding was HK$1,397,430,259
(2015: HK$1,805,000,000). Each 2019 Bond is convertible into
fully paid Shares at the applicable conversion price of HK$1.3700
per Share. During the year ended 31 December 2016, there was no
conversion of the 2019 Bonds.

Further updates of the 2019 Bonds are set out in the section headed

“Latest Proposals in relation to the Bonds” below.
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Relevant Event and Consent Solicitation Proposals in relation to
the Bonds

As stated in the announcement of the Company dated 20 August
2015, pursuant to the terms and conditions of each of the 2016
Bonds and the 2019 Bonds (collectively, the

Event” occurs when, among other things, the Shares are suspended

“Bonds”), a “Relevant
for trading for a period equal to or exceeding 30 consecutive trading
days on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the "Stock
Exchange”). Notice has been given by the Company to the holders of
the Bonds that a “Relevant Event” occurred. Each holder of the Bonds
had the right at such holder’s option, to require the Company to
redeem all or some only of such holder’s Bonds on 2 November 2015
(the "Relevant Event Redemption Date”) at their principal amount
(the “Put Bonds") together with interest accrued to such redemption
date,
conditions of the 2016 Bonds and the 2019 Bonds. Upon redemption

in each case in accordance with the respective terms and

of any of the Bonds, such redeemed Bonds will be cancelled.

Given the occurrence of the "Relevant Event”, the Company had
formulated various consent solicitation proposals (the “Proposals”) to
the Bondholders to, among other things, (i) delay the maturity date of
the 2016 Bonds; and (ii) delay the original Relevant Event Redemption
Date and extend the relevant put period end date. Subsequent to
the passing of the extraordinary resolutions by the Bondholders,
(i) the maturity date in relation to the 2016 Bonds was delayed to
28 February 2017; and (ii) the Relevant Event Redemption Date in
relation to each series of the Bonds was delayed to a date (as notified
by the Company to the Bondholders and the trustee of the Bonds no
less than two Hong Kong business days prior to the date on which
payment is to be made) from but excluding 28 January 2017 to an
including 28 February 2017 in relation to the Relevant Delisting Event
(as defined in the Company’s announcement dated 2 August 2016),
and the relevant put period end date was extended to 28 January

2017.

Detailed information regarding the Proposals and the relevant
meetings/resolutions (as the case may be) of the Bondholders are
set out in the announcements of the Company dated 22 September
2015, 7 October 2015, 29 October 2015, 29 March 2016, 8 April
2016, 3 May 2016, 3 June 2016, 2 August 2016 and 9 September
2016, respectively.

Further updates in relation to the Bonds are set out in the section
headed “Latest Proposals in relation to the Bonds”.
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Exposure to Fluctuation in Exchange Rate Risk and Interest Rate
Risk

The Group’'s assets, liabilities and transactions are mainly
denominated either in Hong Kong dollar or Renminbi. Since August
2015, the exchange rate of RMB fluctuated significantly, the Directors
are aware that the fluctuation in exchange rate between Hong Kong
dollar and Renminbi may give rise to potential foreign currency
risk. The Group currently does not have a foreign currency hedging
policy and will continue to monitor and evaluate the Group's foreign
currency exposure and take actions as appropriate.

In terms of the interest rate risk exposures, the Group does not have
any significant interest rate risk as both the borrowings of the Group
and the interest rates currently remain at low levels.

Capital Commitments

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the Company had capital
commitments contracted for but not provided for in the consolidated
financial statements of HK$Nil (2015: approximately HK$383,000)
for purchase of property, plant and equipment and approximately
HK$84,000,000 (2015: approximately HK$84,000,000) for increase in
registered capital of a subsidiary respectively.

Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 December 2016 and 2015, certain subsidiaries of the
Group have issued corporate guarantees in respect of the finance
lease obligation under a sales and leaseback arrangement granted
to a subsidiary of the Group which will expire when the lease is
terminated.

As at 31 December 2016, one of the subsidiaries of the Group has
issued a corporate guarantee to a bank for the bank loans granted to
a subsidiary of the Group (2015: HK$Nil).

The Group has not recognised any deferred income and the related
expenses in respect of such guarantees, as in the opinion of the
Directors, their fair values cannot be reliably measured using
observable market data and their transaction price was nil.

As at 31 December 2016 and 2015, the Directors do not consider it

probable that a claim will be made against these subsidiaries under

any of the guarantees.
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Material Acquisitions and Disposals of Subsidiaries

On 4 January 2016, REXCAPITAL Financial Group Limited (the
“Seller”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into
a sale and purchase agreement (as supplemented and amended
on 23 February 2016 and 2 August 2016) (the “Sale and Purchase
Agreement”) with Sunjet Investments Limited (the “Purchaser”), in
relation to (i) the sale and purchase of the entire issued share capital
of Multi Glory Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company;
and (ii) the assignment of the entire amount owing from Multi Glory
Limited to the Group, at the cash consideration of HK$2,150,000,000
(the "Disposal”). It was intended that the net proceeds from the
Disposal would firstly be applied by the Company for redemption of
the outstanding Put Bonds.

The Disposal constituted a major and connected transaction of the
Company under the Listing Rules. The Sale and Purchase Agreement
and the transactions contemplated thereunder has been approved by

the independent shareholders of the Company.

In consideration of the Purchaser entering into the Sale and Purchase
Agreement, on 2 August 2016, the Company executed a deed of
guarantee pursuant to which the Company agreed to guarantee in
favour of the Purchaser the due performance and observance by
the Seller of all its obligations under or pursuant to the Sale and
Purchase Agreement in accordance with the terms of the said deed of
guarantee.

In addition, on 2 August 2016, Mega Market Assets Limited has
agreed to grant an interest-free unsecured loan to the Company in
an amount up to HK$360,000,000 to finance the Company’s partial
redemption of the Put Bonds.

The Disposal has completed subsequent to the reporting period.
Details of the Disposal are set out in the Company’s circulars dated
29 February 2016 and 30 September 2016 and the announcements of
the Company dated 18 March 2016, 29 March 2016, 29 April 2016,
19 May 2016, 27 July 2016, 31 October 2016, 9 January 2017, 27
January 2017 and 14 February 2017 respectively.

Save as disclosed above, the Group had no material acquisition and
disposal of subsidiaries during the year ended 31 December 2016.
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Human Resources
As at 31 December 2016, the Group had 1,125 employees.

The Group remunerated its employee mainly based on the individual's
performance and experience. Apart from the basic remuneration,
discretionary bonus and share options may be granted to eligible
employees by reference to the Group’s performance as well as
individual performance.

Final Dividends
The Board does not recommend the payment of final dividend for the
year ended 31 December 2016 (2015: HK$Nil).

Events After the Reporting Period

Latest Proposals in relation to the Bonds

As disclosed in the Company’s announcements dated 14 February
2017, 1 March 2017, 9 March 2017, 14 March 2017, 24 March
2017 and 29 March 2017, the redemption date for the Put Bonds
was 27 February 2017 and the maturity date of the 2016 Bonds was
28 February 2017. The aggregate principal amount of Put Bonds
was HK$1,427,364,682.70 and the aggregate principal amount due
on the maturity date of the 2016 Bonds was HK$3,677,448.00.
Accordingly, the aggregate outstanding principal amount of the
Bonds immediately due and payable as of 28 February 2017 was
HK$1,431,042,130.70.

As additional time was required to complete the relevant procedures
to effect such payments, the redemption of the Put Bonds and the
2016 Bonds have not taken place in accordance with the terms
and conditions of the Bonds. On 29 March 2017, the Company has
made a partial payment to satisfy part of the principal amount of the
outstanding Bonds and the accrued but unpaid interest thereon. The
Company also launched a proposal to seek the Bondholders’ consent
for, among other things, further extension of the Relevant Event
Redemption Date of the Put Bonds and the maturity date of the 2016
Bonds, and to waive the events of default for the respective Bonds
(the "Bondholders’” Consent”).

Detailed information regarding the Bondholders’ Consent is set out in
the announcement of the Company dated 29 March 2017.
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Major Risks and Uncertainties of the Group
The followings were the major risk and uncertainties of the Group
during the year under review.

Macroeconomic Environment

The gross turnover of lotteries in PRC is closely related to consumers’
lottery purchase behavior. Any change in consumers’ lottery purchase
behavior resulting from changes in global and domestic economic
conditions could materially and adversely affect the Group’s business,
results of operations and financial condition.

Regulatory risk

The Group’s lottery business is subject to regulations and measures
promulgated by the relevant authorities in the PRC. Any change in
these regulations and measures in PRC could materially and adversely
affect the Group’s business, results of operations and financial
condition.

Uncertainty in the implementation of internet and telephone
lottery sales services

The rules and regulations on internet and telephone lottery
sales services in PRC are subject to interpretation by the relevant
authorities and may involve uncertainties in their implementation. Any
unfavorable new regulatory requirements or amendments could have
a material adverse effect on the business, financial condition, results
of operations and prospects of the Group.

Renewal of cooperation agreements

The Group operates part of its lottery business pursuant to fixed-
term cooperation agreements with provincial lottery centres and
strategic partners. There is no assurance that these cooperation
agreements will be extended or renewed on favourable terms or at
all. The occurrence of any of the above situations may materially
and adversely affect the Group's business, results of operations and
financial condition.

Weather

Extreme weather conditions in regions where the Group’s lottery
distribution network, suppliers, customers and lottery consumers are
located could adversely affect the business and results of operations
of the Group.
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Corporate Environmental and Social Responsibility

The Group is committed to the long-term sustainability of its various
businesses and the local communities where we operate. Further
information on the environmental policies and performance of the
Company is set out in the Environmental, Social and Governance
Report on pages 54 to 58.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to maintain high standard of corporate
governance practices. Further information on the corporate
governance practices adopted by the Company is set out in the

Corporate Governance Report on pages 42 to 53.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee has reviewed with the management the
accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group and
discussed internal controls and financial reporting matters including
the review of the consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2016.

AUDITOR

By a resolution passed at the annual general meeting of the Company
held on 11 June 2015, Ting Ho Kwan & Chan CPA Limited ("THKC
CPA Ltd.”) has been appointed as the auditor of the Company to fill
the vacancy arising from the retirement of Messrs. Ting Ho Kwan &
Chan as a result of their internal corporate structure reorganisation.

Details of the change of auditor are, among other things, set out
in the Company's circular dated 30 April 2015 and the Company's
announcements dated 31 March 2015 and 11 June 2015 respectively.

THKC CPA Ltd. will retire and being eligible, offer themselves for
re-appointment at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company. A resolution for re-appointment of THKC CPA Ltd. as
auditor of the Company is to be proposed at the forthcoming annual

general meeting.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE COMPANY'S
LISTED SECURITIES

During the year ended 31 December 2016, neither the Company
nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the
Company's listed securities.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY
DIRECTORS

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Company has adopted
the Model Code as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as
the code for dealing in securities of the Company by the Directors.
Having made specific enquiry, all the Directors confirmed that they
have complied with the required standard set out in the Model Code
throughout the year.

APPRECIATION

The Board expresses its sincere thanks to all the shareholders,
bondholders, business partners and professional advisors for their
support throughout the year, and to our management and staff for
their ongoing dedication to the Group.

For and on behalf of the Board

Chan How Chung, Victor
Executive Director

Hong Kong, 31 March 2017

* The English translation of Chinese names or words are for information
purpose only, and should not be regarded as the official English
translation of such Chinese names or words.

Directors’ Report (continued)

EEEeHE (&)

BE HEJEEEAQRAZLETES

RBE-T-—AF+-AZ+—ALEE FAAR
M B A AR MASE - e AR FE A+
LR Y

ESETESERGZ2BESTA

RBEE_Z-—R"E+_A=Z+—HILFE K27
R EWBRAMEE T 2 BRETR (ERERETT
ARABHFRGZEA - EELARERE 28E
EPCEABRSFCRFA—BEETRETRIMRE L

k.

]

EXZERURHEBRE BFHEA EBBHAK
SEBRARAFE-BEZXF THERERETN
BRAEERLOIERRHE

REEFS

HITEF
PRER

& _E—tF=R=+—H

* BXEBRARS EXBFEEEE THESZED
XEBRARZ FREXES -

Annual Report 2016 —Z—/"FFH

37



38

Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EEREREBEAERE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

CHAN How Chung, Victor, aged 55, was appointed as an executive
Director on 4 July 2002. Mr. Chan is responsible for the strategic
development and overall operations of the Group. He holds a
LLB degree and is a professionally qualified accountant. Mr. Chan
has over 27 years of experience in corporate restructurings and
reorganizations, mergers and acquisitions, primary and secondary
capital raisings, wealth management and corporate finance.

BOO Chun Lon, aged 52, was appointed as an executive Director
on 14 September 2004 and is responsible for the development of
the Group. He holds a bachelor’s degree of arts from the University
of Winnipeg in Canada. Prior to joining the Company, he has been
the marketing manager of Great Tone Limited, an international
manufacturing company.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

YUEN Wai Ho, aged 57, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director on 8 April 2004. Mr. Yuen obtained a master of
business administration from the University of Bath in England in
1988. Mr. Yuen is a fellow member of both the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants and the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants, an associate member of the Chartered
Institute of Management Accountants and the Institute of Chartered
Secretaries & Administrators. Mr. Yuen has more than 27 years of
experience in auditing and commercial fields, 10 of which were
working in multinational companies. He is currently a partner of a
firm of certified public accountants.

CHOW Siu Ngor, aged 61, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director on 14 October 2004. Mr. Chow is a practicing
solicitor in Hong Kong. Mr. Chow graduated from the Chinese
University of Hong Kong in 1981 with an honors degree in Social
Science. He then obtained an honors degree in Laws from the
University of Birmingham in England in 1987. Mr. Chow was admitted
as a solicitor of the Supreme Court of Hong Kong in 1990 and has
been in private practice since then. Currently, Mr. Chow is a Partner of
King & Wood Mallesons, Solicitors. He also serves as an independent
non-executive director of CCT Land Holdings Limited and CCT Fortis
Holdings Limited, both of which are listed companies in Hong Kong.
Mr. Chow was a non-executive director of China Baoli Technologies
Holdings Limited (formerly known as REX Global Entertainment
Holdings Limited), which is a listed company in Hong Kong, from April
2006 to September 2015.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management (continued)

EEREREEAEEE (&)

LEE Ka Lun, aged 62, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director on 17 April 2007. Mr. Lee is a fellow member of
the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants in the United
Kingdom. Mr. Lee has over 20 years experience in banking and
auditing. He had been the Deputy Chief Executive of Lloyds TSB
Bank plc, Hong Kong Branch and Regional Director — Finance and
Operation of Lloyds TSB's operations in Asia for over 15 years and has
extensive experience on corporate banking, private banking, treasury,
operations, IT developments and general management. Mr. Lee also
serves as an independent non-executive director of Chow Sang Sang
Holdings International Limited, Yuexiu Property Company Limited,
Chong Hing Bank Limited, Medicskin Holdings Limited and Ever
Harvest Group Holdings Limited, all of which are listed companies in
Hong Kong.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

WOO Ming Wah, aged 46, is the Chief Financial Officer of the
Group. Mr. Woo is an associate member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants and a member of the American
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Woo has over 20 years
of experience in the field of auditing and financial management.

NG Yuen Yee, aged 47, is the Company Secretary of the Company.
Ms. Ng is an associate member of The Hong Kong Institute of
Chartered Secretaries. She has over 24 years of experience in the field
of company secretaryship.

YAU Sheung Nei, aged 44, is the Director — Corporate Development
and Investor Relations of the Group. Ms. Yau has over 21 years of
experience in the field of investor relations and equity research. Prior
to joining the Group, she had worked for a number of Hong Kong
listed red chip companies and a global asset management company.
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Mcmagemenf for Lottery Business

FEEXEKBKEEB AR

ZHANG Beiguang, aged 47, is the Executive Vice President (Lottery
Operation and Overseas Markets) of the Group. Mr. Zhang graduated
from the Peking University with a bachelor’'s degree in arts. He has
over 15 years experience in strategic development and management.

WANG Xiangbo, aged 54, is the general manager of 1t & 12 % 36
B AR AF (Beijing Guard Libang Technology Co Ltd*) (“Guard
Libang”). He joined Guard Libang in 2004. Mr. Wang graduated
from the Hunan University with a master's degree in Business
Administration. Prior to joining Guard Libang, he was appointed as
vice president of China Southern Airlines Power Machinery Company
in 1993 and was responsible for sales. He specialised in large scale
operation management and international venture, especially in
nationwide marketing management. He was the general manager of
Tianjin Nankai Co Ltd, a listed company in China between 2000 to
2003.

BrR
(Guangzhou Latech Technology Co Ltd*) (“Guangzhou

JIANG Libin aged 44, is the general manager of J& /N %4
RAERR

Latech”).
extensive experience in mechanical and electronic engineering

Mr. Jiang joined Guangzhou Latech in 2000 and has

research and related business operations. He graduated from the
faculty of power control in Beihang University.

QIAO Jin, aged 48, is the general manager of &I T & W7 & {2
B BR AR (Shenzhen Kingsail Software Tech Co Ltd*). Mr. Qiao
graduated from Chongging University and holds a M.Sc. degree from
the Department of Applied Mathematics and a Ph.D degree from
the College of Optoelectronic Engineering. He has over 10 years of
experience in the field of information technology and engineering,
specialising in comprehensive information system application.

TSANG Lung Fai, aged 53, the Chief Executive Officer of 1t {5 %

¥R AR 2 A (Beijing Xinan Sino-lottery Technology Co Ltd*) and
is responsible for the overall management of the printing of lottery
tickets. Mr. Tsang holds a master’'s degree in Business Administration
from Massey University in New Zealand. He has worked in C & C
Security Printing Company Limited for around 20 years and was
experienced in security printing. He was formerly the general manager
of Hong Kong and Dongguan plants of RR Donnelley, an international
printing firm.
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Management for Lottery Business (continued)

ZHONG Wu, aged 53, is the Chief Operating Officer of It FR{EZ %
B AR A A (Beijing Xinan Sino-lottery Technology Co Ltd*) and is
responsible for the overall operation of the printing of lottery tickets.
Mr. Zhong graduated from Beihang University — School of Economics
and Management, with a master’s degree in business administration.
He has over 10 years of experience in product development and
logistic management and business planning.

TUNG Wai Ching, aged 52, is the general manager of 1t & %40
B % S5 AR A BR A ) (Beijing Lohowin Marketing Co Ltd*) and
is responsible for the overall management of the sales of lottery
tickets. Mr. Tung holds a master’s degree in Business Administration
from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University. He has over 10 years of
experience in sales & marketing and management and has thorough
understanding to the Chinese market.

* The English translation of Chinese names or words are for information
purpose only, and should not be regarded as the official English
translation of such Chinese names or words.
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Corporate Governance Report
TRERKSE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to maintain a high standard of corporate
governance practices as set out in the Corporate Governance Code
(the "CG Code") in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing
Rules”).

The corporate governance principles of the Company emphasise
a quality board of directors, sound internal control, principles and
transparency and accountability to all shareholders of the Company.
The Company has complied with the code provisions (the “Code
Provision(s)”) under the CG Code throughout the accounting period
covered by this report except in certain circumstances which are
provided and discussed in the latter part of this report.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company (the “Director(s)”) are collectively
responsible for the oversight of the management of business and
affairs of the Group of the best interest of the shareholders of the
Company.

The board of Directors (the “Board”) currently comprises a total of
five Directors, with two executive Directors namely Mr. Chan How
Chung, Victor and Mr. Boo Chun Lon and three independent non-
executive Directors namely Mr. Yuen Wai Ho, Mr. Chow Siu Ngor and
Mr. Lee Ka Lun. A list containing the names of the Directors and their
roles and functions is published on the websites of the Company and
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

The biographical details of the Directors are set out on pages 38 to
39. To the best knowledge of the Company, there is no financial,
business, family or other material or relevant relationships between
members of the Board.

Throughout the year under review, the Board at all times met the
requirements under Rules 3.10(1), 3.10(2) and 3.10A of the Listing
Rules respectively relating to the appointment of at least three
independent non-executive Directors with at least one of them
possessing appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or
related financial management expertise and the independent non-
executive Directors represent at least one-third of the Board.

All independent non-executive Directors are financially independent
from the Group. The Company has received the annual confirmation
of independence from each of the independent non-executive
Directors and confirmed with all independent non-executive Directors
as to their independence with reference to the factors as set out in
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

The Board is collectively responsible for formulating of the Group's
overall strategy, reviewing and monitoring the business performance
of the Group, preparing and approving financial statements,
recommending the Directors’ appointment or re-appointment,
considering and approving material contracts and transactions (in
particular those may involve conflict of interests) as well as other
significant policy and financial matters. The Board also gives clear
directions as to the powers delegated to the management for the
day-to-day operation, management and administration functions of
the Group. Approval has to be obtained from the Board prior to any
significant transactions entered into by the management and the

Board has the full support of them to discharge its responsibilities.

There were five Board meetings and four general meetings held for
the year ended 31 December 2016. The following was an attendance
record of the Board meetings and general meetings during the year:
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Number of Number of

Board general

meetings meetings

attended/held attended/held

HE BT HE BT

Name of Directors EEME EESEEAY BERERE

Executive Directors HITESE

Chan How Chung, Victor PR 2= B2 5/5 0/4

Boo Chun Lon Al B2 5/5 3/4
Independent Non-executive Directors BUFHTEE

Yuen Wai Ho e 5/5 4/4

Chow Siu Ngor FNE 5/5 4/4

Lee Ka Lun TR 5/5 4/4

The Directors have disclosed to the Company the number and nature
of offices held in other public companies or organisation and other
significant commitments in a timely manner and will provide updates

to the Company on any subsequent changes.

All Directors have been provided with monthly updates by the Group’s
management, giving a balanced and understandable assessment
of the Group’s performance, position, recent developments and
prospects in sufficient detail to keep them abreast of the Group's
affairs and facilitate them to discharge their duties under the relevant
requirements of the Listing Rules.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

Under the Code Provision A.2.1, the roles of the chairman and the
chief executive should be separate and should not be performed
by the same individual. The division of responsibilities between the
chairman and chief executive should be clearly established and set out
in writing.

The Company does not at present have a Chairman nor a Chief
Executive. Nevertheless, the main duties and responsibilities of
a Chairman and a Chief Executive are currently held by separate
individuals with written guidelines for the division of responsibilities
with a view to maintain an effective segregation of duties between
the management of the Board and the day-to-day management of the
Group’s business and operations.

The Company will continue to review the effectiveness of the Group's
corporate governance structure and consider the appointment of
a Chairman of the Board and a Chief Executive if candidates with
suitable leadership, knowledge, skills and experience can be identified
within or outside the Group.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Code Provision A.4.1 requires that non-executive directors should be
appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election. Currently, the
independent non-executive Directors are not appointed for a specific
term, but are subject to retirement by rotation at the Company’s
annual general meeting as specified in the Bye-laws.

The Company has complied with the requirement of the Code
Provision on considering the independency of an independent non-
executive Director who has served more than nine years for his further
appointment. Mr. Lee Ka Lun, who has served on the Board for
more than nine years, was re-elected as independent non-executive
Director at the annual general meeting held on 29 June 2016 (the
"2016 AGM") by passing separate resolution at the 2016 AGM. The
Board’s view on Mr. Lee’s independent status was set out in the 2016
AGM circular. The re-election of Mr. Chow Siu Ngor, independent
non-executive Director who has served the Board for more than nine
years, will be considered by a vote on a separate resolution in the

forthcoming annual general meeting.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

BOARD COMMITTEES
The Board has established relevant board committees to assist in
discharging its responsibilities.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee was established on 29 March 2012.
It currently consists of three independent non-executive Directors
namely Mr. Lee Ka Lun (as Chairman), Mr. Yuen Wai Ho and Mr. Chow
Siu Ngor and one executive Director namely Mr. Chan How Chung,
Victor.

The Nomination Committee is mainly responsible for reviewing
the structure, size and composition of the Board, making
recommendations to the Board on the selection of candidates
for directorship, appointment or re-appointment and succession
of Directors, and assessing the independence of independent
non-executive Directors. Details of the duties and powers of the
Nomination Committee are set out in its written terms of reference
which are available on the websites of the Company and the Stock
Exchange.

The Company has adopted a board diversity policy since August
2013 which sets out the approach to achieve diversity in the Board.
The Company recognises and embraces the benefits of having a
diverse Board, and sees board diversity is an essential element in
achieving a sustainable and balanced development. In reviewing
Board composition, the Nomination Committee will consider balance
of a number of factors, including but not limited to age, cultural and
educational background, professional experience, skills, knowledge
and length of service. All Board appointments will be based on merit,
having due regard to the overall effective function of the Board as a

whole.

There was one Nomination Committee meeting held for the year
ended 31 December 2016. The following was an attendance record of
the Nomination Committee meeting held during the year:
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
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During the year under review, work performed by the Nomination
Committee included (i) determining the policy for the nomination
of directors with reference to the structure, size and composition
(including the skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board; (ii)
reviewing the annual confirmation of independence submitted
by the independent non-executive Directors and assessed their
independence; and (iii) reviewing the board diversity policy of the
Company. Nomination procedures and the process and criteria will be
determined by the Nomination Committee should there be the need

to select and recommend candidates for directorship.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee was established on 23 September
2005.
Directors namely Mr. Chow Siu Ngor (as Chairman), Mr. Yuen Wai Ho
and Mr. Lee Ka Lun.

It currently consists of three independent non-executive

The Remuneration Committee is mainly responsible for reviewing
the management’s remuneration proposals, and making
recommendations to the Board on remuneration policy of the
Company and remuneration packages of Directors and senior
management. Details of the duties and powers of the Remuneration
Committee are set out in its written terms of reference which are

available on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.
There was one Remuneration Committee meeting held for the year

ended 31 December 2016. The following was an attendance record of
the Remuneration Committee meeting held during the year:

Remuneration Committee Members

FMEEERE

REEFEN REEESRGTZ THEREO2RE
FEZHEE ABRAR (RIERE- ;u.;aw« "

TEEREHE: (VEHBIFNTESTRRZEFE

BUMEER U RRE 2B RGDEHA AR

%%ﬁﬁfﬁé%ﬁ{tﬂl”°QDE$E}9E%&EE§§$)\
REBZEEHHETIRA S MR L RER -

yHzaeg

FTMEBEEeR ST RFNAZ+T=ZAKZ BAIEH
“RBUFRTESAN BESNEEE(EF) -
EREERTRB L AL

FMEEEeTZARRMNEEABRZHFMIR LA
RAZHHBHRAREERSRERABZHNGTSE
ﬁ%iﬁﬁrﬁﬂ&%ﬁﬁf’ %‘EM?E@ZW?\&%ﬁ%

EHNEEEBESE FEBESEATREAR
Bk ZZ Pt 2 A8 uk A B
HE-_Z-—RF+-_A=+—HLFE HMZag
RIT-RGF - UTARFARTZFNEESS
BZHE L
Number of
meeting
attended/held
HE BT
RS

Chow Siu Ngor /N E
Yuen Wai Ho fr J& =
Lee Ka Lun TR

The Remuneration Committee has adopted the model that it will
review the proposals made by the management on the remuneration
of individual executive Directors and senior management, and make
recommendations to the Board. The Board will have final authority
to approve the recommendations made by the Remuneration
Committee.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

During the year under review, work performed by the Remuneration
Committee included (i) assessing performance of executive Directors
and senior management and, where applicable, approving their
terms of services including the directors’ fees and the emoluments
of executive Directors; and (ii) reviewing and determining on policy
and structure of the remuneration package of Directors and senior

management.

The remuneration packages of the Board for the year ended 31
December 2016 had been reviewed by the Remuneration Committee
and approved by the Board by taking into consideration factors
such as salaries paid by comparable companies, time commitment,
responsibility, market conditions elsewhere in the Group and
desirability of performance-based remuneration. Details of the
remuneration of each of the Directors for the year under review are
set out in note 10 to the consolidated financial statements.

Details of the annual remuneration of the members of the senior
management by band for the year ended 31 December 2016 is set
out in note 11 to the consolidated financial statements on page 130.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee was established on 28 September 2000. It
currently consists of three independent non-executive Directors
namely Mr. Yuen Wai Ho (as Chairman), Mr. Chow Siu Ngor and Mr.
Lee Ka Lun. The committee members possess appropriate professional
qualifications, business or accounting and related financial
management expertise and experience to provide relevant advice and
recommendations to the Company.

The Audit Committee is mainly responsible for reviewing and
monitoring the financial reporting, risk management and internal
control system of the Company, and assist the Board to fulfill its
responsibility over the audit. Details of the duties and powers of
the Audit Committee are set out in its written terms of reference
which are available on the websites of the Company and the Stock

Exchange.
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The Audit Committee is also responsible for performing the corporate
governance duties which include: (i) to develop and review the
Company's policies and practices on corporate governance; (ii)
to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management; (iii) to review
and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on compliance
with legal and regulatory requirements; (iv) to develop, review and
monitor the code of conduct and compliance (if any) applicable to the
Directors and employees; and (v) to review the Company’s compliance

with the CG Code and disclosure in the Corporate Governance

ERZBERNBARTLOEBARE B ()BT
RS ARRZEEERBRERER: ()*ﬁﬁ&ﬁﬂ
EELEREBABZBIRBERERR (IR
Eﬂ‘&%%‘?$/&TL?%E&E*A*EEEEZB{%&%“
R (v)HIE LA.J&E*%X ﬁﬁﬁﬁ%%&%;ﬁZﬁé?&
/—\%E?E'J(ﬁﬂﬁ)' WigR ARRETEETEZ
ﬁLA&Fi%M/ﬁi&iWZ%&E@

Report.
There were four Audit Committee meetings held for the year ended HE_T—AR"F+T_A=T—HLFE EFZZE"
31 December 2016, two of which were held with the external auditor. BOTMAGE HRMKENEZERMEBIT - UT
The following was an attendance record of the Audit Committee ABRFANRTZERZEE SR N E L
meetings held during the year:
Number of
meetings
attended/held
HE R
Audit Committee Members EREEERE BERH
Yuen Wai Ho F 48 5 4/4
Chow Siu Ngor HNE 4/4
Lee Ka Lun TR B 4/4

The Audit Committee reviewed the independence and objectivity of
the external auditor, the scope of audit services and related audit fees
payable to the external auditor for the Board’s approval. The Audit
Committee met and discussed with the external auditor on their audit
strategy and assessment of the sufficiency of the internal control of
the Group.

During the year under review, work performed by the Audit
Committee included (i) reviewing the audited annual results and the
unaudited interim results of the Group; (ii) reviewing the compliance
and internal audit reports and the compliance and corporate
governance issues of the Group; and (iii) discussing with external
auditor the audit planning work (including the nature and scope of
the audit and reporting obligations) in respect of the audit of the
annual results of the Group.

There was no disagreement between the Board and the Audit

Committee on the selection and appointment of the external auditor

during the year under review.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

AUDITOR’'S REMUNERATION

During the year, the remuneration payable to the Company’s external
auditor, Ting Ho Kwan & Chan CPA Limited, represents the provision
of audit fees for statutory audit and other non-statutory audit
services amounting to approximately HK$3,198,000 and HK$350,000
respectively.

DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities to prepare financial
statements for each financial year which give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the Group. In preparing the financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2016, the Directors have adopted
suitable accounting policies which are pertinent to its operations and
relevant to the financial statements, made judgments and estimates
that are prudent and reasonable, and have prepared the financial
statements on the going concern basis.

The responsibilities of the Directors for the financial statements and
those for the auditor to the shareholders of the Company are set out
on page 67.

INTERNAL CONTROL

In order to comply with the applicable code provisions set out in the
CG Code and to protect the assets and to ensure the accuracy and
reliability of the financial information that the Company employs in
its business or releases to the public, the Company conducts regular
reviews of the effectiveness of the Group's risk management and
internal control system. The scope of these reviews includes, among
others, strategy, finance, operations and regulation compliance.
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During the year, the Board has retained an independent professional
firm, to facilitate adequacy of resources and quality of review to
satisfy the Group’s internal audit function as required by the Stock
Exchange and to assist the Board to perform an annual internal audit
environment review and risk assessment on the effectiveness of the
Group’s risk management and internal control systems for the year 31
December 2016 following the CG Code. The Group has established
an internal audit charter, conducted an annual risk assessment
and devised a continuous three-year audit plan under a risk-based
approach. An annual audit was performed according to the audit
plan with a view to assisting the Board and the Audit Committee
to evaluate the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and

internal control mechanism.

The Board has reviewed the effectiveness of the Group’s risk
management and internal control system, covering strategic, financial,
operational and compliance controls. Based on the monitoring of the
Group on an ongoing basis and the results of the risk assessments and
the outcome of the annual audit review, the Board is of the view that
the Group has maintained sound and effective risk management and
internal control system during the year ended 31 December 2016.

DIRECTORS' SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Company has adopted
the Model Code as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as
the code for dealing in securities of the Company by the Directors.
Having made specific enquiry, all the Directors confirmed that they
have complied with the required standard set out in the Model Code
throughout the year.

DIRECTORS’ CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT
Every newly appointed Director will be given a comprehensive, formal
and tailored induction on his/her first appointment so as to ensure
that he/she has appropriate understanding of the business and
operations of the Group and of his/her duties, responsibilities and
obligations under the Listing Rules and the relevant statutory and

regulatory requirements.

There are also arrangements in place for providing continuing briefing
and professional development to Directors whenever necessary.

The Directors are continuously updated on latest developments

regarding the Listing Rules and other applicable regulatory
requirements to ensure compliance of the same by them.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

The Directors are committed to comply with Code Provision A.6.5
of the CG Code on directors’ training to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills so as to ensure that their contribution to the
Board will be informed and relevant.

According to the records provided by the Directors to the Company
pursuant to the CG Code, all Directors have participated in
appropriate continuous professional development activities during the
year under review. The individual training record of each Director for
the year ended 31 December 2016 is summarised below:

Directors’ duties and responsibilities/
Corporate Governance/
Updates on Laws, Rules and Regulations

tTREREE (&)
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Business related/Accounting/
Financial/Management or

other professional skills

ESHERBYLEER/ ES YL VE-5 e )
EE RARBOENER EEGHME R
Attending Attending
Reading seminars/ In-house Reading seminars/
materials conferences briefings materials conferences
LEWHE/ HERHE
e e ] Bk R B
Executive Directors HITEZE
Chan How Chung, Victor 3] v v v v v
Boo Chun Lon Y v v / v v
Independent Non-executive Directors BUHNTEE
Yuen Wai Ho g s v v v v v
Chow Siu Ngor BNE v v v v v
Lee Ka Lun ZRE v v / / /
DIRECTORS' LIABILITIES INSURANCE EEEIERE

During the year under review, the Company has arranged appropriate
insurance cover for Directors’ liabilities in respect of potential legal
actions against the Directors arising out of corporate activities of
the Group pursuant to Code Provision A.1.8 of the CG Code. Such
directors’ liability insurance will be reviewed and renewed annually.

Throughout the year ended 31 December 2016, no claim has been
made against the Directors.
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COMPANY SECRETARY
The Company Secretary of the Company is Ms. Ng Yuen Yee, who was
appointed by the Board on 27 April 2006.

During the year, Ms. Ng has undertaken sufficient hours of relevant
professional training in compliance with Rule 3.29 of the Listing
Rules.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

Procedures for Shareholders to convene a special general
meeting

Pursuant to Section 74(1) of the Bermuda Companies Act and the
bye-law 62 of the Bye-laws, the shareholder(s) of the Company
holding at the date of the deposit of the requisition not less than
one-tenth of the paid-up capital of the Company with the right of
voting at general meetings of the Company may request the Board to
convene a special general meeting.

The requisition must state the purposes of the meeting, and must be
signed by the requisitionists and deposited at the registered office
of the Company at Canon's Court, 22 Victoria Street, Hamilton HM
12, Bermuda for the attention of the Company Secretary and may
consist of several documents in like form each signed by one or more
requisitionists.

If the Directors do not within twenty one days from the date of the
deposit of the requisition proceed duly to convene a meeting, the
requisitionists, or any of them representing more than one half of the
total voting rights of all of them, may themselves convene a meeting,
but any meeting so convened shall not be held after the expiration of
three months from the said date.

Procedures for directing Shareholders’ enquiries to the Board
Shareholders should direct their enquiries about their shareholdings
to the Company’s branch share registrar and transfer office in Hong
Kong, Tricor Standard Limited at Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183
Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong.

Other shareholders’ enquiries can be directed in writing with contact
details (including name, address, telephone number and email
address) to the principal office of the Company at Suite 2601, 26/F,,
Sino Plaza, 255-257 Gloucester Road, Causeway Bay, Hong Kong for
the attention of the Company Secretary.

Shareholders may also make enquiries with the Board at the general
meetings of the Company.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

Procedures for putting forward proposals at a general meeting
Shareholders are welcomed to suggest proposals relating to the
operations, strategy and/or management of the Group to be discussed
at general meetings. Proposals shall be directed in writing with
contact details (including name, address, telephone number and email
address) to the principal office of the Company at Suite 2601, 26/F,,
Sino Plaza, 255-257 Gloucester Road, Causeway Bay, Hong Kong for
the attention of the Company Secretary.

The procedures for proposing a person for election as a Director are
available on the websites of the Company.

The Board may, in its sole discretion, consider if such proposals are
appropriate and shall be put forward to the Shareholders for approval
at the next general meeting to be convened by the Board.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND INVESTOR
RELATIONS

The Company communicates with its shareholders and investors
through various channels including publication of interim and annual
reports, announcements, circulars, press releases and other corporate
communications and publications available on the websites of the
Stock Exchange and the Company.

The general meetings of the Company provide an opportunity for
direct communication between the Board and the Shareholders. The
Company encourages their participation through general meetings
where the Shareholders meet and exchange views with the Board,
and to exercise their right to vote at meetings.

To promote the communication between the Company and
its shareholders, the Company has established a shareholders’
communication policy which shall be reviewed on a regular basis to
ensure its effectiveness and compliance with the prevailing regulatory
and other requirements.

An up-to-date consolidated version of the Memorandum of
Association of the Company and Bye-laws is published on the
websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange. There have been
no changes to such constitutional documents during the year under
review.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

BRE #HE8REB/EKSE

We are pleased to present this report covering certain environmental
and social responsibility aspects underlying the Group’s business
operations for the year ended 31 December 2016 with reference to
the Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide as set out
in Appendix 27 of the Listing Rules (the “ESG Reporting Guide"”). The
Company has complied with the “comply or explain” provisions set

out in the ESG Reporting Guide throughout the year.

The Group is committed to the long-term sustainability of its
business and the local communities where we operate. The Group
also recognises the importance of the views and interests of its
stakeholders such as shareholders, regulators, employees and the
public in making business decisions. The Group aims at making
constant efforts in areas such as environmental protection and general

social welfare.

A. ENVIRONMENTAL
The Group supports environmental protection programs and is
constantly looking to reduce the impact of business activities on

the environment.

Al: Emissions
The principal types of emissions generated from the
Group’s business operations, i.e. the provision of lottery
machines and equipment, provision of lottery printing
service and distribution of lottery products in the PRC are
as follows:

These greenhouse gases are principally emitted from third-
party transportation providers involved in the logistics
arrangement of products and personnel, the emissions
data of which during the year are unavailable to the
Group. In addition to the above direct gas emissions, the
use of electricity by the Group is also indirectly attributable
to production of greenhouse gases, most notably carbon

dioxide, in the electricity generation process.

The Group believes there is no significant environmental
impact generated by its business operations.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

Use of Resources

The Group also encourages employees to save energy and
improve efficient utilisation of resources through the use of
energy-saving lightings and recycled paper, minimising the
use of paper, reducing energy consumption by switching

off idle lightings, computers and electrical appliances.

The Environment and Natural Resources

In order to enhance environment preservation, the
Group gives careful consideration to various operational
aspects and activities within the Group to minimise any
environmental impact. The Group will also discuss and
understand better the Group’s suppliers and take into
account their environmental and social responsibility
practices in the selection process.

B. SOCIAL

Employment and Labour Practices

B1:

Employment

Employees are regarded as the greatest and valuable
assets and core competitive advantage of the Group. In
order to provide a good and fair working environment
and safeguards the well-being of the employees, the
Group seriously considers all those valuable opinions from
the employees for enhancing workplace productivity and
harmony.

The Group offers competitive remuneration, promotional
opportunity, compensation and benefit packages to attract
and retains talents. Salaries are reviewed and adjusted
on a yearly basis based on performance appraisals and
the market trend. Employees are entitled to discretionary
bonus, mandatory provident fund, medical insurance,
allowance for transportation, annual leave, sick leave,
maternity leave, paternity leave, compassionate leave,
marriage leave, jury duty leave and examination and study
leave. The Group also adopted a share option scheme
under which options are granted to eligible staff based on
individual performance.
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The Group strictly complies with applicable laws and
regulations in the localities of its operation, and the
relevant administrative rules and measures are strictly
enforced. These rules and regulations specify the
requirements relating to employment, labour relations,
employees’ remuneration, social insurances, housing fund
and mandatory provident fund and welfare to protect the
rights of employees.

Health and Safety

The Group strives to provide a safe and congenial
workplace for all employees. The Group also encourages
employees to take part in work-life balance activities and

community service.

To safeguard employees’ occupational health and safety,
we work hard to provide a safe, healthy and comfortable
working environment and have strictly complied with
regulations on occupational health and safety in Hong
Kong and the PRC. Employees are asked to stringently
abide by all safety rules and regulations, and utilise
available and applicable protection measures at all times
to avoid accidents and protect themselves and co-workers
from safety risks in accordance with the relevant laws
and regulations. The Company offers its employees
comprehensive health care coverage.

Development and Training

The Group promotes the personal development and
professional growth of its employees. The Group aims to
offer a learning atmosphere to its staff in enriching their
work practices. The Group also encourages the employees
to identify their own personal objectives for development,
allowing them to grow together with the Group.

In daily operations, the Group provides induction training
for new employees. Experienced employees will act
as mentors to guide the new comers on jobs. Such
arrangements can enhance the communication and team
spirit, also improve their technical skills and managerial
capability and encourage the learning and further
development of the employees at all levels. The Group
arranges the trainings designated according to the roles
and responsibilities of the employees. The Group also
updates the latest information of the industry and laws and
regulations which is essential to the Group’s operation and
their job responsibilities from time to time.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)
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Labour Standards

Review and verification of applicant’s identity information
is required during the recruitment process, and recruitment
of child labor is strictly prohibited. Every applicant is
also required to provide document proofs of academic
qualifications and working experience for verifications.
The Group enters employment contract with each of its
employee in accordance with relevant laws and regulations
in the PRC and Hong Kong and also prohibits forced labor.

Operating Practices

B5:

Supply Chain Management

To ensure the Group's product quality, only those approved
suppliers who have passed the Group’s quality control
tests and have a satisfactory record of quality and on-time
delivery were selected. To achieve this, all personnel with
supply chain management responsibilities are trained to
ensure, to the extent practicable, that selected suppliers
are legally compliant in respect of materials and products
provided to the Group.

Apart from continuously monitoring the quality of products
and materials procured with suppliers, the Group will also
review suppliers’ environmental and social responsibility-
related practices through, for example, site inspections and
interviews.
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Product Responsibility

The Company complies with various PRC regulations
relevant to the operation of its business in areas such
as health and safety, advertising, labelling and privacy
matters relating to its products and services. In addition
to following relevant laws and regulations, the Company
follows its own operating polices and rules including the
pre-installation checklist, client & contractor guide to
installing system and governs installation and maintenance
and after-sale service.

The Group has arranged sufficient channels and staffs for
customers to communicate and provide the solutions to
the problems as soon as possible.

Employees are encouraged to report any suspected
infringement. The Company will take corresponding anti-

infringement actions.

The Company employees are obligated to retain in
confidence any and all information obtained in connection
with their employment, including, but not limited to, trade
secrets, know how, client information, supplier information

and other proprietary information.

Anticorruption

All of the Group’s operations comply with local and
national legislation on standards of conduct, such as
with the Prevention of Bribery Ordinance in Hong Kong
and relevant legislation on anti-corruption and bribery in

mainland China.

The Group requires employees to strictly conform to code
of business ethics and put any corruption bribe behavior to
an end as stipulated in the employment contracts.

Community Investment

The Group is committed to being a responsible member
of the community and aims to make a positive impact on
the local community. The Group encourages employees to
participate in various voluntary events, creating a strong
social network and providing assistance and supports for
the people in need, which could provide an opportunity
for them to connect outside the workplace, and inspire
teambuilding experiences while contributing to the local
communities.

REXLot Holdings Limited fJZe-R #1ZR B R AR
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TING HO KWAN & CHAN

TO THE MEMBERS OF REXLOT HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of REXLot
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together,
the "Group”) set out on pages 71 to 203, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December
2016, and the consolidated income statement, and the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement
of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows
for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2016, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA")
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of
our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”)
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit
of the consolidated financial statements in Bermuda, and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independent Auditor’s Report
M % B Em *ﬁ =
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)
& ( &

VR BERE (&)

MATERIAL UNCERTAINTY RELATED TO GOING CONCERN
We draw attention to Notes 35 and 48 to the consolidated financial
statements, which indicate that the Company has not been able
to fulfill its redemption of the Bonds and payment obligations on
the specified due dates. To address these issues, the Company is
proceeding to obtain consent from the Bondholders to agree the
Proposals to extend the maturity date of CB2016 and the put bonds
redemption date to 28 April 2017, and to extend the 3rd anniversary
put option redemption date of CB2019 to 31 May 2017 so as to
enable the Company to satisfy its repayment obligations in relation
to the Bonds. The ultimate outcome of these matters could not be
assessed at the date of our report. As stated in Note 4B(a) to the
consolidated financial statements, these events or conditions, along
with other matters as set forth in Notes 35 and 48 indicate the
existence of a material uncertainty exists which may cast significant
doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. Our
opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. In addition to
the matter described in the Material Uncertainty Related to Going
Concern section, we have determined the matters described below to

be the key audit matters to be communicated in our report.

Key audit matters identified in our audit are summarised as follows:
° Revenue recognition

° Goodwill impairment assessment

o Impairment of

“Utility and other deposits” and “Prepayments

and other receivables”
. Presentation of an available-for-sale financial asset for the

Group's 42% equity interest held in a PRC entity instead of
treating it as an associate

REXLot Holdings Limited fJZe-R #1ZR B R AR
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)

Revenue recognition

Refer to note 5 to the consolidated financial statements

Key Audit Matter
BEETSBE

BYZBEBRE (F)

WARER
FLHEEMBRERMES

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BEPNEFNAEEFARETSH

Revenue is recognised when the risks and rewards of the
underlying products have been transferred to the customers or
when the services are rendered. We focused on this area due
to the huge volume of revenue transactions generated in many
locations and from various customers.
WARHEERZ AR REBREEBRER P L IRERBERRER -
BMEPRLER ARBARSGHMHEES TPRPRZACHEE
Ko

We identified the recognition of revenue as a key audit matter
because revenue is one of the key performance indicators of the
Group and because there is an inherent risk of manipulation of
the timing of recognition of revenue by management to meet
specific targets or expectations.
HMRBRAERRSBAREFFE ARKRAR ESEHEHS—
HEERXRER BSREEEREWAERREVEBUEE A
RRHEIE 2 B AR -

We understood, evaluated and tested management’s controls
in respect of the Group's sales transactions from contract
approval, recording of sales based on contract terms, through
reconciliations with cash receipts.

HMER TERAAEEEY EXREHEERHEE RE
AHEL BRAOGREHZHERUAERER W R2H

We selected samples of different customers at different
locations and tested the occurrence and accuracy of the revenue
recognised by examination of the sales contracts, invoices and
goods delivery notes to revenue recorded.
BPHRTRMEAIREFER REHESH EENERE
FEBEMEE WA MR ERWMAREHEEER
e

We checked that revenue had been recognised at the correct
time by testing a sample of transactions and comparing the
delivery dates with the dates on which the revenue had been
recognised.

BMBARARGER  LEEXHPEBERRAZ B EhkE
WA R 5 P I e B ) 3R o

We found that the Group's revenue recognition was consistent
with the terms of the sales contracts and the Group’s revenue
recognition accounting policy.

HFER SESEBEIZBAERHEESHERTRR
ANBERE T BUERET -

BEEEZW
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)
(

<5 =
BYUZEMmESE (&)
Goodwill impairment assessment EEREIR
Refer to notes 4A(a), 14, 17 and 19 to the consolidated financial BE2HERAVBHRERMELIAQ) 141719

statements

Key Audit Matter
BEETEE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BEMNESFNAEERREESSE

The Group has goodwill of HK$405,206,000 plus
HK$122,396,000 as at 31 December 2015 included in the
interests in joint ventures and HK$1,026,795,000 as at 31
December 2015 and 2016 included in the assets of the disposal
group classified as held for sale arising from acquisition of
investments in lottery business in prior year. There is significant
judgement involved in forecasting and discounting of future
cash flows, which is the basis of the assessment of the
recoverable amounts of goodwill that constitutes a material
portion of the Group's total assets.

EREER-—Z-RF+ = A=+—HHEER405206,000% T
MEEFTARE &2 #Z1122,396,0008 70 KT —HEF
MZZ2-RE+T-A=Z+—BFA AP BEAFKELEZLEER
ZAEMNMERR,026,7950008 T RABEFEREYE
¥ 2RE TR RMBRARBERE T HEHETKESE 2
ER - BERpRhEXRAE MEEEX EEHEEREZEEZ

5 -

REXLot Holdings Limited fJZe-R #1ZR B R AR

In evaluating the impairment of goodwill, we reviewed the value
in use calculations prepared by management and performed
various procedures including the following:

RAEEERER BMEENBEEERECEREENE
EOWETBEATEREZER:

° Testing the Group’s controls relating to the preparation of
the cash flow forecasts;
AE BEEEHRHERESREEA 2 BEE;

o Recomputation of the value in use of each cash generating
unit;
ENTEEReELBL 2 EREE:

o Assessing the valuation methodology;

FHEEER A

o Challenging the reasonableness of key assumptions on key
valuation factors including discount rates, growth rates,
periods cover and those contradicted the facts that come
to our notices during the course of audit;
REEHEAEZFTERRES AR BRERX R
K ORERRE UREFMNETERPHREASERB L
RERIEEA

o Reconciling input data to supporting evidence, such as
approved budgets and considering the reasonableness
of these budgets with reference to historical data and
available market information;
HRAEBREECHEHESIHERYER W2RE
EHERAES T HEN ZRZSAERSAE:



Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)

BYZBEBRE (F)

Goodwill impairment assessment (continued) EEREAR (&
Refer to notes 4A(a), 14, 17 and 19 to the consolidated financial BLMEZEAYBHRERME4AQ) 1417 R19(48)

statements (continued)

Key Audit Matter
BEETEE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BEMNEFNAEERREESSE

The impairment of goodwill was determined with reference to
the cash generating unit’s value in use, which is based on the
cash flow forecast for that cash generating unit or their fair
value less cost of disposal. Management has concluded that
impairment losses of HK$103,923,000 and HK$122,396,000
in respect of the goodwill of the Group and joint ventures
respectively were recognised during the year. This conclusion
was based on a value in use model that requires significant
management judgement and assumptions with respect to the
underlying cash flow forecasts, the discount rates and the
growth rates, which are highly subjective since they are based
on management’s experience and expectations rather than
observable market data.
FEZREN2RECELEN HREEET MEMAEE
ARG EFEU ReRERASKEAREREERERE
H-ERBHEL FARRE BEEERSECECHERHZ
BB E1E103,923,000/8 7T 12 122,396,000/ 7T © L 4845 LAE (B
ERALE ERREZEEREMREERSRERN  BRRE K RE
REEHERAGREBR BERERRE 2R KLIEH - IEA
BRMZEE RER/EH-

. Evaluating the independent external valuer's competency,
capacities and objectivity; and

B IMEMEM 2 B BN RBEIE R

o Performing sensitivity analysis on the growth rates and
discount rates to evaluate the extent of impact on the
value in use, which if not achieved, could reasonably be
expected to give rise to further impairment charges in the
future.

MRTERE A ERERERMREATABEELFEINRES
H - g R R AR RETERE AT - AR S R AE
B2HE-

We found the assumptions made by management in relation
to the value in use calculations or their fair value less cost of
disposal to be reasonable based on available evidence. The
significant inputs have been appropriately disclosed in Notes
4A(a), 14, 17 and 19.

REBAGER BMER ERERCREEFEEIEARE
M ERAEL ZREBEIE - [E4A@) 14 17 RI19EHERX
WABEFEDEERE-
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)
(

Z M ®mE (&)

B

Impairment of “Utility and other deposits” and “Prepayments

and other receivables”
Refer to notes 4A(b),
statements

Key Audit Matter
BEEEE

24 and 25 to the consolidated financial

[AAEERHEMES | R [ AHAFIERH & E ]
ZEE
B2HERAVBEHRERMFLAD) 24K 25

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BB NAEERAEESSE

The Group has “Utility and other deposits” and “Prepayments
and other receivables” as at 31 December 2016 amounting
to approximately HK$1,533,259,000 and approximately
HK$1,839,938,000 respectively.

BEEER T -—REFTA=Z+-HZI2AZEEREMES]
Ko [FEAMRIB N E th FE U R IR | 9 B 49 %1,533,259,0007 7T &
1,839,938,00078 7T ©

For the deposits paid, prepayments and other receivables,
management performed periodic credit monitoring, which
included the review of debtors’ creditworthiness, collection of
outstanding balances and individual credit terms or assessing
the appropriate level of investment projects which may be
ultimately materialised or withdrawn. For lottery project
deposits paid and prepayments, the impairment loss provisions
are a key area of judgement for management to assess the
appropriate level based on the management’s expectations
for future market conditions. The identification of impairment
and the determination of the recoverable amount are an
inherently uncertain process involving various assumptions and
factors including the financial condition of the counterparties
and the expected future cash flows. The use of different
assumptions could produce significantly different estimates
of the impairment loss provisions. For other receivables, if
there is indicator of impairment, management would make
specific allowance against individual balances with reference
to the recoverable amount. After the relevant assessment,
management considered to make an allowance for impairment
of other receivables amounting to HK$238,467,000 for the year.
HREMNZS FAHRAREMREKRIE  EBBEHETER
BER BEBRMNESAGE  WERERSEHRERERBER
FAEIRERE KRR ERIME 2@t - HRENERIER
RERE RIEFHFE  REBEREDERE B &
ARREBBEHARRT R TAH FERERE 2@ - 5
BB N EFE R E ¢ 5 BRFEREE NMEE M - P REERRK
FRZ BEXSGHFLUBRARTERRKRERE - ELHT
FRER AT E A B E I E 2 (AR R E A - B E A B YRR - 1
BERETS AEREg2RAIMDO S  HIERAMRGHIEEE
BE -MMEL AR ME  EREDATENF AR EAMmEKRFIA
FHRIRE #15238,467,0008 7T ©

64 REXLot Holdings Limited fZe-R #1Z R B R AR

Our procedures in relation to management’s impairment
assessment included:

BMABREEEREN G ZIETFRE:

o Testing and understanding the Group’s controls and
procedures on deposits paid, prepayments and other

receivables;
RH LR BEEHEMIRE  EHKIE R M E KR
B B RET:

o Testing cash flows to the bank statements on payment or
refund/settlement on deposits paid and prepayments with
proper authorisation and approval documents;
RBRITEER 2 ENIRS REHRBEBRNRIRREE
EHREREERERELXG EREREAH

o Testing on a sample basis, the accuracy of ageing profile
on other receivables;

FHAEORI BE A PR MORROR 7 R B R I

o Confirming the existence by obtaining direct confirmations
from debtors on material balances for deposits paid,
prepayments and other receivables and/or their repayment
terms;

HEMEBARRACNES AHFIALEMEWRRIAE
RESRRJEHBRIGH BRERTFE:

o Testing the recoverability and impairment assessment
by tracing the subsequent settlement to bank records
and testing the assumptions underlying the impairment
identification and quantification including the forecast
of future cash flows and reliability of management'’s past
estimates of recovery on default risk;

WERTTEE SRR At H 185 (B 50 8% - 48¢ORI & AT Uk (Bl 1 Rk 1B
FHEORE BRI R EBOREZ HARSR  BEARRRERE
TR AR B R EREEELNER 2 WEEHE R ST



Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)

Impairment of “Utility and other deposits” and “Prepayments

and other receivables” (continued)
Refer to notes 4A(b),
statements (continued)

Key Audit Matter
BEEEE

24 and 25 to the consolidated financial

BYZBEMBE (F)

[AAEERHEMES | R [ AHAFIERH & E ]
ZRAE (&)
BRHEA T RERMEAA() 242 25( %)

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BMNESFNAEERAEESSE

The audit was focused on this area, due to materiality of the
balances and subject to significant judgement of management.
B EHhRLERE RARLERERN WP REAEBERLZE
KA -

Evaluating management project assessment reports
including feasibility study or valuation model etc;
AAEREHEANARS  BEATHERRIEERR
=

. Challenging management on long outstanding receivables
and project status with updated information;
RERHNEHARPREEEYFIERIERRRERER
;

o Obtaining directors’ representation on assumptions and
basis in assessing the impairment provision; and

A REREZBRR N ELEEHESZEN R

o Obtaining board approval on lottery project deposits paid
and prepayments made during the year.
REAXNZEMNERBEB RS NIEHFIREHEST S
o

We consider management’s conclusion to be consistent with
available evidence obtained and the allowance for impairment
of other receivables and lottery project deposits paid and
prepayments have been appropriately disclosed.

BMRR ERE 2 BEEMASEBRMBR MM EKRIEUR
ENFRERRE RIEHREREREBEE BEMRE-
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)
(

BYZBE®BRE (F)

Presentation of an available-for-sale financial asset for the

Group's 42% equity interest held in a PRC entity instead of

treating it as an associate

Refer to notes 4B(b) and 20 to the consolidated financial statements

Key Audit Matter
HMEEEE

# BRER-ETEEBAF2%RENRTHE
ETREEMFFERABEQRAERRE

BB A W RKR M E4B(b) X 20

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BMNESFNAEEEARESSE

The Group has accounted for an unlisted investment of
HK$255,555,000 with about 42% effective equity interest held
in a PRC entity as an available-for-sale financial asset (“AFS")
and this AFS is stated at cost less any accumulated impairment
loss.

55 5 — il Bl B B P RE K942 % B BRIk 2 255,555,000
T ETREARINBAHEE SR EE - WK ARMEIA R
REEET K-

Judgement is required on adoption of appropriate accounting
policy and relevant accounting standards for this PRC entity.
Management has reassessed whether the Group would continue
to account for this PRC entity as AFS instead of treating this
PRC entity as an associate by applying the equity method. The
management concluded that the Group was unable to exercise
significant influence over PRC entity’'s management including
participation in the financial and operating policy after the
directors of this PRC entity, who were appointed by the Group,
withdrew their support. Accordingly, the Group continued to
recognise the investment in this PRC entity as an AFS which is
carried at cost less any accumulated impairment loss.
FZTEEERAES @A BRI ERAZ B A -
EBECDENNE ESEESEESZPEERARIIAA
HEELRMEE MIFEARDEEZTEERIEREE QARG
B-EREES KN BEEEMZEZZPEEEEEMOE
% EEEEIHTEERC2ERTREEAZEN BESH
BHkEERR- At BEEEERNZTEEEIRER
RRAHEESREE  RECRRER R REEESIR-

66 REXLot Holdings Limited #Zee #A%R B 2 7]

Our procedures in relation to management'’s critical judgements
in applying the Company’s accounting policies included:
BHMEBERERA SERARSAEREMEERAG 2EFE
EEE

o Understanding lottery contractual arrangement,
regulations and measures promulgated by the relevant
authorities in relation to paperless electronic lottery
distribution channels and industry practice through
discussion with management with relevant expertise;
FREEFEREEENENEREEETNG UBERYR
AR BN RAREAICEFEREERREMBMHZ
ER R ARITEER

o Challenging management’s assertion that the Group is
lack of significant influence over this PRC entity;

MERERAN BEXEYZTHEERIESAZENZ
BRRMELER:

o Assessing if the Group could or could not exercise
significant influence over the PRC entity in relation to
the matters set out in paragraphs 6(a) to (e) of HKAS 28,
Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures, given the
unique nature of the online lottery business in the PRC;
and
ERTEA LY REBLEE B  RREB LD [HOH
ERRAIREEREIZRE | 28R E6Q@E()BRMEAFH
FfE EEERSHZTREBTEEATEN R

o Obtained the Group’s management representation letter
that the Group does not have significant influence over
the management in daily operational and financial policy
decisions over this PRC entity since 1 January 2014 though
the Group holds approximately 42% effective equity
interest in this entity.

HEE BESEERETEEBONRERLE 1 S5E
B-Z-—MF-A-—ARHTHERATSERTBR
RATBEEATE N B SEEEREZERE-

We consider management’s recognition of the PRC entity and
its presentation as AFS to be consistent with available evidence
obtained.

BHMRAE BEEBSTHEREARENAAHEECHEENR
F{S BRAERT -



Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)

OTHER INFORMATION IN THE ANNUAL REPORT

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in annual report other
than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance

conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on
the work we have performed on the other information, we conclude
that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS AND THOSE
CHARGES WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
HKFRSs and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine
is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process.

VB ERE (&)
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)
(

BYyZBEHRE (F)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Our report is made solely to you,
as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies
Act 1981, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations or the override of

internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the

Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves

fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the Group audit. We remain solely responsible

for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters
that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence and,

where applicable, related safeguards.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)
(

BYZBEBRE (F)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such

communication.

The engagement director on the audit resulting in this independent

auditor’s report is Mr. Chan Shu Kin.

Ting Ho Kwan & Chan CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Chan Shu Kin

Practising Certificate Number: P01297

Hong Kong, 31 March 2017
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Consolidated Income Statement

AWK

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HEZZ—RF+_A=+—RHItFE

2016 2015
ZE-XF —E—AF
Notes HK$000 HK$000
i3 FHETT FET
Revenue PN 5 1,252,144 1,554,394
Cost of sales/services rendered HE IRERS 2R 22(b) (543,310) (506,718)
Other income EAb g A 5 30,222 93,720
Other gains and losses Hah R EE 5 (9,360) 34,043
Selling and distribution expenses  SH& &% 4% A (68,549) (72,999)
Impairment loss on goodwill HEBEERE 17 (103,923) (99,321)
Allowance for impairment of E A, fE WK TE R (B B
other receivables 25 (238,467) (57)
Administrative expenses THE R (415,000) (410,541)
Operating (loss)/profit e (B8 EF (96,243) 592,521
Finance costs MKEA 8 (132,257) (387,721)
Share of (losses)/profits of DREERE (BE) &
joint ventures 19 (187,591) 558
(Loss)/profit before taxation BREBLAT (BER),EF 9 (416,091) 205,358
Taxation 118 12 (29,898) (41,124)
(Loss)/profit for the year FE(FB) RF (445,989) 164,234
Attributable to: LA A AL :
Equity shareholders of KRR E=BRE
the Company (393,007) 150,879
Non-controlling interests SEVE IR = (52,982) 13,355
(445,989) 164,234
(Loss)/earnings per share for AATERBRREMN (BE) H5RZ
(loss)/profit attributable to BR(ER) BF
equity shareholders of the
Company 13
- Basic and diluted —ERREE (3.93) centsfl 1.51 centsfll
The notes on pages 79 to 203 are an integral part of these FBIIE203E  MFBAGEMBIHRE -5 -

consolidated financial statements.

Annual Report 2016 —Z—/"FF5 7 1



Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

HReEZzE R EX

For the year ended 31 December 2016 BHEZZ—RF+_A=+—HILFE

2016 2015
ZE-KF —ZE—hF
Note HK$000 HK$'000
M it FHET FET
(Loss)/profit for the year FE (BB HEF (445,989) 164,234
Other comprehensive expense  HfttZEBE X
Items that may be reclassified HigngeE o EsEas2EE
subsequently to profit or loss:
Exchange difference arising BRERIINEBUHBRREE 2
from translation of financial & ZE5
statements of foreign
operations (133,720) (101,948)
Share of other comprehensive DMEEECECHEMEEMY
expense of joint ventures 19 (9,207) (7,496)
Total other comprehensive Hith2HBAXEHE
expense (142,927) (109,444)
Total comprehensive (expense)/ FEZH (FX) WH#E5E
income for the year (588,916) 54,790
Attributable to: AT AL R :
Equity shareholders of ZN/NESI g
the Company (529,513) 47,957
Non-controlling interests FEIE A & (59,403) 6,833
(588,916) 54,790
The notes on pages 79 to 203 are an integral part of these BIIE203B 2MABARGEMIBRE —ZH -

consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
e B R OR X

At 31 December 2016 RZZE—RFE+ZA=+—H

2016 2015
ZE-XF —E—AF
Notes HK$'000 HK$000
i3 FHETT FET
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets EREBEE
Property, plant and equipment WE - BB KRR 15 46,633 59,271
Prepaid lease payments on + Hb {5 PR R 2 T R AT AR
land use rights 16 723 735
Goodwill RS 17 301,283 405,206
Intangible assets mREE 18 331 1,920
Interests in joint ventures REELEIER 79 169,266 377,614
Available-for-sale financial assets A E S RE E 20 288,806 307,810
Deferred tax assets REMIBEE 21 77 -
Total non-current assets ERBEERE 807,119 1,152,556
Current assets REBEE
Inventories =8 22 7,956 23,494
Trade receivables FEWE Z R 23 490,836 760,152
Utility and other deposits AAEERAMES 24 1,533,259 1,600,474
Prepayments and other receivables ¥8#§ 7k 18 K £ i e Ut 3018 25 1,839,938 1,795,121
Financial assets at fair value BBABREAAEHEZERMEE
through profit or loss 26 132 63,935
Cash and bank balances e RIRITHE S 27 2,136,962 1,098,073
6,009,083 5,341,249
Assets of the disposal group AEARFELHEZHEAR 2 EE
classified as held for sale 14 2,295,597 2,236,663
Total current assets MEBEEHRE 8,304,680 7,577,912
Total assets EEH#E 9,111,799 8,730,468
EQUITY s
Capital and reserves ENTEERRELEERNRHE
attributable to equity
shareholders of the Company
Share capital N 29 100,285 99,835
Reserves B 31 5,356,049 5,871,322
5,456,334 5,971,157
Non-controlling interests FIERER 54,843 114,246
Total equity AR 5,511,177 6,085,403
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (continued)

REMBERRK (&)

At 31 December 2016 RZZE—RFE+ZA=+—H

2016 2015
—B-RF —E-AF
Notes HK$000 HK$'000
i3 FET FET
LIABILITIES =R
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Amount due to a joint venture ER—RH& & ERE 19 46,195 46,195
Deferred tax liabilities BEERIBEAE 21 163,245 155,857
Convertible bonds Al 2 j% 15 5 35 201,740 250,773
Obligations under finance leases @& M & & 36 - 8,867
Total non-current liabilities TP BERRE 411,180 461,692
Current liabilities REBAE
Trade payables FERTE 5 BRR 32 1,801 2,728
Other payables and accruals E i B FRIE R FE BT FRIB 33 77,271 64,311
Bank borrowings RITIEE 34 4,901 -
Current portion of ARKRES 2 REB IS
convertible bonds 35 1,431,040 1,824,629
Obligations under finance leases  EtEMEFEH 36 8,268 17,038
Amounts due to related parties FE < B B U7 SR IE 44 1,259,967 118,000
Current tax liabilities EHHIEAE 2,211 3,051
2,785,459 2,029,757
Liabilities directly associated with B3 EAFIEHE 2 HEMAR Z
the assets of the disposal group BEERNEBEZAE
classified as held for sale 14 403,983 153,616
Total current liabilities mEBEER 3,189,442 2,183,373
Total liabilities =REE R 3,600,622 2,645,065
Total equity and liabilities EEREEAE 9,111,799 8,730,468
Net current assets REBEEFE 5,115,238 5,394,539
Total assets less current liabilities #MEERRBERE 5,922,357 6,547,095

The consolidated financial statements were approved and authorised
for issue by the Board on 31 March 2017 and are signed on behalf of

the Board by:

Chan How Chung, Victor

BRZH
DIRECTOR
ey

The notes on pages 79 to 203 are an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.
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Boo Chun Lon
ik BE
DIRECTOR
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
RMEERES D X

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HEZZ—RF+_A=+—RHItFE

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

ARARERAEE
Share-
Capital ~ Convertible based Exchange Proposed Non-
Share Share  redemption bonds payment  translation Retained final controlling Total
capital premium reserve reserve reserve reserve profits dividend Total interests equity
Bx TER  UREXA BE
e ROEE RERE BEfRE  RERE EXRE REEA AERE A HERES RHAE
HKS 000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000
A i i 7# b A FEr FEr FEr T
Balance at 1 January 2015 99,600 4,002,373 3,025 415,039 8,403 105,937 1,292,522 79,680 6,006,579 133,527 6,140,106
Profit for the year R - - - - - - 150,879 - 150,879 13,355 164,234
Other comprehensive expense for the year FREMZARY - - - - - (102922) - - (102,922) (6522) (109,444)
Total comprehensive income/(expense) 2EKE/ (B%) 88 - - - - - (102,922) 150,879 - 47,957 6,833 54,790
Dividend paid to non-controlling interests BiRfEERERRS - - - - - - - - - (26,114) (26,114)
Total changes in ownership interests EEEEREYAE - - - - - - - - - (26,114) (26,114)
Lapse of share options BREXH - - - - (2,074 - 2,074 - - - -
Redemption of convertible bonds (Note 35) BRI &K fE# (Jf3#35) - - - (20,752) - - 6,261 - (14,491) - (14,491)
2014 proposed final dividend paid 235 10,557 - - - - - (79,680 (68,888) - (68,888)
Total contributions and distributions 235 10,557 - (20.752) (2,074) - 8335 (79,680) (83,379) - (83,379)
Total transactions with owners of BRRAREAR LR
the Company 235 10,557 - (20,752) (2,074) - 8,335 (79,680) (83,379) (26,114) (109,493)
Balance at 31 December 2015 RZZ-RFtZA=t-R2&8 99,835 4,012,930 3,025 394,287 6329 3,015 1,451,736 - 597,157 114,246 6,085,403
Balance at 31 December 2015 and
1 January 2016 99,835 4,012,930 3,025 394,287 6329 3,015 1,451,736 - 597,157 114,246 6,085,403
Loss for the year FEEE - - - - - (393,007) - (393,007) (52,982) (445,989)
Other comprehensive expense for the year FEEMZERY - - - - - (136,506) - - (136,506) (6,421) (142,927)
Total comprehensive expense 2ERXEE - - - - - (136,506) (393,007) - (529,513) (59,403) (588,916)
Recognition of share option benefit at fair value 72/t E M B EREF - - - - 10,367 - - - 10367 - 10,367
Issue of new share BTN 450 4419 - - - - - - 4869 - 4,869
Transfer to share premium on exercise of share A7 EEREMEAZRIVEE
option - 1314 - - (1,314) - - - - - -
Lapse of share options BRERN - - - - (6,329) - 6,329 - - - -
Redemption of convertible bonds (Note 35)  FEE1AT & (13£35) - - - (89,030) - - 88,484 - (546) - (546)
Total contributions, distributions and HE ARMREARTREA
transactions with owners of the Company RH4E 450 5,733 - (89,030) 2,724 - 94,813 - 14,690 - 14,690
Balance at 31 December 2016 RZB-RE+ZA=t-B2&H 100,285 4,018,663* 3,025% 305,257% 9,053% (133,491) 1,153,542* - 5,456,334 54,843 5511177
* These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of * ZEREROBGSHBMNAERAZEEFEL
approximately HK$5,356,049,000 in the consolidated statement of 5,356,049,000/& 7t °
financial position.
The notes on pages 79 to 203 are an integral part of these E7IE203B M ABAGE M BRI —2H -

consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

REBRERE X

For the year ended 31 December 2016 BHEZZ—RF+_A=+—HILFE

2016 2015
—E-XF —E—AF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Bt FETT FET
OPERATING ACTIVITIES REE
(Loss)/profit for the year FE(BR),/HF (445,989) 164,234
Adjustments for: FHEIER :
Taxation HIA 12 29,898 41,124
Interest income FLEMA 5 (14,454) (2,923)
Interest expense FEMAX 8 132,257 387,721
Share of losses/(profits) of DIEEEERBE, CaF)
joint ventures 19 187,591 (558)
Employee share option benefits 12 8 s A 12 A 30 10,367 -
Impairment loss on goodwill AEREEE 17 103,923 99,321
Intangible assets written off B B 9 1,011 -
Allowance for impairment of H h FE YR T R B B R
other receivables 25 238,467 57
Write-down of inventories 5 & #WOR 9 31,085 1,529
Depreciation and amortisation e R#H 9 61,990 64,691
Loss/(gain) on redemption of EEARRESEZEER, (W)
convertible bonds 5 6,151 (1,013)
Loss on disposal of property, HEVME BERIEZEBRFSE
plant and equipment, net 9 499 128
Dividend income from listed EWHREZREKRA
investments 5 - (61)
Dividend income from unlisted FEEMREZREBA
investment 5 - (78,185)
Net losses/(gains) on disposal of HEMBABRSRANEAEZ
financial assets at fair value CREEZEE (W) FE
through profit or loss 5 2,060 (25,780)
Fair value losses/(gains) on BRBREAAENE
financial assets at fair value TMEEZANE
through profit or loss BB, (fa=) 5 1,149 (7,250)
Exchange differences IEH =% 5,017 4,451
Operating cash flows before KR EEESBRBAZRERERE
changes in working capital 351,022 647,486
Changes in working capital EEESEH
Decrease in financial assets at fair BBEZEAALBNEZ
value through profit or loss ERMEERD 60,594 22,197
Decrease in bank balance — RITHERRL —BILERP
segregated accounts 330 2
Increase in inventories FEE M (6,950) (5,702)
Decrease in trade receivables FEWE 5 RO 272,560 52,085
Decrease in utility and other TREERAMZSRD
deposits 65,759 37,476
Increase in prepayments and other B & 7K B K H b & U 3 1 A0
receivables (309,906) (470,491)
Increase in trade payables FERTE 5 BRFIE N 9,518 14,177
Increase/(decrease) in other E i B FRIE & FE BT FRIB
payables and accruals s CRd) 187,545 (57,682)
Net cash generated from REEBFIBREFHE
operations 630,472 239,548
Interest received 2 A S 14,454 2,923
Interest paid EFE (99,421) (113,864)
Taxation paid [=ENE2E! (22,153) (29,669)
Net cash generated from REXBMBREER
operating activities 523,352 98,938
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (continued)

HERETREXR (F)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HEZZ—RF+_A=+—RHItFE

2016 2015
—B-AF —T-hHF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Bt i FET FET
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REEZH
Purchases of property, plant and BEME WERKE
equipment (25,683) (59,294)
Addition of prepaid lease 3 hN 4 b {5 A M 2 TR AR
payments on land use rights (2,958) -
Deposit paid for acquisition of RUEEEEFEI N2 ES
leasehold building (169,059) (452)
Decrease/(increase) in fixed bank  FHIRITER R A (i)
deposits 27 491,429 (491,429)
Payment for acquisition of BRI EE N RIE
intangible assets (153) -
Proceeds on disposal of property, HEWE BEKZEMERE
plant and equipment 783 34
Investment refund from available- A#tHESRMEEREER
for-sale financial asset 20 1,305 -
Dividend received from BER—HEEELERE
a joint venture 19 11,550 -
Dividend received from listed Bl EmIRERE
investments - 61
Dividend received from BRI LETHRE RS
unlisted investment - 78,185
Deposit received for disposal of RHEHERFIELREZEER
assets and liabilities held for sale & @&WEIZE 44 622,100 -
Purchase of an available-for-sale B E —Ba#LEScmHEE
financial asset 20 (556) -
Net cash generated from/ REZHMB,/ (FR)RELFE
(used in) investing activities 928,758 (472,895)

Annual Report 2016 —Z—/ <44 77



78

Conso|io|ofec| Statement of Cash Flows (continued)

HEBRERER (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZEZT

—RFTZA=+—HILFE

2016 2015
—E-RE BT
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
i3 FET FHET
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Issue of shares, BITIR (D (FOBREEITRAAN)
net of issuing costs 29 4,869 -
Payments for redemption of BLRE [ ] $2 AR (E 5 2 TR IE
convertible bonds (482,155) (112,385)
Net advance from a shareholder H—R2RRANERFE
loan 162,000 118,000
Net advance from related parties  FH B35 5 2214 JRIEF &8 44 357,867 -
Proceeds from bank borrowings fﬁﬁ%éﬁﬁﬁmlﬁ 145,831 71,429
Repayment of bank borrowings EEd (70,141) (87,500)
Repayment of obligations under BiE
finance leases (16,652) (16,541)
Dividend paid to IR 1< 3F 722 PR R 2 IR
non-controlling interests - (26,114)
Dividend paid - (68,888)
Net cash generated from/ METBRE (A RELFE
(used in) financing activities 101,619 (121,999)
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) RERRESEEY
IN CASH AND CASH #wh Rd) FE
EQUIVALENTS 1,553,729 (495,956)
Exchange loss on cash and cash RekReFEY ERLEE
equivalents (67,713) (45,712)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS R—B—HZRERELZEEY
AT 1 JANUARY 751,032 1,292,700
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS R+=-A=+—-HZELK
AT 31 DECEMBER 27 2,237,048 751,032

The notes on pages 79 to 203 are an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mE MK ®R KK

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HEZZ—RF+_A=+—RHItFE

GENERAL INFORMATION

REXLot Holdings Limited (the “Company”) was incorporated
in Bermuda as an exempted company with limited liability. The
principal place of business of the Company is located at Suite
2601, 26/F., Sino Plaza, 255-257 Gloucester Road, Causeway
Bay, Hong Kong.

Pursuant to a group reorganisation scheme to rationalise the
structure of the Company and its subsidiaries (together, the
"Group”) in preparing for the listing of the Company’s shares
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the "Stock
Exchange”), the Company became the holding company of the
Group in Hong Kong on 15 August 2000 and its shares were
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange with effect from
28 September 2000.

The Group is principally engaged in lottery business comprising
development and production of lottery machines, related
operating software system and networks for lottery industry, the
distribution and marketing of lottery products and development
of paperless electronic lottery platform for lottery business in the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC").

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a) Statement of compliance
These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs"), which collective
term includes all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
("HKASs") and Interpretations (“Int") issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA"),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. These consolidated financial statements also
comply with the applicable disclosure provisions of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”). A
summary of the significant accounting policies adopted by
the Group is set out below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new HKFRSs and
amendments to HKFRSs that are first effective for
the current accounting period of the Group and the
Company. Note 3 provides information on any changes
in accounting policies resulting from initial application of
these developments to the extent that they are relevant
to the Group for the current and prior accounting periods
reflected in these consolidated financial statements.

— &R
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MR EREBREERR ARAZEE
&M B P B B IR 8 5 T 38255-257 513
MEH261E2601% -
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BRBUSHEARRBRNNEERARXZM
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ZHNBRAEERZAER e

FEBETIZNERRER MEXEERS/ENT
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M2 RIS R AR BERYEEG 2 BR

EEFHETFA:
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(RAEED)) 2 RERERRE - LFHES
BBRERATAEEMARIMERAA
Er EmRA (T ETRRN) 2 ERWER
E-AEBERBZIEGABREMIRT
Xo

ERGHMASERME THAITEYH
WERARBEEVHREER ZER] > ZF
ERIREFTRAEE RARA Z A& H
BB R - M EE3ME AR R A EIRE
Rt EERNERMENR 2 BT BEE

MitSEERNERRESEHBRRRBRZ A
SRR IB TSI R AR E A -

Annual Report 2016 —Z—/"FF5

79



80

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

EMBHRRME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HZEZT

2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(b)

Basis of preparation of the consolidated financial
statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2016 comprise the Company, its subsidiaries
and the Group's interests in joint ventures.

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements is the historical cost basis
except that financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss (Note 2(e)(i)) are stated at their fair values.

Non-current assets and disposal groups held for sale are
stated at the lower of carrying amount and fair value less
costs to sell (see Note 2(x)).

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in
conformity with HKFRSs requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the
applicable of policies and reported amounts of assets,
liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical experience
and various other factors that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which
form the basis of making the judgements about carrying
values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. Actual results may differ from these

estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised
if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of
the revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and futures periods.

Judgements made by management in the application of
HKFRSs that have significant effect on the consolidated
financial statements and estimates with a significant risk of
material adjustment in the next year are discussed in Note 4.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

MBEHRRKE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HEZZ—RF+_A=+—RHItFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(b)

(9

Basis of preparation of the consolidated financial
statements (continued)

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars ("HKD” or “HK$") while the functional
currency of the Company is Hong Kong dollars and the
functional currency of the Company’s principal subsidiaries
is Renminbi (“RMB"). The directors of the Company (the
“Directors”) consider the presentation currency in HKD
is more useful for its current and potential investors. All
values are rounded to the nearest thousand except where
otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation

(i)  Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests
Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The
Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has
rights, to variable returns from its involvement with
the entity and has the ability to affect those returns
through its power over the entity. When assessing
whether the Group has power, only substantive rights
(held by the Group and other parties) are considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that
control commences until the date that control ceases.
Intra-group balances, transactions and cash flows
and any unrealised profits arising from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in full in preparing the
consolidated financial statements. Unrealised losses
resulting from intra-group transactions are eliminated
in the same way as unrealised gains but only to the
extent that there is no evidence of impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a
subsidiary not attributable directly or indirectly to
the Company, and in respect of which the Group has
not agreed any additional terms with the holders of
those interests which would result in the Group as
a whole having a contractual obligation in respect
of those interests that meets the definition of a
financial liability. For each business combination,
the Group can elect to measure any non-controlling
interests either at fair value or at the non-controlling
interests’ proportionate share of the subsidiary’s net
identifiable assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

REMBHRRME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 BEZZ—RF+_A=+—HIFE

2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(9

Basis of consolidation (continued)

()

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests
(continued)

Non-controlling interests are presented in the
consolidated statement of financial position within
equity, separately from equity attributable to the
equity shareholders of the Company. Non-controlling
interests in the results of the Group are presented
on the face of the consolidated income statement
and the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income as an allocation of the total profit or loss and
total comprehensive income or expense for the year
between non-controlling interests and the equity
shareholders of the Company. Loans from holders
of non-controlling interests and other contractual
obligations towards these holders are presented as
financial liabilities in the consolidated statement of
financial position in accordance with Notes 2(n), 2(o)
or 2(p) depending on the nature of the liability.

Changes in the Group's interest in a subsidiary that
do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as
equity transactions, whereby adjustments are made
to the amounts of controlling and non-controlling
interests within consolidated equity to reflect the
change in relative interests, but no adjustments are
made to goodwill and no gain or loss is recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is
accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in
that subsidiary, with a resulting gain or loss being
recognised in profit or loss. Any interest retained in
that former subsidiary at the date when control is
lost is recognised at fair value and this amount is
regarded as the fair value on initial recognition of a
financial asset (see Note 2(e)) or, when appropriate,
the cost on initial recognition of an investment in a

joint venture (see Note 2(c)(ii)).

In the Company's statement of financial position,
investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less
impairment losses, unless the investments are
classified as held for sale (or included in a disposal
group that is classified as held for sale). The results of
subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on the
basis of dividend received and receivable.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HZEZZ

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Basis of consolidation (continued)
(ii) Joint ventures

A joint venture is an arrangement whereby the Group
or Company and other parties contractually agree to
share control of the arrangement, and have rights to
the net assets of the arrangement.

An investment in a joint venture is accounted for
in the consolidated financial statements under the
equity method, unless it is classified as held for sale
(or included in a disposal group that is classified
as held for sale). Under the equity method, the
investment is initially recorded at cost, adjusted for
any excess of the Group’s share of the acquisition-
date fair values of the investee's identifiable net
assets over the cost of the investment (if any).
Thereafter, the investment is adjusted for the
post acquisition change in the Group’s share of
the investee’s net assets and any impairment loss
relating to the investment (see Notes 2(d) and 2(i)).
Any acquisition-date excess over cost, the Group's
share of the post-acquisition, post-tax results of the
investees and any impairment losses for the year are
recognised in the consolidated income statement,
whereas the Group’s share of the post-acquisition
post-tax items of the investees’ other comprehensive
income is recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.

When the Group's share of losses exceeds its interest
in the joint venture, the Group’s interest is reduced
to nil and recognition of further losses is discontinued
except to the extent that the Group has incurred legal
or constructive obligations or made payments on
behalf of the investee. For this purpose, the Group's
interest is the carrying amount of the investment
under the equity method together with the Group’s
long-term interests that in substance form part of the

Group's net investment in the joint venture.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

REMBHRRME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 BHEZZ—RF+_A=+—HIFE

2.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(c) Basis of consolidation (continued)
(ii) Joint ventures (continued)
Unrealised profits and losses resulting from
transactions between the Group and its joint venture
are eliminated to the extent of the Group's interest in
the investee, except where unrealised losses provide
evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred, in
which case they are recognised immediately in profit

or loss.

When the Group ceases to have joint control over
a joint venture, it is accounted for as a disposal of
the entire interest in that investee, with a resulting
gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss. Any
interest retained in that former investee at the date
when joint control is lost is recognised at fair value
and this amount is regarded as the fair value on initial
recognition of a financial asset (see Note 2(e)).

In the company’s statement of financial position,
investments in joint ventures are stated at cost less
impairment losses, unless classified as held for sale
(or included in a disposal group that is classified as
held for sale).

(d) Goodwill
Goodwill represents the excess of:

(i)  the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interest in the acquiree and the fair value of the
Group’'s previously held equity interest in the

acquiree; over

(i)  the Group's interest in the net fair value of the
acquiree’s identifiable assets and liabilities measured
as at the acquisition date.

When (ii) is greater than (i), then this excess is recognised

immediately in profit or loss as a gain on a bargain
purchase.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e BBERME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HEZZ—RF+_A=+—RHItFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(d)

(e)

Goodwill (continued)

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated impairment
losses. Goodwill arising on a business combination is
allocated to each cash-generating unit, or groups of cash-
generating units, that is expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination and is tested annually for
impairment (Note 2(i)).

On disposal of a cash-generating unit, any attributable
amount of the purchased goodwill is included in the
calculation of profit or loss on disposal.

Financial assets

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following
categories: at fair value through profit or loss, loans
and receivables and available-for-sale financial assets.
The classification depends on the purpose for which the
financial assets were acquired. Management determines
the classification of its financial assets at initial recognition.

(i)  Financial assets at fair value through profit or

loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
financial assets held for trading and are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at fair
value. A financial asset is classified in this category if
acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the
short-term. Derivatives are also categorised as held
for trading unless they are designated as hedges.
Assets in this category are classified as current assets.
Any attributable transaction cost and gain or loss on
the fair value changes of financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss are recognised in profit or loss.

2. EEEFEHE(E)

(d) BE(E)
BERRARRFREBRK XBE
HELZHEEIEERPBEXEREH
BRAEzSBEReELENRREES
BMAR e FETRER (E
2(i)) »

HERSELBEMUR BEHEZEME
HEREFALHERZ-

TREE

AEBEREREED RATERN BBER
BRANEABZEREE ERLEK
REBARAHHESREE -2 EIER
RRBAZHMEEZAN -EEEEV S
EAREBETEMEEZN R

(e)

(i) BERBEAAENBZEZHEE

BRESEAAEHEZENEER
RAFEEABZEREE TRA
RERGEE P BRI - HEBEA
EREEZENIZANEHNAN
E RAZEEREED BRUER -
BOETAETAWEEHEERAE &
AITEn BABAEEEZTAT
B WBHNEEDBRRDEE T
MEEXZRARBBRERANE
AEZEREEZANABEEBKER
BRI EBRRER -

Annual Report 2016 —Z—/"FF5

85



86

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

EMBHRRME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZEZT

2.

—RFTZA=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(e) Financial assets (continued)
(ii) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market. They are included
in current assets, except for maturities greater than
12 months after the end of the reporting period
which are classified as non-current assets. Loans and
receivables are subsequently carried at amortised
cost using the effective interest method. The Group's
loans and receivables comprise ‘trade receivables,
deposits and other receivables’ and ‘cash and bank
balances’ in the consolidated statement of financial
position (Notes 2(k) and 2(1)).

(iii) Available-for-sale financial assets

Investments other than those held for trading and
held to maturity are classified as available-for-sale
financial assets and are stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at fair value, which
is their transaction price including attributable
transaction costs. Gain or loss on fair value changes
of available-for-sale financial assets is recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated
separately in equity in the fair value reserve, except
for impairment losses and foreign exchange gains and
losses resulting from changes in the amortised cost
of monetary items such as debt securities which are
recognised directly in profit or loss.

When the available-for-sale financial assets are
derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss is
reclassified from equity to profit or loss. Where the
available-for-sale financial assets are interest-bearing,
interest calculated using the effective interest method

is recognised in profit or loss.

When a decline in the fair value of an available-for-
sale financial asset has been recognised in equity and
there is objective evidence that the asset is impaired
(see Note 2(i)), the cumulative loss is recognised from
equity to profit or loss even though the financial
assets have not been derecognised.

Investments are recognised/derecognised on the date
the Group commits to purchase/sell the investments
or they expire.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

eV BBERRME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HEZZ—RF+_A=+—RHItFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 2. EEEHBER(E)
(e) Financial assets (continued) (e) SRWEE(E)
(iii) Available-for-sale financial assets (continued) (i) THHESHBEE (&)

The amount of the cumulative loss that is removed
from equity and reclassified to profit or loss is the
difference between the acquisition cost (net of any
principal repayment and amortisation) and current
fair value, less any impairment loss on those financial

assets previously recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment losses recognised in profit or loss for
an investment in an equity instrument classified as
available-for-sale are not reversed through profit or
loss. Any subsequent increase in the fair value of
such investment is recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated separately in equity in the
fair value reserve. If, in a subsequent period, the fair
value of a debt instrument classified as available-
for-sale increases and the increase can be objectively
related to an event occurring after the impairment
loss was recognised in profit or loss, the impairment
loss is reversed, with the amount of the reversal
recognised in profit or loss. Impairment losses are
written off against the corresponding investments
directly.

Investments in unquoted equity instruments whose
fair value cannot be reliably measured and derivatives
that are linked to and must be settled by delivery of
such unquoted equity instruments, are measured at
cost less any impairment losses. If there is objective
evidence that an impairment loss has been incurred
on such instrument, the amount of impairment loss
is measured as the difference between its carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future
cash flows discounted at the current market rate
of return for a similar instrument. Such impairment

losses are not reversed.

Fair value of an instrument on initial recognition is
normally the transaction price, unless it is estimated
by using a valuation technique when part of the
consideration given or received is for something other
than the investment.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

EMBHRRME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HZEZT

2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(e)

()

Financial assets (continued)

(iii) Available-for-sale financial assets (continued)
After initial recognition, the fair value of an

investment quoted in an active market is based

on the current bid price and, for investments not

quoted in an active market, the Group establishes

the fair value of such investment by using a valuation

technique.

Valuation techniques include using recent arm’s
length market transactions between knowledgeable
willing parties, if available, by reference to the current
fair value of another instrument that is substantially
the same, discounted cash flows analysis and option
pricing models.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at historical
cost less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated
impairment losses (Note 2(i)). Historical cost includes
expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition
of the items. Cost may also include transfers from equity of
any gains/losses on qualifying cash flow hedges of foreign

currency purchases of property, plant and equipment.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All other
repairs and maintenance are charged to profit or loss
during the financial period in which they are incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e BBERME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HEZZ—RF+_A=+—RHItFE

2.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(f)

(9)

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated sufficient to
write off their costs, less accumulated impairment losses
and residual values, if any, using the straight-line method
over their estimated useful lives. The principal annual rates
used for this purpose are as follows:

Leasehold buildings 30 - 50 years
Leasehold improvements 20%
Lottery machines 4 - 12 years
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 6-33%
Plant and machinery 10 - 25%
Motor vehicles 10 - 20%

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of the item is allocated
on a reasonable basis between the parts and each part is
depreciated separately.

The assets’ residual values, if any and useful lives are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each
reporting period. An item of property, plant and equipment
is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of
the asset. The gain or loss on derecognition of an item of
property, plant and equipment, calculated as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the item, is included in profit or loss in the
period the item is derecognised.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately
to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is
greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

Prepaid lease payments on land use rights

Prepaid lease payments on land use rights are lump sum
upfront payments to acquire long-term interest in lessee-
occupied properties.

Prepaid lease payments on land use rights relating to
buildings of the Group are stated at cost and are amortised
over the period of the lease on the straight-line basis which
is charged to profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

REMBHRRME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 BHEZZ—RF+_A=+—HIFE

2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(h)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

On initial recognition, intangible assets acquired are
recognised at cost. After initial recognition, intangible
assets with finite useful lives are carried at costs
less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated
impairment losses (Note 2(i)). Amortisation of intangible
assets with finite useful lives is charged to profit or loss
on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives.
Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are carried at
cost less any subsequent accumulated impairment losses.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible
asset are measured as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset
and are recognised in profit or loss when the asset is
derecognised.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for
impairment annually by comparing their carrying amounts
with their recoverable amounts, irrespective of whether
there is any indication that they may be impaired. If the
recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be less than
its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset is
reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognised as an expense immediately.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, but the increased
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that
would have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e BBERME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HEZZ—RF+_A=+—RHItFE

2.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(h)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill) (continued)

Intangible assets with finite useful lives are tested for

impairment when there is an indication that an asset may

be impaired.

()

(ii)

(iii)

Computer software

Acquired computer software licences are capitalised
on the basis of the costs incurred to acquire and
bring to use the specific software. These costs are
amortised over their estimated useful lives of 2 to 10
years.

Costs associated with developing or maintaining
computer software programmes are recognised as
expenses as incurred.

Deferred development cost

Expenditure incurred on projects to develop computer
software is capitalised and deferred only when
the projects are clearly defined; the expenditure is
separately identifiable and can be measured reliably;
there is reasonable certainty that the projects
are technically feasible, and the products have
commercial value. Product development expenditure
which does not meet these criteria is expensed when
incurred.

Deferred development costs are stated at cost less
accumulated amortisation and any accumulated
impairment losses (Note 2(i)). Amortisation is
provided on the straight-line basis over the
commercial lives of the underlying production,
subject to a maximum of 20 years commencing from
the date when the products are put into commercial

production.

Operating right

Operating right represents expenditure incurred on
obtaining an operating right in a lottery centre. The
operating right is carried at cost less any accumulated
impairment losses and amortised over its estimated
useful life of 6 years.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

REMBHRRME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 BHEZZ—RF+_A=+—HIFE

2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(M

Impairment of assets

()

Impairment of investments in equity securities
and other receivables

Investments in equity securities and other current
and non-current receivables that are stated at cost
or amortised cost or classified as available-for-sale
financial assets are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period to determine whether there is
objective evidence of impairment. Objective evidence
of impairment includes observable data that comes to
the attention of the Group about one or more of the
following loss events:

- significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

- a breach of contract, such as a default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments;

- it becomes probable that the debtor will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;

- significant changes in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment that have an
adverse effect on the debtor; and

- a significant or prolonged decline in the fair
value of an investment in an equity instrument

below its cost.

If any such evidence exists, any impairment loss is
determined and recognised as follows:

- For investments in joint ventures accounted for
under the equity method in the consolidated
financial statements (see Note 2(c)(ii)), the
impairment loss is measured by comparing the
recoverable amount of the investment as a
whole with its carrying amount in accordance
with Note 2(i)(ii) below. The impairment loss
is reversed if there has been a favourable

change in the estimates used to determine the

recoverable amount in accordance with Note

2(i)(ii) below.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e BBERME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HEZZ—RF+_A=+—RHItFE

2.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(i) Impairment of assets (continued)

(i) Impairment of investments in equity securities

and other receivables (continued)

For unquoted equity securities carried at
cost, the impairment loss is measured as the
difference between the carrying amount of the
financial asset and the estimated future cash
flows, discounted at the current market rate
of return for a similar financial asset where the
effect of discounting is material. Impairment
losses for equity securities carried at cost are
not reversed.

For trade and other current receivables and
other financial assets carried at amortised
cost, the impairment loss is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of estimated future
cash flows, discounted at the financial asset's
original effective interest rate (i.e. the effective
interest rate computed at initial recognition of
these assets), where the effect of discounting
is material. This assessment is made collectively
where these financial assets share similar risk
characteristics, such as similar past due status,
and have not been individually assessed as
impaired. Future cash flows for financial assets
which are assessed for impairment collectively
are based on historical loss experience for assets
with credit risk characteristics similar to the
collective group.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of an
impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be linked objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment loss was recognised, the
impairment loss is reversed through profit or
loss. A reversal of an impairment loss shall not
result in the asset’s carrying amount exceeding
that which would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised in prior years.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

REMBHRRME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 BHEZZ—RF+_A=+—HIFE

2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(i) Impairment of assets (continued)

(i) Impairment of investments in equity securities

and other receivables (continued)

For available-for-sale securities, the cumulative
loss that has been recognised in the fair value
reserve is reclassified to profit or loss. The
amount of the cumulative loss that is recognised
in profit or loss is the difference between the
acquisition cost (net of any principal repayment
and amortisation) and current fair value, less
any impairment loss on that asset previously
recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment losses recognised in profit or loss
in respect of available-for-sale equity securities
are not reversed through profit or loss. Any
subsequent increase in the fair value of such
assets is recognised in other comprehensive

income.

Impairment losses in respect of available-for-
sale debt securities are reversed if the increase
in fair value can be objectively related to an
event occurring after the impairment loss was
recognised. Reversals of impairment losses in
such circumstances are recognised in profit or
loss.

Impairment losses are written off against
the corresponding assets directly, except for
impairment losses recognised in respect of
trade and other receivables, whose recovery
is considered doubtful but not remote. In this
case, the impairment losses for doubtful debts
are recorded using an allowance account. When
the Group is satisfied that recovery is remote,
the amount considered irrecoverable is written
off against trade and other receivables directly
and any amounts held in the allowance account
relating to that debt are reversed. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously charged to
the allowance account are reversed against
the allowance account. Other changes in the
allowance account and subsequent recoveries
of amounts previously written off directly are
recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e BBERME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HEZZ—RF+_A=+—RHItFE

2.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(i) Impairment of assets (continued)

(ii)

Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period to
identify indications that the following assets may
be impaired or, except in the case of goodwill, an
impairment loss previously recognised no longer

exists or may have decreased:

- property, plant and equipment (other than
properties carried at revalued amounts);

- prepaid lease payments on land use rights
classified as being held under an operating
lease;

- intangible assets;

- goodwill; and

- investments in subsidiaries in the Company’s
statement of financial position.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated. In addition, for goodwill,
intangible assets that are not yet available for use and
intangible assets that have indefinite useful lives, the
recoverable amount is estimated annually whether or
not there is any indication of impairment.

- Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the
higher of its fair value less costs of disposal
and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax discount rate
that reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to the
asset. Where an asset does not generate cash
inflows largely independent of those from other
assets, the recoverable amount is determined
for the smallest group of assets that generates
cash inflows independently (i.e. a cash-
generating unit).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

REMBHRRME (F)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 BEZZ—RFE+_A=+—HILFE

2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(M)

Impairment of assets (continued)

(ii)

Impairment of other assets (continued)

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss
if the carrying amount of an asset, or the cash-
generating unit to which it belongs, exceeds
its recoverable amount. Impairment losses
recognised in respect of cash-generating units
are allocated first to reduce the carrying amount
of any goodwill allocated to the cash-generating
units (or group of units) and then, to reduce the
carrying amount of the other assets in the unit
(or group of units) on a pro rata basis, except
that the carrying value of an asset will not be
reduced below its individual fair value less costs
of disposal (if measurable) or value in use (if
determinable).

Reversals of impairment losses

In respect of assets other than goodwill, an
impairment loss is reversed if there has been
a favourable change in the estimates used
to determine the recoverable amount. An
impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not

reversed.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited
to the asset’s carrying amount that would
have been determined had no impairment
loss been recognised in prior years. Reversals
of impairment losses are credited to profit
or loss in the year in which the reversals are
recognised.

REXLot Holdings Limited fJZe-R #1ZR B R AR

2.

TESHBER(E)
EERE(H)
(i) REEZHE (Z)

(M)

MEEREMBZREELEMN
ZEEESNEATWE 2 E - A
RERBERREEE RS E
SRR ZREBRELD
EEERReELEM (REM
BRDEDB ZREE AREE
FEE ARBOEEZAMEN
(SREMAR) A2z EMEE A
BLEHIR D EREE 2 REE
HEEZERAENSREERNHE
18 5l 2 Fo R B & A (ZnRT &
E)HEREE (WAEE) -

B 18 /85 7R 7 ]

i P DA 88 5E AT W ) & B8 2 fd A
RENEH EE (BEBI)
ZREEEAEED - EE 2R
BEEBRTEED-

PR D 2 BEBEAEBEFE
WARHERBEEEZBERTRE
BE<EERMERR- - FIED
ZRERIRERRBERFEA

B



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HZEZZ

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(M)

0

Impairment of assets (continued)

(iii) Interim financial reporting and impairment
Under the Listing Rules, the Group is required to
prepare an interim financial report in compliance with
HKAS 34, Interim financial reporting, in respect of

the first six months of the financial year. At the end

of the interim period, the Group applies the same
impairment testing, recognition, and reversal criteria

as it would at the end of the financial year (Notes 2(i)

(i) and 2(i)(ii)).

Impairment losses recognised in an interim period in
respect of goodwill, available-for-sale equity securities
and unquoted equity securities carried at cost are
not reversed in a subsequent period. This is the
case even if no loss, or a smaller loss, would have
been recognised had the impairment been assessed
only at the end of the financial year to which the
interim period relates. Consequently, if the fair value
of an available-for-sale equity security increases in
the remainder of the annual period, or in any other
period subsequently, the increase is recognised in
other comprehensive income and not profit or loss.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined using the weighted
average method. The cost of finished goods and work-
in-progress comprises design costs, raw materials, direct
labour, other direct costs and related production overheads
(based on normal operating capacity). It excludes
borrowing costs. Net realisable value is the estimated
selling price in the ordinary course of business less the

applicable variable selling expenses.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in
which the related revenue is recognised. The amount of
any write-down of inventories to net realisable value and
all losses of inventories are recognised as an expense in the
period the write-down or loss occurs. The amount of any
reversal of any write-down of inventories is recognised as
a reduction in the amount of inventories recognised as an

expense in the period in which the reversal occurs.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

REMBHRRME (F)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 BEZZ—RFE+_A=+—HILFE

2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(k)

M

(m)

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are initially recognised at
fair value, and after initial recognition, at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less any allowance for
impairment of doubtful debts (Note 2(i)).

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and at
banks, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short-term, highly liquid investments
that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash
and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes
in value, having been within three months of maturity at
acquisition.

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current
tax and movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities are
recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that they
relate to items recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity, in which case the relevant amounts of
the tax are recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable
income for the year, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period,
and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous
years.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

eV HBBERRME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HEZZ—RF+_A=+—RHILFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(m)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being the
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their tax
bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax losses
and unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax
liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent that
it is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which the asset can be utilised, are recognised.
Future taxable profits that may support the recognition
of deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences include those that will arise from the reversal
of existing taxable temporary differences, provided those
differences relate to the same taxation authority and the
same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse either in
the same period as the expected reversal of the deductible
temporary difference or in periods into which a tax loss
arising from the deferred tax asset can be carried back or
forward. The same criteria are adopted when determining
whether existing taxable temporary differences support the
recognition of deferred tax assets arising from unused tax
losses and credits, that is, those differences are taken into
account if they relate to the same taxation authority and
the same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse in a
period, or periods, in which the tax loss or credit can be
utilised.

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax
assets and liabilities are those temporary differences
arising from goodwill not deductible for tax purposes, the
initial recognition of assets or liabilities that affect neither
accounting nor taxable profit (provided they are not part
of a business combination), and temporary differences
relating to investments in subsidiaries to the extent that,
in the case of taxable differences, the Group controls the
timing of the reversal and it is probable that the differences
will not reverse in the foreseeable future, or in the case of
deductible differences, unless it is probable that they will
reverse in the future.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

EMBHRERME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZEZT

2.

100

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(m)

Income tax (continued)

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured based
on expected manner of realisation or settlement of the
carrying amount of the assets and liabilities, using tax
rates enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the
reporting period. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not
discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and is reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available to allow the related tax benefit to
be utilised. Any such reduction is reversed to the extent
that it becomes probable that sufficient taxable profits will
be available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution
of dividends are recognised when the liability to pay the
related dividends is recognised.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from each
other and are not offset. Current tax assets are offset
against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets
against deferred tax liabilities, if the Company or the
Group has the legally enforceable right to set off current
tax assets against current tax liabilities and the following
additional conditions are met:

- in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the
Company or the Group intends either to settle on a
net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability

simultaneously; or

- in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities,
if they relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority on either;

- the same taxable entity; or

- different taxable entities, which, in each future
period in which significant amounts of deferred
tax liabilities or assets are expected to be settled
or recovered, intend to realise the current tax
assets and settle the current tax liabilities on a
net basis or realise and settle simultaneously.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

REUHBBERME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HEZZ—RF+_A=+—RHItFE

2.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(n)

(o)

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair
value. Except for financial guarantee liabilities measured
in accordance with Note 2(r), trade and other payables are
subsequently stated at amortised cost.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net
of transaction costs incurred. Transactions costs are
incremental costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition, issue or disposal of a financial asset or financial
liability, including fees and commissions paid to agents,
advisers, brokers and dealers, levies by regulatory agencies
and securities exchanges, and transfer taxes and duties.
Borrowings are subsequently stated at amortised cost;
any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction
costs) and the redemption value is recognised in profit or
loss over the period of the borrowings using the effective
interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of
the liability for at least 12 months after the end of the
reporting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

EMBHRRME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZEZT

2.

102

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(p)

Convertible bonds
Convertible bonds which contain an equity component are
accounted for as follows:

Convertible bonds that can be converted to equity share
capital at the option of the holder, where the number of
shares that would be issued on conversion and the value
of the consideration that would be received at that time
do not vary, are accounted for as compound financial
instruments which contain both a liability component and
an equity component. The values of non-equity derivative
component which are considered as closely related to the
host contract are included in the liability component.

At initial recognition the liability component of the
convertible bonds, including the non-equity derivative
component, is measured at fair value which is determined
by reference to the fair value of a similar stand-alone
debt instrument that includes the non-equity derivative
feature but does not have an associated equity conversion
option. Any excess of proceeds over the amount initially
recognised as the liability component (including the non-
equity derivative component) is recognised as the equity
component. Transaction costs that relate to the issue of a
compound financial instrument are allocated to the liability
and equity components in proportion to the allocation of
the gross proceeds. Transaction costs relating to the equity
component are recognised directly in equity. Transaction
costs relating to the liability component are included in
the carrying amount of the liability component and are
amortised over the periods of the convertible bonds using
the effective interest method.

The liability component is subsequently carried at
amortised cost. The interest expense recognised in profit
or loss on the liability component is calculated using
the effective interest method. The equity component is
recognised in the convertible bonds reserve until either the
bond is converted or redeemed.

If the bond is converted, the convertible bonds reserve,
together with the carrying amount of the liability
component at the time of conversion, is transferred to
share capital and share premium as consideration for the
shares issued. If the bond is redeemed, the convertible

bonds reserve is released directly to retained profits.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

eV HBBERRME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HEZZ—RF+_A=+—RHILFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(q) Employee benefits

()

(ii)

Retirement benefit costs

The Group operates a defined contribution
Mandatory Provident Fund retirement benefits
scheme in Hong Kong (the “MPF Scheme”) under
the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance,
for those employees who are eligible to participate
in the MPF Scheme. Contributions are made based
on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries and
are charged to profit or loss as they become payable
in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The
Group's employer contributions vest fully with the
employees when contributed into the MPF Scheme.

The subsidiaries in the PRC do not provide a pension
plan for their employees. The subsidiaries in the
PRC made contributions to the defined contribution
retirement plans in the PRC which are recognised as
expenses in profit or loss as incurred. The subsidiaries
have no further payment obligations once the
contributions have been paid.

Paid leave carried forward

The Group provides paid annual leave to its
employees under their employment contracts on a
calendar year basis. Under certain circumstances,
such leave which remains untaken as at the end
of the reporting period is permitted to be carried
forward and utilised by the respective employees in
the following year. An accrual is made at the end
of the reporting period for the expected future cost
of such paid leave earned during the year by the
employees and carried forward.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
meMBEBRKRMKME (F)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 BEZZ—RF+_A=+—HIFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 2. FEETHHBE (&)
(9) Employee benefits (continued) () EERA(E)
(iii) Share-based compensation (iii) AR 13 % B

104

(iv)

The Group operates an equity-settled, share-based
compensation plan. The fair value of the employee
services received in exchange for the grant of the
options is recognised as an expense. The total
amount to be expensed is determined by reference
to the fair value of the options granted, excluding
the impact of any non-market vesting conditions
(for example, profitability and sales growth targets).
Non-market vesting conditions are included in
assumptions about the number of options that are
expected to become exercisable. At the end of each
reporting period, the entity revises its estimates of
the number of options that are expected to become
exercisable. It recognises the impact of the revision
of original estimates, if any, in profit or loss, and a
corresponding adjustment to share-based payment

reserve over the remaining vesting period.

The proceeds received net of any directly attributable
transaction costs are credited to share capital
(nominal value) and share premium when the options
are exercised.

When share options are exercised, the amount
previously recognised in share option reserve will
be transferred to share premium. When the share
options are forfeited after the vesting date or are
still not exercised at the expiry date, the amount
previously recognised in share option reserve will be
transferred to retained profits.

Profit-sharing and bonus plans

The Group recognises a liability and an expense for
bonuses and profit-sharing, based on a formula that
takes into consideration the profit attributable to the
Company's shareholders after certain adjustments.
The Group recognises a provision where contractually
obliged or where there is a past practice that has
created a constructive obligation.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

REUHBBERME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HEZZ—RF+_A=+—RHItFE

2.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(r) Financial guarantees issued, provisions and contingent

liabilities

()

Financial guarantees issued

Financial guarantees are contracts that require the
issuer (i.e. the guarantor) to make specified payment
to reimburse the beneficiary of the guarantee (the
“holder”) for a loss the holder incurs because a
specified debtor fails to make payment when due in
accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.

Where the Group issues a financial guarantee, the
fair value of the guarantee is initially recognised as
deferred income within trade and other payables.
The fair value of financial guarantees issued at the
time of issuance is determined by reference to fees
charged in an arm’s length transaction for similar
services, when such information is obtainable, or
is otherwise estimated by reference to interest rate
differentials, by comparing the actual rates charged
by lenders when the guarantee is made available
with the estimated rates that lenders would have
charged, had the guarantees not been available,
where reliable estimates of such information can be
made. Where consideration is received or receivable
for the issuance of the guarantee, the consideration
is recognised in accordance with the Group’s policies
applicable to that category of asset. Where no such
consideration is received or receivable, an immediate
expense is recognised in profit or loss on initial
recognition of any deferred income.

The amount of the guarantee initially recognised
as deferred income is amortised in profit or loss
over the term of the guarantee as income from
financial guarantees issued. In addition, provisions
are recognised in accordance with Note 2(r)(iii) below
if and when (i) it becomes probable that the holder
of the guarantee will call upon the Group under the
guarantee and (ii) the amount of that claim on the
Group is expected to exceed the amount currently
carried in trade and other payables in respect of that
guarantee, i.e. the amount initially recognised, less

accumulated amortisation.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

EMBHRRME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZEZT

2.

106

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(r) Financial guarantees issued, provisions and contingent

liabilities (continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Contingent liabilities assumed in business
combinations

Contingent liabilities assumed in a business
combination which are present obligations at date
of acquisition are initially recognised at fair value,
provided the fair value can be reliably measured.
After their initial recognition at fair value, such
contingent liabilities are recognised at the higher of
the amount initially recognised, less accumulated
amortisation where appropriate, and the amount
that would be determined in accordance with Note
2(r)(iii) below. Contingent liabilities assumed in a
business combination that cannot be reliably fair
valued or were not present obligations at the date of
acquisition are disclosed in accordance with Note 2(r)
(iii) below.

Other provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for other liabilities of
uncertain timing or amount when the Group or
the Company has a legal or constructive obligation
arising as a result of a past event; it is probable that
an outflow of economic benefits will be required to
settle the obligation; and a reliable estimate can be
made. Where the time value of money is material,
provisions are stated at the present value of the
expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities
unless the probability of outflow of economic
benefits is remote.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

MEBEHRRKE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HEZZ—RF+_A=+—RHILFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(s)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable. Provided it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue
and costs, if applicable, can be measured reliably, revenue
is recognised in profit or loss as follows:

(i)  Gain or loss on investments held for trading
Realised gain or loss on investments held for trading
is recognised on a trade date basis whilst unrealised
gain or loss on investments held for trading is
recognised to restate to their fair value at the end of
the reporting period.

(ii) Income from provision of lottery machines and
related services, comprising:
Sales of goods
Sales of goods including lottery machines and related
software systems are recognised when the goods
are delivered at the customers’ premises which is
taken to be the point in time when the customer has
accepted the goods; the related risks and rewards of
ownership and collectability of the related receivables
are reasonably assured. Revenue excludes value
added tax.

Income from lottery business

Income from lottery business including lottery
ticketing service, consultancy service, maintenance
service and other related services is recognised in the
accounting period in which the service is rendered.
Revenue excludes sales tax or value added tax.

Income from sharing of lottery sales

Income from sharing of lottery sales is recognised on
an accrual basis in accordance with the substance of
the relevant agreements. Revenue excludes sales tax
or value added tax.

Income from sales of lottery ticket

Sales of lottery tickets are recognised when the
lottery ticket are delivered at the customers’ premises
which is taken to be the point in time when the
customer has accepted the goods; the related risks
and rewards of ownership and collectability of the
related receivables are reasonably assured. Revenue
excludes value added tax.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
meMBEBRKRMKME (F)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 BEZZ—RF+_A=+—HIFE

2.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 2.
(s) Revenue recognition (continued) (s)

TESHBR(E)
AR ()

108

(t

(iii) Interest income
Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the
effective interest method.

(iv) Dividend income
Dividend income from listed investments is recognised
when the share price of the investment goes ex-
dividend.

Dividend income from unlisted investments is
recognised when the right to receive payment is
established prior to the end of the reporting period.

(v) Subletting income
Subletting income is recognised on a straight-line
basis over the term of the sub-lease.

Leases

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of
transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group determines
that the arrangement conveys a right to use a specific
asset or assets for an agreed period of time in return for
a payment or a series of payments. Such a determination
is made based on an evaluation of the substance of the
arrangement and is regardless of whether the arrangement
takes the legal form of a lease.

Leases of assets are classified as finance leases when the
leases transfer substantially all risks and rewards incidental
to ownership of assets to the Group. All other assets are
classified as operating leases.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

REUHBBERME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HEZZ—RF+_A=+—RHItFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(t) Leases (continued)

()

(ii)

Finance leases

Assets held under finance leases are recognised in
the consolidated statement of financial position at
amounts equal to the fair value of the leased assets,
or, if lower, the present value of the minimum
lease payments, each determined at the inception
of the lease. The corresponding liabilities, net of
finance charges, on the finance leases are recorded
as obligations under finance leases. All assets held
under finance leases are classified as property, plant
and equipment, except for those properties held to
earn rental income which are classified as investment
properties, in the consolidated statement of financial
position.

Depreciation and impairment losses are calculated
and recognised in the same manner as the
depreciation and impairment losses on property, plant
and equipment as set out in Note 2(f), except for
the estimated useful lives cannot exceed the relevant
lease terms, if shorter.

Minimum lease payments are apportioned between
finance charge and the reduction of the outstanding
liabilities. The finance charge is recognised in profit
or loss over the period of the lease term so as to
produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the
remaining balance of the liability.

Leases of land and buildings

Whenever necessary in order to classify and account
for a lease of land and buildings, the minimum lease
payments (including any lump-sum upfront payments)
are allocated between the land and the building
elements in proportion to the relative fair values
of the leasehold interests in the land element and
building element of the lease at the inception of the

lease.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(t)

Leases (continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Leases of land and buildings (continued)

The land element is classified as an operating lease
unless title is expected to pass to the lessee by
the end of the lease term. The building element is
classified as a finance or operating lease in the same
way as leases of other assets. The payments made
on acquiring land held under an operating lease are
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial
position as prepaid lease payments on land use rights
which are stated at cost and are amortised on a
straight-line basis over the period of the lease term.

If the prepaid lease payments on a lease of land and
buildings cannot be allocated reliably between the
land and building elements at the inception of the
lease, the entire lease is classified as a finance lease,
unless it is clear that both elements are operating
leases, in which case the entire lease is classified as
an operating lease.

Operating leases

Where the Group is the lessee, payments made under
operating leases, net of any incentives received from
the lessor, are charged to profit or loss on a straight-
line basis over the period of the lease. Where the
Group is the lessor, assets leased by the Group under
operating leases are included in non-current assets
and rentals receivable under the operating leases
are credited to profit or loss on a straight-line basis
over the lease period. Contingent rentals (if any) are
charged or credited to profit or loss in the accounting
period in which they are incurred.

(iv) Sale and leaseback resulting in a finance lease

If a sale and leaseback transaction that results in a
finance lease, any excess of sales proceeds over the
carrying amount is deferred and amortised over the
lease term. If the fair value at the time of a sale and
leaseback transaction is less than the carrying amount
of the asset, no adjustment is necessary unless there
has been an impairment in value, in which case the

carrying amount is reduced to recoverable amount.

REXLot Holdings Limited fJZe-R #1ZR B R AR

2.

FESHBE (8)
(t) MHE(#E)
(i) t+HREFHE (&)

THEA T BRLEHRE RIR
HEgerHERRRERAEA
AMERIH - BT H 5 B A SRER 1B K
BEMEMRZAADERSRENK
eHE-RUBRELEHEREZ
THAEHZ MR TIR&EE B BN
AR ATHERAEZRNELN
FORRANNER TREERRNRE
RORBEEH -

Mt REFHEE Z BB K
BERENFT IR EM SRS i
kEFHs ABOHDEESERBE
HE HEHMERSHEE SELH
E HILBRAT BEHEAEESER
KeMs-

(i) BEHEE

(iv)

MAEERAEA RELLEHEX
2 3E (% B HAE AR Z E6@
BR)EEENANERZEZBERN
oM ASBEASREA MAKEIR
BREMEEEZEEGFAFERD
EE MBEREEEHERKZESE
HEMRNAEREF ABER - RRHE
T(MBE)EEELAZEtHHBE
A ARE .

BEHEELZERZHM

MAMEEAENELERERR S
HEMSRABLEREE M E8
ETEE YREEHRNEH -HE
EHERRSEEALBRREERT
B BIEFEL AR ML R
BE ASERAEREAT RS-



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

eV HBBERRME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HEZZ—RF+_A=+—RHILFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(u)

Foreign currency translation

These consolidated financial statements are presented in
HKD, which is the Company’s functional and presentation
currency. Each entity in the Group determines its own
functional currency and items included in the financial
statements of each entity are measured using that
functional currency. Transactions in foreign currencies are
initially recorded in the functional currency rates ruling at
the date of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the functional currency rates of exchange ruling at the
end of the reporting period. All differences are taken
to the income statement. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency
are translated using the exchange rates as at the dates
of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured
at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using
the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was
determined.

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries
and joint ventures are currencies other than HKD. At
the end of the reporting period, the assets and liabilities
of these entities are translated into HKD at the rates
of exchange ruling at the end of the reporting period
and their profit or loss items are translated into HKD
at the weighted average exchange rates for the year.
The exchange differences arising from the translation
are recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated separately in equity in the exchange
translation reserve. On disposal of a foreign entity, the
deferred cumulative amount recognised in equity relating
to that particular foreign entity is reclassified from equity
to profit or loss when the profit or loss on disposal is
recognised.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are translated
into HKD at the exchange rates ruling at the dates of the
cash flows. Frequently recurring cash flows of overseas
subsidiaries which arise throughout the year are translated
into HKD at the weighted average exchange rates for the
year.
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2.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(v)

(w)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of an asset which
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready
for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the
cost of that asset. Other borrowing costs are expensed in
the period in which they are incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the cost
of a qualifying asset commences when expenditure for the
asset is being incurred, borrowing costs are being incurred
and activities that are necessary to prepare the asset for
its intended use or sale are in progress. Capitalisation of
borrowing costs is suspended or ceases when substantially
all the activities necessary to prepare the qualifying asset
for its intended use or sale are interrupted or complete.

Dividends

Final dividends proposed by the Directors are classified as
a separate allocation of retained profits within the equity
section of the Company's statement of financial position,
until they have approved by the shareholders in a general
meeting. When these dividends have been approved by
the shareholders and declared, they are recognised as a
liability.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and
declared, because the Company’s bye-laws grant the
Directors the authority to declare interim dividends.
Consequently, interim dividends are recognised
immediately as a liability when they are proposed and
declared.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

REUHBBERME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HEZZ—RF+_A=+—RHItFE

2.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(x)

Non-current assets held for sale

A non-current asset (or disposal group) is classified as held
for sale if it is highly probable that its carrying amount
will be recovered through a sale transaction rather than
through continuing use and the asset (or disposal group)
is available for sale in its present condition. A disposal
group is a group of assets to be disposed of together
as a group in a single transaction, and liabilities directly
associated with those assets that will be transferred in the
transaction.

When the Group is committed to a sale plan involving
loss of control of a subsidiary, all the assets and liabilities
of that subsidiary are classified as held for sale when
the above criteria for classification as held for sale are
met, regardless of whether the Group will retain a non-
controlling interest in the subsidiary after the sale.

Immediately before classification as held for sale, the
measurement of the non-current assets (and all individual
assets and liabilities in a disposal group) is brought up-
to-date in accordance with the accounting policies before
the classification. Then, on initial classification as held for
sale and until disposal, the non-current assets (except for
certain assets as explained below), or disposal groups,
are recognised at the lower of their carrying amount
and fair value less costs to sell. The principal exceptions
to this measurement policy so far as the consolidated
financial statements of the Group are concerned are
deferred tax assets, assets arising from employee benefits,
financial assets (other than investments in subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures) and investment properties.
These assets, even if held for sale, would continue to be
measured in accordance with the policies set out elsewhere
in Note 2.

Impairment losses on initial classification as held for sale,
and on subsequent remeasurement while held for sale, are
recognised in profit or loss. As long as a non-current asset
is classified as held for sale, or is included in a disposal
group that is classified as held for sale, the non-current
asset is not depreciated or amortised.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(y) Related parties
(@) A person, or a close member of that person’s family,
is related to the Group if that person:

(i)  has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management personnel
of the Group or the Group’s parent.

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies:

(i)  The entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the
others).

(i) One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is
a member).

(iii)  Both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party.

(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the third
entity.

(v)  The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or
an entity related to the Group.

(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a).

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of
a parent of the entity).

(viii) The entity, or any member of a group of which
it is a part, provides key management personnel
services to the Group or to the parent of the
Group.
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2.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

MBEHERRKEE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HZEZZ

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(y)

(2)

Related parties (continued)

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment
item reported in the consolidated financial statements, are
identified from the financial information provided regularly
to the Group’s most senior executive management for
the purposes of allocating resources to, and assessing the
performance of, the Group’s various lines of business and
geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless the
segments have similar economic characteristics and are
similar in respect of the nature of the products and
services, the nature of the production processes, the type
or class of customers, the methods used to distribute the
products or provide the services, and the nature of the
regulatory environment. Operating segments which are
not individually material may be aggregated if they share a
majority of these criteria.

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
In the current year, the Group has applied, for the first time,

the following amendments to HKFRSs (hereinafter collectively

referred to as the

“new and revised HKFRSs"”) issued by the

Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA™).

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 16
and HKAS 38

Amendments to HKAS 27

Amendments to HKFRSs

Amendments to HKFRS 11

Amendments to HKFRS 10,
HKFRS 12 and HKAS 28

Disclosure initiative

Clarification of acceptable
methods of depreciation and
amortisation

Equity method in separate
financial statements

Annual improvements to
HKFRSs 2012-2014 cycle

Accounting for acquisitions of
interests in joint operations
Investment entities: Applying the

consolidation exception
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116

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

The application of the above new and revised HKFRSs in the
current year has had no material impact on the Group's financial
performance and position for the current and prior years and/
or on the disclosures set out in these consolidated financial
statements.

The Group has not early applied any new standard or
interpretation that is not yet effective for the current accounting
period (Note 45).

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated by the
Group and are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group’s management makes estimates and assumptions
concerning the future. The resulting accounting estimates will,
by definition, seldom equal to the related actual results. The
estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below.

A Key assumption and other key sources of estimation

uncertainty

(a) Estimated impairment of goodwill
The Group tests annually whether goodwill has
suffered any impairment, in accordance with the
accounting policy stated in Note 2(i). The recoverable
amounts of cash-generating units have been
determined based on value in use calculations or
their fair value less costs of disposal, whichever is
appropriate, and both bases require the Group to
estimate the future cash flows expected to arise
from the cash-generating units, discount rates
and growth rates for present value measurement.
These calculations require the use of estimates and
assumptions (Note 17). Where the expectation is
different from the original estimate, such difference
will impact the carrying amount of goodwill and
the impairment (if any) in the period in which such
estimate has been changed.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

REUHBBERME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HEZZ—RF+_A=+—RHItFE

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)
A Key assumption and other key sources of estimation

uncertainty (continued)

(b) Allowance for impairment of bad and doubtful

(c)

debts

The Group makes allowance for impairment of bad
and doubtful debts based on an assessment of
the recoverability of trade and other receivables.
Allowances are applied to trade and other receivables
where events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the balances may not be collectible. The
identification of allowance for impairment of bad and
doubtful debts requires the use of judgement and
estimates. Where the expectation is different from
the original estimate, such difference will impact
carrying value of receivables and allowance for
impairment in the period in which such estimate has
been changed.

Write-down of obsolete and slow-moving
inventories

The Group writes down obsolete and slow-moving
inventories to net realisable value based on historical
experience and other factors, including expectation
of future events that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances. Write-downs are applied to
inventories where events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the inventories may be obsolete or
slow-moving. The identification of obsolete or slow-
moving inventories requires the use of judgement and
estimates. Where the expectation is different from
the original estimate, such difference will impact the
carrying value of the inventories and charges in the
year in which such estimate has been changed.
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4.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)
A Key assumption and other key sources of estimation

uncertainty (continued)

(d)

Income taxes

Deferred tax asset in relation to the unused tax
losses of approximately HK$106,290,000 (2015:
HK$52,046,000) was not recognised in the Group's
consolidated statement of financial position. The
realisability of the deferred tax asset mainly depends
on whether sufficient future profits or taxable
temporary differences will be available in the future.
When the expectation of future profit is different
from the original estimate, such difference will impact
the recognition of deferred tax assets and taxation
charges in the period in which such estimate is
changed.

The Group is subject to income taxes in Hong Kong
and the PRC. Significant judgement is required in
determining the provision for income taxes. There
are many transactions and calculations for which the
ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the
ordinary course of business. The Group recognises
liabilities for anticipated tax audit issues based
on estimates of whether additional taxes will be
due. Where the final tax outcome of these matters
is different from the amounts that were initially
recorded, such differences will impact the income tax
and deferred tax expenses in the year in which such
determination is made.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

REUHBBERME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HEZZ—RF+_A=+—RHItFE

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)
B  Critical judgements in applying the Company’s

accounting policies

(a)

Going concern basis

The Company’s management has considered the
adequacy of the disclosures made in the consolidated
financial statements concerning the possible outcome
of non-adjusting events after the end of the reporting
period as detailed in Note 48. The consolidated
financial statements have been prepared on a going
concern basis, the validity of which depends upon the
successful completion of redemption of the Bonds.

The consolidated financial statements do not
include any adjustments that would result from
these material uncertainties. The Directors of the
Company confirmed that the Company has sufficient
cash resources to satisfy its redemption obligations
in relation to the Bonds. Based on the facts and
circumstances as made available thereto, the
Directors of the Company are of the opinion that
the redemption of the Bonds which is subject to
redemption notices or maturated will be completed
on or before 28 April 2017. Accordingly, the Directors
of the Company consider that it is appropriate to
prepare the consolidated financial statements on a
going concern basis. However, should the redemption
of the Bonds cannot be completed, and the Group be
unable to operate as a going concern, adjustments
might have to be made to the carrying values of the
Group’s assets to state them at their recoverable
amounts, to provide for any further liabilities which
might arise and to reclassify its non-current assets
and non-current liabilities to current assets and
current liabilities, respectively.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 BEZZ—RF+_A=+—HIFE

4.

120

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

B

Critical judgements in applying the Company’s
accounting policies (continued)
(b) Recognition of an indirect non wholly-owned

subsidiary as an available-for-sale financial asset
During the year ended 31 December 2016, the
Company’s management reassessed whether
it had control or significant influence over the
management including participation in the financial
and operating policy decisions over an indirect non
wholly-owned subsidiary (the “PRC Company”).
This reassessment requires significant management
judgement in determining if the Group could or could
not exercise control or significant influence over
the PRC Company relating to the matters set out in
either HKFRS 10, Consolidated Financial Statements,
or HKAS 28, Investments in Associates and Joint
Ventures given the unique nature of the online lottery
business in the PRC. The Directors resolved that the
Group did not have control or significant influence
over the PRC Company. Accordingly, the Group
continues to recognise the PRC Company as an
available-for-sale financial asset (Note 20).

REXLot Holdings Limited fJZe-R #1ZR B R AR
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MBEHERRKEE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HEZZ—RF+_A=+—RHItFE

REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND OTHER GAINS AND 5.

LOSSES

Revenue represents the aggregate of income from provision of

lottery machines and related services and commission income.

An analysis of the Group's revenue, other income and other

gains and losses for the year is as follows:

WA EMB AR E SR ER

WARRHREERRABARERARBE KA
Z KRR

REBPRERZZ WA - E AU AIA R B A1 a5
REBBIIT:

2016 2015
—RE —E—AF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Revenue llﬁll
Income from provision of lottery machines T LR = % A8 A AR TS U A
and related services 1,252,144 1,554,394
Other income H A
Interest income on bank deposits RITF R B WA 10,368 2,520
Other interest income EH i F B A 4,086 403
Sundry income MW A 11,923 8,740
Rental income from sub-letting of HAWME >HEzES KA
rented premises 3,845 3,811
Dividend income from listed investments EmREZREHA - 61
Dividend income from unlisted investment FLEMEEZREKA - 78,185
30,222 93,720
Other gains and losses Hihlz= R EE
Net (losses)/gains on disposal of financial assets H&@BEFZEAALBITEZ
at fair value through profit or loss CMEEZ (B18) WS FE (2,060) 25,780
Fair value (losses)/gains on financial assets MABREANBEHEZ
at fair value through profit or loss CMEEZAAE (BE) MW (1,149) 7,250
(Loss)/gain on redemption of convertible bonds & [B] 7] #2 f& (& %5 2
(Note 35) (518) e (KIRE35) (6,151) 1,013
(9,360) 34,043
1,273,006 1,682,157
Total interest income on financial assets not WIkEBBERZIEALENEL
at fair value through profit or loss DREAEZLBFEWA 14,454 2,923
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EMBHRERME (&)

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group manages its business by divisions, which are
organised by a mixture of both business lines (products and
services) and geography.

In a manner consistent with the way in which information
is reported internally to the Group’s most senior executive
management, i.e. the Group’s Executive Directors, for the
purposes of allocating resources to segments and assessing their
performance, the Group has presented lottery business as the
reportable segment.

Intersegment revenue is eliminated on consolidation.
Intersegment sales and transactions are conducted in accordance
with the terms mutually agreed between the parties.

The Board assesses the performance of the business segments
based on (loss)/profit before taxation without allocation of
finance income/(costs), which is consistent with those in the
consolidated financial statements.

Information regarding the Group's reportable segments as
provided to the Board for the purposes of resources allocation
and assessment of segment performance for the years ended 31
December 2016 and 2015 is set out below.

REXLot Holdings Limited fJZe-R #1ZR B R AR
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REUHBBERME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HEZZ—RF+_A=+—RHItFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6. DEER(F)
Business Segment E Sl
(a) The segment results for the year ended 31 December 2016 (a) BE_Z—R"F+A=1+—RHLFEZ
and segment assets and liabilities at 31 December 2016 are PWEBRN-_T-—RFE+=_A=+—H
as follows: ZOMEERBENT :
As at and for the
year ended
31 December 2016
R-ZE—REF
+ZA=+—HEk
BEZALEE
Lottery business
HK$'000
FET
Revenue A 1,252,144
Segment results DEPEE (104,549)
Net unallocated expenses ROEHALIFE (311,542)
Loss before taxation BB RIE 1B (416,091)
Taxation THIE (29,898)
Loss for the year FEEE (445,989)
Assets BE
Segment assets DEEE 6,584,993
Assets of the disposal group classified NEAFELEZ
as held for sale (Note 14) HEMR 2 EE (Mf7E14) 2,295,597
Unallocated assets K& E 231,209
Total assets BEEBE 9,111,799
Liabilities aE
Segment liabilities HEEE 277,757
Liabilities directly associated with HABRARBELRECHEMERZ
the assets of the disposal group classified EEEREEAzEE ([HiE14)
as held for sale (Note 14) 403,983
Unallocated liabilities RKOEARE 2,918,882
Total liabilities BERE 3,600,622
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 BEZZ—RF+_A=+—HIFE

6.

124

REXLot Holdings Limited fJZe-R #1ZR B R AR

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6. IWER(B)
Business Segment (continued) BB (E)
(a) (continued) (a) (#&
The segment results for the year ended 31 December 2015 HE_T-—AF+-_A=+—BLEFEZ
and segment assets and liabilities at 31 December 2015 are PWEHERN=_ZT—RAF+=_A=+—AH
as follows: ZOBEERBENT:
As at and for the
year ended
31 December 2015
RZZE—HF
TZRA=+—-EBER
HEZBIEFE
Lottery business
HK$'000
TET
Revenue ' ON 1,554,394
Segment results DEBEAE 718,622
Net unallocated expenses ROEFAZFE (513,264)
Profit before taxation R B A i A 205,358
Taxation | (41,124)
Profit for the year F & A 164,234
Assets BE
Segment assets DEE E 6,367,252
Assets of the disposal group classified SEABIELREZHEENZ
as held for sale (Note 14) BE (Mz14) 2,236,663
Unallocated assets KofEE 126,553
Total assets BERE 8,730,468
Liabilities B
Segment liabilities DEEE 282,744
Liabilities directly associated with HABRARBELRECHEMERZ
the assets of the disposal group classified BEEAEMEBZAE (HiE14)
as held for sale (Note 14) 153,616
Unallocated liabilities AOEEE 2,208,705
Total liabilities BERAR 2,645,065
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REUHBBERME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HEZZ—RF+_A=+—RHItFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6. IWER(B)
Business Segment (continued) BB (E)
(b) Other segment information (b) EftsEH

For the year ended
31 December 2016
BE-_ZT—XKF
+=—A=+—H
LEE
Lottery business
FEER
HK$°000
FHET

Other information H & #
Depreciation and amortisation e REE 61,990
Impairment loss on goodwill 7B R EEE 103,923
Capital expenditure BERFEE 2,919
For the year ended
31 December 2015
HE-_ZT—afF
+=—A=+—8
IEFE
Lottery business
HK$'000
FET

Other information Hth & K
Depreciation and amortisation e i 64,691
Impairment loss on goodwill B EE 1B 99,321
Capital expenditure BEARR 59,294
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REMBHRRME (F)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 BEZZ—RF+_A=+—HIFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
Geographical Segments
In terms of geographical location, nearly 100%
revenue is attributable to the market in the PRC.

of the Group's

Total non-current assets by location are as follows:

DEER (B)

i & 5 B

MHEMS  AEBEFTI100% KR ABRRFET
2.

BipRE D ZIFERBDEELBEMNT :

2016 2015

—E-RF —E-RF

HK$°000 HK$°000

FHETT FET

PRC # 773,515 1,117,033

Hong Kong e 33,527 35,523

807,042 1,152,556

Deferred tax assets RERIEEE 77 -
Total non-current assets per consolidated REMBRARMIIFERE A ERE

statement of financial position 807,119 1,152,556

Information About Major Customers

None of the customers contributed over 10% of the total

revenue of the Group during both years.

FREIEREFZEHR
%W F NI EAE AR PG AR E R AT10% A
o

7. STAFF COSTS BEIHAE
2016 2015
ZE-XF —ET—RF
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FET
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind FHae 2R NREE MR 122,855 126,898
Bonuses TE4L 14,174 18,572
Retirement benefit scheme contributions RURAE FIET B 5K 11,933 11,159
Severance payments BRE 899 275
Social security costs g R A 9,407 10,291
Employee share option benefits EERBRERT 10,367 -
169,635 167,195
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HEZZ—RF+_A=+—RHItFE

FINANCE COSTS 8. HMKEA
2016 2015
—E-RF —E-RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Interest on bank loans and overdrafts RITERREZFE 4,928 8,469
Interest on convertible bonds (Note 35) AR E S A B (FFEE35) 126,308 190,076
Acceleration of unwinding interest on DR BT AR AR (& 5 K S B (B 5E35)
convertible bonds (Note 35) - 189,168
Interest on other loans HMERFE 1,020 -
Finance charges on obligations under MEREEB2HMBNE
finance leases 1 8
Total interest expenses on financial liabilities WIBBABERKEAABEHEL
not at fair value through profit or loss TRBEZEATERXZ 132,257 387,721
(LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 9. BRBiAT (B8] RA
2016 2015
—E-RF —E—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
The Group's (loss)/profit before taxation REBERTAT () % TR 2580
is stated after charging the following: EMBRATEIE:
Auditors’ remuneration ZEEN B &
— audit services —EZR% 3,429 4,149
- non-audit services —EEZR 350 350
Cost of inventories sold (Note 22(b)) HEFE 2 KA (HfsE22(b)) 477,393 433,073
Depreciation and amortisation on IATIER 278 R #
— property, plant and equipment —WE BB REE
— owned assets —-BERE 40,217 41,386
— leased assets —HEEE 6,084 6,635
— prepaid lease payments on land use rights — b R 2 TR AR AR R 990 971
— intangible assets —\EEEE 14,699 15,699
Exchange losses M 5 518 53,091 53,947
Intangible assets written off A E M 1,011 -
Loss on disposal of property, plant and HEWE BFEREE BB FE
equipment, net 499 128
Operating lease rentals in respect of UTHIBZEELHEEESR
— office premises and warehouses —-MAEMELEE 23,096 27,930
- machinery — 23 8,721 9,259
Research and development costs DRSNS R g DN 1,449 2,039
Write-down of inventories 5 & HOR 31,085 1,529
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 BHEZZ—RF+_A=+—HIFE

10. DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS
Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to section 383(1)

of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the

Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of

Directors) Regulation are as follows:

10. EEME
EEBSIRIEE B (RAED) E383(1NER
(R (BBEEBFZER) ) 25 HBE M

T

Salaries, Retirement
allowances benefit Share
and benefits  Discretionary scheme option 2016
Name of Directors EEpng Fees in kind bonus  contributions benefits Total
e 2HR RIEER “E-RF
e BEXNE MERA FEMR  BRERR BE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET FET
Executive Directors HTES
CHAN How Chung, Victor BRZR - 7,653 483 18 146 8,300
BOO Chun Lon Y+ 200 - - - 146 346
Independent Non-executive BYFHTEE
Directors
YUEN Wai Ho BER 200 - - - 146 346
CHOW Siu Ngor BIE 200 - - - 146 346
LEE Ka Lun FHH 200 - - - 146 346
800 483 18 730
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HEZZ—RF+_A=+—RHItFE

DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS (continued)

10. EEM= (8)

Salaries, Retirement
allowances benefit
and benefits scheme 2015
Name of Directors e Fees in kind contributions Total
e 2R RIKEH 0%
e BERa ISR B
HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET
Executive Directors ITES
CHAN How Chung, Victor e - 6,305 18 6,323
BOO Chun Lon Y3 200 - - 200
Independent Non-executive Directors ~ BIFHTEE
YUEN Wai Ho Ex 200 - - 200
CHOW Siu Ngor BE 200 - - 200
LEE Ka Lun R 200 - - 200

There was no arrangement under which any Director waived or
agreed to waive any remuneration during the years. In addition,
no remuneration was paid by the Group to any of the Directors
as an inducement to join, or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office (2015: HK$Nil).

800 6,305 18 7,123

KRWESE TEITIENESTEUARERRE
METAME 2 8-t AEETBAES
SCRHEA B fE R DA R S B SN A fR 2 22
SEBEE (T —hF:TET) -
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 BEZZ—RF+_A=+—HIFE

11. FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS 1. BEReHFMAL

AEERERESFMALZTPEE-—R(ZF
—HF:—R)ARANER HMESEHN LX
MEI0ZEEER -EHBpENE (ZT—AF N

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the
Group, one (2015: one) was a Director of the Company whose
emoluments were included in the disclosures in Note 10 above.

The emoluments of the remaining four (2015: four) individuals BIANLTZBI&MT
were as follows:

2016 2015
—E-XF —ET—hF
HK$'000 HK$000
FET FET
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e RUEREENZ 5,299 7,629
Retirement benefit scheme contributions RRAE I ET IR 55 72
Employee share option benefits EEBERERET 7,884 -
13,238 7,701

Their remuneration was within the following bands: BEZHeHBRRT :
2016 2015
—E-RF —E—AF
Number of Number of
employees employees
EEAE BB AE
HK$1,000,001 — HK$1,500,000 1,000,001% J7c £ 1,500,0007% 7T - 1
HK$1,500,001 — HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 7L £2,000,00078 7T - 2
HK$2,000,001 — HK$2,500,000 2,000,001/ 7L £2,500,0007% 7T 1 -
HK$2,500,001 — HK$3,000,000 2,500,001 7L £3,000,0007% 7T 1 1
HK$3,000,001 — HK$4,000,000 3,000,001 7T £4,000,0007 7T 1 -
HK$4,000,001 — HK$5,000,000 4,000,001 7t £5,000,000/%8 7T 1 -
4 4

BEXRMEI0FAEIN REE=-F—XF
+ZA=+—RHIEFE — R (ZFT—AHF &)
EBEREANNR ZERE - BRAERET S ZF
BEEAMIFE30 ©

In addition to the above and Note 10, one (2015: Nil) employee
was granted share options of the Company during the year
ended 31 December 2016. Details of the share option scheme
are set out in Note 30.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HEZZ—RF+_A=+—RHItFE

TAXATION

Hong Kong profits tax is made in the consolidated financial
statements on estimated assessable profits derived from Hong
Kong for the year at the tax rate of 16.5% (2015: 16.5%).

Two of the subsidiaries, BN 4415 mEHE AR A 7 (Guangzhou
Latech Technology Co. Ltd.*) and FIITH BLEZIRFEMER A
7] (Shenzhen Sinodata Technology Co. Ltd.*), of the Group's
lottery business in the PRC are entitled to a preferential income
tax rate of 15% as they are recognised as high technology
enterprises for the year ended 31 December 2016 (2015: 15%).

In the current year, certain subsidiaries of the Group in the PRC
are entitled to a preferential income tax rate of 10% (2015:
10%). The applicable income tax rate for other subsidiaries of
the Group in the PRC is 25% (2015: 25%).

The amount of taxation charged to the consolidated income
statement represents:

12. BiE

ERNBRIRERNRE TR 2Bt BRYE
MR E16.5% (ZF—HF:16.5% ) NEEE
M mMEAEL -

AEBYEEEBE TR T EZREMNB A
BMNmERIHRRHE AR QA MR T B L S0E
RMTERARIZERIS% (ZE—HF:15% )&
HEHE REAABZSARIREBEZZ—X~F
TZA=E+BLEFERREASTBRMEE-

RAEE AEEETHFEMBARZEE10%

ZTE—AF10% ) ZEEMEHE - AEEBH
P BB AR ZEAMBHREAR2% (ZF
—FHF:25%) °

RERAWam R NHR 2 HIBREE

2016 2015
—E-XRE —T—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHETT FET
Current tax: EHEIIIE
Hong Kong profits tax BABFEH 765 1,210
PRC income tax R FT SR 32,804 29,300
(Over-provision)/under-provision BAFE (BREEB) HBETR
in respect of previous years (1,707) 26
31,862 30,536
Deferred tax: RAERIIA :
Deferred taxation relating to the origination BHREARBENERER 2
and reversal of temporary differences EER IR (KEE21)
(Note 21) (1,964) 10,999
Attributable to changes in tax rates (Note 21)  Ff R & By (g (Hi3E21) - (411)
(1,964) 10,588
Taxation charge PIEX 29,898 41,124
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12.

132

TAXATION (continued)

—RFTZA=+—RHILFE

12.

The taxation on the Group's (loss)/profit before taxation differs

from the theoretical amount that would arise using the domestic

taxation rates applicable to (loss)/profit of the consolidated

companies as follows:

BiE (%)

AEBBRBA (BR) SHHRERER 2
FHE(LNEANGEEARAR (BB, EFz

AR R )Z%ﬁﬁmﬂ'

2016 2015

—E—-XRE —ER4F

HK$'000 HK$°000

FETT FET

(Loss)/profit before taxation BriAT (EB) SRR (416,091) 205,358
Taxation at the domestic income tax rate of RS E16.5%

16.5% (2015: 16.5%) (7§7£¢; 16.5% ) st E 2 B8 (68,655) 33,884
Tax effect of income not subject to taxation BERBBA 2 RIBRZE (3,074) (3,428)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for TR MBI 2o RIBHE

taxation purposes 153,324 111,430
Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses BAMEEE BB E (4,156) (1,712)
Tax effect of temporary differences RAERERER ZMIETE

not recognised 4,882 1,319
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RERTIBEBE HIETE 7,276 2,465
Tax effect of share of profits of NEEELERMNIBHELE

joint ventures (71) (92)
Effect of tax exemptions granted to FREINBAREBEMRERE 2 VE

the PRC subsidiaries (55,252) (100,548)
(Over-provision)/under-provision of E—FEEBHIE

current tax in previous year (IBERE) BETR (1,707) 26
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries P E A BARE S AL

operating in other jurisdictions MEARZ TRMETE (2,669) (1,809)
Change in opening deferred taxation BEAMEEES Bz

balances resulting from changes in FHRTER AR E

applicable tax rates - (411)
Taxation charge FREZH 29,898 41,124
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HZEZZ

13. (LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE

(a)

(b)

Basic (loss)/earnings per share
The calculation of basic (loss)/earnings per share is

o=y

MBEHRRKE (&)

—RFETZA=+—RHIFE

13. B8R (BBR) BF

(a)

BREX (BE) ZF
FRRERN (FB) /B DIRA QTSR

based on the Group's (loss)/profit attributable to equity RELMTEBRFE ( Eﬂﬁ)//ﬁﬂ > LA4E A
shareholders of the Company for the year divided by the BETROD 2 METFHHTE -
weighted average number of shares in issue during the
year.
2016 2015
—E—-XRE —ET—RF
(Loss)/profit attributable to RpalEmREES
equity shareholders of the Company (E518) %A (F%T)
(in thousand HKD) (393,007) 150,879
Weighted average number of ERTERR 2 MEFLHE (TR) :
ordinary shares in issue (in thousand):
Issued ordinary shares at 1 January R—A—BZE#TEER 9,983,496 9,960,025
Effect of share options exercised EATRERE E.“ 9,536 -
Effect of allotment of scrip shares e ERND 2w E - 9,903
Weighted average number of RTZA=+—RBzEmkz
ordinary shares at 31 December kg E (FR)
(in thousand) 9,993,032 9,969,928

Basic (loss)/earnings per share

Diluted (loss)/earnings per share

The calculation of diluted (loss)/earnings per share is
based on the Group's (loss)/profit attributable to equity
shareholders of the Company and adjusted to reflect the
interest on the convertible bonds. The weighted average
number of ordinary shares used in the calculation is the
number of ordinary shares in issue during the year, as used
in the basic (loss)/earnings per share calculation, and the
weighted average number of ordinary shares assumed
to have been issued at no consideration on the deemed
exercise or conversion of all potentially dilutive ordinary

shares into ordinary shares of the Company.

Diluted (loss)/earnings per share for the years ended 31
December 2016 and 2015 are same as the basic (loss)/
earnings per share as both the share options and the
convertible bonds outstanding during the years had an

anti-dilutive effect on the basic (loss)/earnings per share.

FRER (BE) &F

(b)

(3.93) centsflls 1.51 centsflll

SREBE (BB BR
%ﬁ&%(ﬁ%)/@ﬁ)ﬂ&ﬂi“ﬂ%ﬁé%
REGAEE (BE) EME - LEH
SRR A AR E 2R °a$”ﬁﬁ%
Rzt mEBRmEFABRFEANDETER
BEE (B EGRER (B1R) B
RAEAR) RBERAEEERELR
B ARAR VBT (0 S B R R AN 1 B A A B AR
BTz EBRZMETFIIE-

HREBE_Z-R"ER-Z-RF+A
=+ — B L FE AR Z 8B &R

BHmoABRESHERERN(BR)
BAMNEAEREBERXE HEAZEREE
(B1R) BRNEGRER (FE) &
GE
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14.

134

EMBHRRME (&)

ASSETS/LIABILITIES OF THE DISPOSAL GROUP
CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE

On 4 January 2016, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
entered into a sale and purchase agreement (as supplemented
and amended on 23 February 2016 and 2 August 2016) (the
“Sale and Purchase Agreement”) with a related party, Sunjet
Investments Limited (“Sunjet”), in which a director (also a
substantial shareholder) of the Company has beneficial interest,
for the disposal of entire interests in Multi Glory Limited (“Multi
Glory”) and the loan due from Multi Glory to the Group for
a cash consideration of HK$2,150,000,000 (the
Restructuring (the

"Disposal”).
"Restructuring”) was carried out to put the
Disposal Group (as defined below) in place before completion
of the Disposal. After the Restructuring, Multi Glory, through
held 100% interest in &
(Gang Le Trading (Shenzhen) Co.

certain wholly-owned subsidiaries,
225 CRINBRAF
Ltd.*), which in turn held 100% interest in FJITH 54 E %

EEAMR QA (Shenzhen Peng Le Industrial Development Co.
Ltd.*), which in turn held 100% interest in &I TH B L8R K
fir5PBR A F (Shenzhen Sinodata Technology Co. Ltd.*) which
in turn held 100% interest in SEIITH BLEEIE R EREER
28] (Shenzhen Sinodata Equipment Services Co. Ltd.*) and
50% interest in RYITH Bz £ MBI E AR A A (Shenzhen
Siyuan Zhuoyue Technology Development Co. Ltd.*) (hereinafter
As at 31

it was intended that the net proceeds from

collectively referred to as the
December 2016,
the Disposal would firstly be applied by the Company for the

“Disposal Group”).

redemption of the convertible bonds which are subject to
redemption notices and in the aggregate principal amount of
approximately HK$1,431,042,000 (2015: HK$1,848,415,000).
The principal activities of the Disposal Group are design and
provision of lottery systems and equipment for lottery in the PRC
for traditional Welfare Computer Ticket Games operations. The
Disposal was completed in February 2017. Further details are set
out in the Company’s announcements dated 5 January 2016, 23
February 2016, 29 March 2016, 29 April 2016, 19 May 2016,
27 July 2016, 2 August 2016, 9 January 2017, 27 January 2017,
14 February 2017 respectively and circulars dated 29 February
2016 and 30 September 2016.

it is estimated that the
proceeds of the Disposal would exceed the carrying amount

Upon completion of the Disposal,

of the net assets of the Disposal Group, and accordingly, no
impairment loss has been recognised on the assets which were
classified as assets held for sale as at the end of the reporting
period.

REXLot Holdings Limited fZe-R #1Z R B R AR

—RFTZA=+—HILFE

14.

PERBEHECHEARZEE AF

RZE—ARFE—ANB AQR—H2ENEB
A B EARIEE T Sunjet Investments Limited (7

N

N —REERFTEZRIHEBHERER)
(Tsunjet DTV EEWHH (R=ZZE—X<F=A
Zt+=BAERZZE-R"ENAZ-BEHTERE
i) (TE&E®m&E]) - EMulti Glory Limited
(I'Multi Glory |) 2z & ## & & Multi Glory#s &
AEHZER RERER2,150,000,000% 7T
(THEFE]) BA([EH])EREESTER
BRRTH#EIT ABEHESEE (EHER TX)KLe
RE#% - Multi GloryiZEBE T2EMB AR

BEALZES (FI)BRABZ100% s 4&
AEERYIMBLEELZRARA 72100%&%

W BEAFAERNTRBLEBERMERA
100% s - & & AT AR ﬂ\lm,mé"%%ﬁzﬁﬁ%&%ﬂﬁé
BB AFZ100%H# &= KORYIT BiE SR
FEBRARZ0%EE (TXHEEA ([HE
£8]) RZZFE—AR"F+-A=+—8H ' £&RQA
RS LEFE MSERBEFEEeEARELEL
AT AN ¢ B A/1,431,042,0008 7T (=
T—F4 :1,848,415,00087T) Z AT BIRES -
HESE IZXBKARTPEAERELEN
REEBENTEER T RRERHEERG R REE
B HEETBEER_ZTE—tF_ARK - E—F
HBHRARREBHA-_T—X<"F—ARA =
T-XRF_A-+=B - ZFE—X"F=A=-1+h
A - _7’ /\Ep—qﬁ ‘f’j‘LH 7’ ﬁﬁzﬁﬂ
+71E| 7 /\E‘tﬂ +JEE1 7’ /_\¢
/\ﬂfE\f—ftifﬁhH:%ftE*
B-t+tHE-Z—tF-_A+WBZAHMN
FEEA-T-—RNF-_A-+tNABE-ZT—X
FAA=Z+RHZEX

RS EREEKE B EEBEMERARE
BHEEEEEFEZERESE Bt RRE
PRI ER D BRAFIEHEEECEERRM
EREE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HEZZ—RF+_A=+—RHItFE

14. ASSETS/LIABILITIES OF THE DISPOSAL GROUP 14. PERBHEHEZLHEARZEE &E
CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE (continued) (%)
The results of the Disposal Group classified as held for sale that FAZERER P EARELECLEREH
are included in the consolidated income statement are shown as ZEBHRET
below:
2016 2015
—E-XF —T-h%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET

Profit for the year from the Disposal Group: HEE Bz EERA :

Revenue A 486,643 485,823
Cost of sales/services rendered HE RERES 2 AR (214,004) (217,879)
Other income and other gains and losses E b U A A R HoAth g 25 K 5 18 11,315 4,236
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHER (21,009) (14,961)
Administrative expenses THER (126,772) (115,873)
Operating profit ReEEA 136,173 141,346
Finance costs s E A (3,859) (6,190)
Profit before taxation RR B A % R 132,314 135,156
Taxation g (22,300) (21,084)
Profit for the year FE=A 110,014 114,072
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 BHEZZ—RF+_A=+—HIFE

14. ASSETS/LIABILITIES OF THE DISPOSAL GROUP

136

CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE (continued)
The major classes of assets and liabilities of the Disposal Group
classified as held for sale as at 31 December are as follows:

(%)

14. PEARABEHEZHEMABIZEE BF

RTZ A=t B EABIFHEZHELRE

ZEENRBEBEIESAMNMT:

2016 2015
—E-XF TN
HK$'000 HK$'000
FETT FET
Assets BE
Property, plant and equipment YE HENERE 117,459 138,690
Prepaid lease payments on land use rights T Hb R 2 B AR 41,853 42,615
Goodwill EES 1,026,795 1,026,795
Intangible assets mvEE 22,054 37,991
Deposit for acquisition of WEREEFES
leasehold building 169,511 452
Deferred tax assets REBHIBEEE 5,963 -
Inventories rE 98,474 116,397
Trade receivables FEUE 5 R 84,692 97,231
Utility and other deposits NAFEREMZE 103,393 103,885
Prepayments and other receivables T8 g3 30 T8 K E A E KGR IE 525,317 527,889
Cash and bank balances Re RIRITEH 100,086 144,718
Assets of the disposal group NEAFIELEZ
classified as held for sale PEARZEE 2,295,597 2,236,663
Liabilities 8&
Trade payables JENTE 5 R (44,397) (36,549)
Other payables and accruals L JE 5T 3B K FEETRIE (202,759) (31,280)
Bank borrowings RITIEE (137,456) (71,429)
Current tax liabilities EHHIEEE (18,731) (9,526)
Deferred tax liabilities REHIBERE (640) (4,832)
Liabilities directly associated with HOERFEREZHEENZ
the assets of the disposal group BEEEEEBz8E
classified as held for sale (403,983) (153,616)
Net assets of the disposal group DEABENEZ
classified as held for sale HEMERCFEE 1,891,614 2,083,047

At 31 December 2016, bank loans of approximately
HK$55,556,000 (2015: HK$71,429,000) are secured on
leasehold buildings and land use rights in the PRC for the
carrying values of approximately HK$16,689,000 (2015:
HK$18,406,000) and HK$26,678,000 (2015: HK$29,378,000)

respectively.

At 31 December 2016, a Company’s director, Mr. Chan How
Chung, Victor (“Mr. Chan”) has given personal guarantee in
respect of bank borrowings of approximately HK$81,900,000

(2015: HKS$Nil).

REXLot Holdings Limited fJZe-R #1ZR B R AR

RZZT—XF+=_A=+—H " 455,556,000
T(ZE—FHF:71,429,0008 ) 2 RITER
LABRE1E 5 54 7516,689,000 T (Z 2 —H
118,406,000 jT) % 26,678,000 T (=&
— R4 29,378,000 L) v P REEEF K L
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HEZZ—RF+_A=+—RHItFE

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

15. V¥ - BMERKZE

Leasehold
buildings
in the PRC
erected on Furniture,
long term Leasehold Lottery  fixtures and Plant and Motor
lease  improvements machines  equipment machinery vehicles Total
RREEE
RABERZ HENE G %8 BER
BEEF %6 ¥E e Ha RE &t
HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
&1 TET TET TET FET TET FET
Cost BA
At 1 January 2015 RZE-1%-A—-A 31,340 38,184 109,311 47871 137,237 14,536 378,479
Exchange realignment MERE (1361) (1,521) (6,268) (2,991) (4,549) (692) (17,382)
Additions HE - 2,273 29,744 23,962 30 3,285 59,29
Disposals and written off & R - - - (741) (2,29) (959) (3,999)
Reclassified as held for sale PEAFELE
(Note 14) (Pizk14) (27,208) (18,734) (132,449) (47,590) (8,558) (10,382) (244,921)
At 31 December 2015 and RZE-RE+ZA=1+-BEk
1 January 2016 —E-"%-A-H 2,171 20,202 338 20,511 121,862 5,788 171,472
Exchange realignment MEFE - (574) @ (1,127) (5,359) (280) (7,344)
Additions HE - 704 - 893 896 426 2,919
Disposals and witten off HE R - (6,168) (334) (3,343) (3,103) (942) (13,890)
At 31 December 2016 R=B-AE+ZA=1-H 2,111 14,164 - 16,934 114,29 4,992 153,157
Accumulated depreciation i HE
At 1 January 2015 RZZ-1F-F—H 4,795 31,199 40,218 28,788 67,082 10,138 182,220
Exchange realignment SMEFE (249) (1,274) (2,612) (1,437) (1.931) (470) (7.973)
Charge for the year REEXH 733 3077 19,541 5,204 17,467 1,909 48,021
Disposals and written off i R 8 - - - (706) (2,183) (947) (3,836)
Reclassified as held for sale PERRELE
(Note 14) (FisE14) (5,129) (15,703) (57,147) (15,335) (6,441) (6,476) (106,231)
At 31 December 2015 and RZZ-RF+-A=1+-REk
1 January 2016 “E-~F-A-H 150 17,299 - 16,604 73994 4,154 112,201
Exchange realignment MEFE - (434) - (918) (2,494) (218) (4,064)
Charge for the year TEEXH 93 1472 - 1383 7,517 634 11,099
Disposals and written off & R - (6,168) - (3,.418) (2,383) (743) (12,712)
At 31 December 2016 RZE-RE+ZA=1-H 243 12,169 - 13,651 76,634 3,827 106,524
Net book value REFE
At 31 December 2016 R=B-AE+ZA=1-H 2,528 1,995 - 3,83 37,662 1,165 46,633
At 31 December 2015 RZZ-A%+ZA=1+-A 2,621 2,903 338 3,907 47,868 1,634 59,271

Plant and machinery with carrying value of approximately
HK$31,288,000 (2015: HK$39,753,000) are held under a sales
and leaseback agreement (Note 36).

B H 4 49 /431,288,000 T (T — R 4F:
39,753,000 7T ) 2 M E K R IB IR & 12 T B 15
#EIFA (ME36) -
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 BHEZZ—RF+_A=+—HIFE

16. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS ON LAND USE RIGHTS 16. THERAEZEASELONTR
2016 2015
—E-XE —E—hF
HK$'000 HK$°000
FET FET
Cost 22N
At beginning of the year REH) 755 53,123
Exchange realignment SN BE 37 B - (2,319)
Reclassified as held for sale (Note 14) DEAFIELE (HiE14) - (50,049)
At end of the year INGSES 755 755
Accumulated amortisation HETEs
At beginning of the year REFH) 20 6,806
Exchange realignment SN 2 - (323)
Amortisation for the year R E S H 12 971
Reclassified as held for sale (Note 14) DEAFIELE (FE14) - (7,434)
At end of the year NGRS 32 20
Net book value REFE
At end of the year NG 723 735

17.

138

The Group's interest in leasehold land and land use rights is
outside Hong Kong with medium term leases.

AEERESET AT ERBZESMNE
BMLE  WREPHEERE -

GOODWILL 17. B&
2016 2015
—E—XE —T—RHF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Cost R
At 1 January wn—A— 1,293,057 2,319,852
Reclassified as held for sale (Note 14) DERFELE (H14) - (1,026,795)
At 31 December R+=—A=+—H 1,293,057 1,293,057
Accumulated impairment losses it REEE
At 1 January »—A—H 887,851 788,530
Impairment loss BEEE 103,923 99,321
At 31 December R+-—A=+—H 991,774 887,851
Carrying value at 31 December R+=-—A=+—-BzKEE 301,283 405,206

REXLot Holdings Limited fZe-R #1Z R B R AR
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17. GOODWILL (continued) 17. @& (EF)
The carrying amount of goodwill represents the goodwill BEZEEEBREREEEB CREMESE
arising from acquisition of investments in lottery business and is ZEB GFAREEBOB - HBREESIRT
included in the lottery business segment. The carrying amount WARSEZEREEEEMLAER
of goodwill was allocated to groups of cash-generating units as
follows:
2016 2015
—NE —hHEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Multiple units without significant goodwill WEEAFE LB 301,283 405,206
In accordance with the Group's accounting policies, the Group RBEASEEZ2EHBE AEED2RESE

has assessed the recoverable amount of goodwill arising from
acquisition of investments in lottery business by reference to
the higher of cash-generating units’ value in use and fair value
less costs of disposal and determined that such goodwill has not
been impaired other than the cash-generating units mentioned
below. The calculations of value in use or fair value less costs
of disposal require the use of cash flow projections based on
financial budgets approved by the management covering the
operation periods of 5 years (2015: 5 years) or contractual
periods of 10 years (2015: 11 years) with pre-tax discount rates
ranging from 18.23% to 18.95% (2015: 18.25% to 19.33%)
per annum. The discount rates used reflect specific risks relating
to the businesses and the terminal value growth rate of 3%
(2015: 3%) is in line with the forecasts adopted by the lottery
industry.

In the opinion of the management, the lottery industry in
China will grow along with its economy in the coming decades
and remains as the main contribution to the good causes
which benefit the general public in China other than the cash-
generating units mentioned below, and is similar with the lottery
history of other countries of the world. As a major participant in
the lottery industry in the PRC over 5 years, the Group possesses
an in-depth knowledge of the industry. The management
believed that the projected cash flows based on financial
budgets/forecasts for periods by 5 or 10 years (2015: 5 or 11

years) are reliable.

EBUZEREERAAERBEEKRAR (UAR
SERE)FERARBRYRER 2 REMEE
ez R e WETZEELERE
THREEEEMRN -FEEREBEERARD
ERHERAR BEREEBEHELRE

AF(ZE-RF AF)BEHKTF(=F
—HRE T -F)ANBIUMBEE YRESF
N F18.23%ZE18.95% (ZF —HF:18.25%

£19.33%) 2 BHAMREETREREEA
Mz MR ERMBEHEB 2 TAR T
3% (ZF—HF:3%) ZHBMEREDHAK
17 TR 2 T

ERERR BRTIOARSELABLMIN PRTE
TERRRB+FREREBERASER  WHEE
REZZBRERR - EBFEAR @R %
BRREZERAU NREBEXKATFBRFES
FEQUEB AT BERETENZ -EHRE
BE BBELFXTEH(ZT—1F: AFsk
+—FH)BBREE BAGEZEARSRE
BB
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 BHEZZ—RF+_A=+—HIFE

17. GOODWILL (continued)

140

(M

(i)

Year ended 31 December 2016

One of the Group's cash-generating units which is
principally engaged in lottery distribution and marketing
service was fully impaired. During the year, a material
contract related to lottery distribution with a lottery center
expired without renewal which aggravated its business
performance. Accordingly, full impairment loss on goodwill
of HK$103,923,000 was recognised.

Year ended 31 December 2015

One of the Group’s cash-generating units which was
principally engaged in development of mobile value-
added services using the traditional type of mobile value-
added services was impaired. During the year, most of
the traditional type of the mobile value-added service has
been replaced by a high technology mobile value-added
service. Accordingly, further impairment loss on goodwill of
HK$99,321,000 was recognised.

The values assigned to the key assumptions represent

management’s assessment of future trends in the lottery

industry and are based on historical data from both external and

internal sources. As the above cash-generating units have been

reduced to their recoverable amounts, any adverse change in

the assumptions used in the calculation of recoverable amounts

would result in further impairment losses.

REXLot Holdings Limited fZe-R #1Z R B R AR
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EXELEARTSRE)E2HERE-F
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I °
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HEZZ—RF+_A=+—RHItFE

18. BILEE

Deferred
Computer development Operating
software cost right Total
EREH EEBRRRAX F<3-¥ &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000
FEr FET FET FET
Cost RAE
At 1 January 2015 R-E-nF—A—A8 8,744 18,798 87,250 114,792
Exchange realignment HNE 3= 417) (895) (4,155) (5,467)
Reclassified as held for sale DEARBELE (H214)
(Note 14) (3,214) (17,903) (83,095) (104,212)
At 31 December 2015 and R-E-RF+-A=+—-8EK
1 January 2016 N 5,113 - - 5,113
Exchange realignment NE T E (274) - - (274)
Write off ik (1,519) - - (1,519)
At 31 December 2016 R-ZE-A"E+=-A=+—H 3,320 - - 3,320
Accumulated amortisation B E
At 1 January 2015 R-_ZE—h&E—HA—H 3,049 18,798 35,142 56,989
Exchange realignment HNE 372 (192) (895) (2,187) (3,274)
Charge for the year AFEZH 1,337 - 14,362 15,699
Reclassified as held for sale DEARBELE (H214)
(Note 14) (1,001) (17,903) (47,317) (66,221)
At 31 December 2015 and R-FE-RF+-A=+—-8kK
1 January 2016 —E-x§-F-H 3,193 - - 3,193
Exchange realignment HNE 372 213) - - (213)
Charge for the year AEEZH 517 - - 517
Written back on write off  #4 88  B (508) - - (508)
At 31 December 2016 R-E-A%+-A=1+-H 2,989 - - 2,989
Net book value REFE
At 31 December 2016 R-ZZE-R"E+ZA=+—H 331 - - 331
At 31 December 2015 R-ZF-RF+-A=1+—H 1,920 - - 1,920

(@) The amortisation of operating rights is included in cost
of sales; the amortisation of computer software and long
term contracts is included in administrative expenses.

(b) Computer software of carrying value of approximately
HK$331,000 (2015: HK$1,920,000) is the intangible
assets acquired and possessed by the lottery business.
The intangible assets have definite useful lives and are
amortised over their estimated useful lives of 10 years
(2015: 2 to 10 years).

(a) BRERZEBHAAHEERS MEMEM
REMGHZBERFATHRER-

(b) BREEX331,0008 L (=T —HF:

1,920,000/ 70 ) 2 B A

A===1
o=

Eien

WHRAEAZ BV AR REVAEAR
WEMAER  LREHARERTE (=
ToRG BB
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19.

142

INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES

19. REELXZER

2016 2015
—E-RF —E-RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Share of net assets of joint ventures: NMhEEREEEFE:

Balance as at 1 January R—RA—Bz#&# 377,614 384,552
Impairment loss on goodwill HERAEEE (122,396) -
Share of (losses)/profits of joint ventures DMEEERE (FBB), /&7 (65,195) 558

Share of other comprehensive expense of SEEECEHMEEMAX
joint ventures (9,207) (7,496)
Dividend received BB E (11,550) -
Balance as at 31 December Rt-_A=+—B2&% 169,266 377,614
Unlisted shares, at cost ELETRG R 269,077 269,077
Amount due to a joint venture BN —EEEhERE 46,195 46,195

(a)

Interests in joint ventures at 31 December 2016 include
goodwill of HK$Nil (2015: HK$122,396,000).

Full impairment losses of goodwill and intangible
assets with carrying value amounting to approximately
HK$122,396,000 and approximately HK$58,823,000
respectively included in the interests in joint ventures
were recognised in profit or loss for the year due to the
keen market competition and unfavourable operating
environment in scratch card market. The carrying amounts
of the interests in joint ventures exceeded their recoverable
amounts of approximately HK$170,000,000. Pre-tax
discount rate of 18.32% and terminal value growth rate of
3% had been used in the calculation of the value in use of
the interests in joint ventures.

The amount due to a joint venture is unsecured, interest
free and has no fixed terms of repayment. In the opinion of
the Directors, the amount due would not likely be repaid in
the following year and is therefore shown as non-current.

REXLot Holdings Limited fZe-R #1Z R B R AR

RZE—RE+-A=+—HB Rea&nr
EoRGPERESET(ZF—
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HEZZ—RF+_A=+—RHItFE

INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (continued)

accounted for using the equity method in the consolidated

financial statements, are as follows:

19. RE

Details of the Group's interests in joint ventures, which are RErE

hxzERE (F)
MBBRRIEEREIARZIAEEARAE
CEZERFBOT:

Place of Principal Particulars of Effective
incorporation/ activities and issued/registered interest
Name registration place of operation and paid up capital held
BR#fT/EMK
EmREL TEEBR BHRRE ER
=L = iR 3th B EE3 1 s ES
Happy Sun Technologies Ltd. British Virgin Islands  Investment holding 4 ordinary shares of 50%
KERTES in the PRC US$1 each
R BBETIRE R ARBREEIZETLZ
Success Trader Technologies Limited Hong Kong Investment holding Ordinary shares of 50%
BERRBRAAF EE in the PRC HK$10,000
R BEETIREER 10,000 T 2 & B
FEMBREER ORI BERQA PRC Investment holding US$12,000,000 50%
e in the PRC 12,000,000 7T
R B ITREER
RINEFMBHEERAR AR PRC Investment holding RMB54,606,000 50%
e in the PRC AR #54,606,0007T
R BETIREER
ERXEFNBEEARAA PRC Provision of systems and ~ RMB89,180,000 50%
(Beijing Guard Libang Technology Co. Ltd.*) equipment in the lottery AR #89,180,0007T

market in the PRC

R BYEMHRHERGR

B
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19. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (continued) 19. REELEERE (B)
The Group's share of the results of its joint ventures (in AEBHSHEES JJ:% (FMBENTBERZE
aggregate for all individually insignificant joint ventures), its EEMEE) 22 BEERBEOAT:
aggregated assets and liabilities, are as follows:
2016 2015
—NE —RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Group's effective interest AEBER#ER 50% 50%
Revenue WA 112,389 142,037
Impairment loss on goodwill HEREEE (122,396) -
Impairment loss on intangible assets mEEEREEE (58,823) -
(Loss)/profit from continuing operations REFHBEEEEK 2 (BR) EF (130,391) 1,115
Other comprehensive expense HEt2EAX (18,413) (14,990)
Total comprehensive expense 2HEMZ BT (148,804) (13,875)
Group's share of total comprehensive expense A& B o (h 2 258 (74,402) (6,938)
Dividend received from a joint venture BEl—HeaErERE 11,550 -
Non-current assets ERBEE 155,515 322,457
Current assets mBEE 197,106 204,090
Current liabilities DoER=RE 14,089 16,111
Equity = 338,532 510,436
Group's share of joint ventures’ equity KEEBShEELEER 169,266 255,218
Goodwill EES - 122,396
Carrying amount in the consolidated REre WS HmE 2 REE
financial statements 169,266 377,614

TEAEAEENGECEZREZHAREE
BRELERGTEXAAE-

There are no contingent liabilities relating to the Group's
interests in the joint ventures, and no contingent liabilities of the
joint ventures themselves.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HEZZ—RF+_A=+—RHItFE

INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (continued) 19. REELEERE (B)
At 31 December 2016, the Group's share of joint ventures’ RZE—RNE+ZA=+—H8 Tr&KEHhHEE
future aggregate minimum lease payments under non- CEREBEIUBELCEHERMN 2 RARKEMR
cancellable operating leases are payable as follows: AN KRBT
2016 2015
—E-XRF —ET-hF
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FET
Land and buildings T R T
Within one year —F R 426 482
In the second to fifth year inclusive FEEZFEAF (RIEEREWST) - 7
426 489
AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS 20. THHEERMEE
2016 2015
—E-XF —ZT-h%F
HK$'000 HK$°000
FETT FET
Unlisted investments, at cost ELTRE IR
Balance at 1 January R—H—BZz#&& 307,810 77,182
Exchange realignment SN B (18,255) (2,056)
Addition (Note (a)) o (fsEGa)) 556 -
Further capital injections (Note (b)) FEINEE (MFEDb)) - 232,684
290,111 307,810
Less: Investment refund R E R (1,305) -
Balance at 31 December R+ZA=+—HB2Z&#% 288,806 307,810
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REMBHRRME (F)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 BEZZ—RFE+_A=+—HILFE

20. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS (continued)

146

Notes:

(a)

(o)

The Group invested the sum of RMB500,000 in an unlisted
investment fund with a bank during the year (2015: HK$Nil).

In 2014, the Group injected RMB200,000,000 (the “Injection”)
in an indirect non wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company (the
"PRC Company”). HK$5,682,000 (RMB4,546,000) of the Injection
was recognised as registered share capital in the PRC Company
and recognised as an available-for-sale financial asset in 2014.
The remaining amount of the Injection of HK$232,684,000
(RMB195,454,000) was transferred from prepayments and other
receivables and recognised as an available-for-sale financial asset in
2015 when the relevant legal formality was completed (Note 4B(b)).

The other unlisted investment of HK$32,695,000 (2015:
HK$34,000,000) represents the Group's cost of investment in a
private enterprise fund established in the PRC. At 31 December
2016, the Group owns 18.3% (2015: 18.3%) of the paid-in capital
of the investee. The Directors consider the principal activity of the
investee is investment holding.

The unlisted investments are measured at cost less impairment

losses, if any, at the end of the reporting period because the

range of reasonable fair value estimates is so significant that

the D

value

irectors of the Company are of the opinion that their fair
cannot be measured reliably. The Group does not intend to

dispose of them in the near future.

REXI

Lot Holdings Limited fHZsR #AZAER A R

20. A

o :

(a)

HESHMEE (8)

REEBRERNCHR —FARITREAFTARE
500,000t 23k LR EES (ZT—RHF:TH
JT) °

RIZT—F  AEERAQR —MEEEEZEN
B ([ZPEAQF])EEARK200,000,000
TL([EE]) « & 25,682,000 T (AR
4,546,0007T ) HER AZ BB AR 2 EMARA - I
T NFERAAHLESRHEE- BT 2T
%232,684,000/% 7T ( A R ¥195,454,0007T) B 7
—E - REEBAEEREF AR TEARERE
fb EURIESE B WHERATTHEESREE (W
$T4B(b)) ©

Hfth 3 £ 4% 432,695,000 (T — A F:
34,000,000/ 7T) E AR BN —BEPBEK L2
MACEESZREXNE - R_E—R"F+=A
=+ B AEEEAZEIREARNHBAER
2183% (ZZ—HF:183%) - EERAE %I
RERERRAZEBXEBAREER -

HRIFLTREZABAANEMRTHEERE &~
REEERBRAGEFAFHFAEERRE UL
FLMRER IS P RIZR AR ERE (1
B2 -AEEEERNAHBERE-
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

eV HBBERRME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HEZZ—RF+_A=+—RHILFE

DEFERRED TAXATION

(a)

Deferred tax liabilities recognised

21.

Fair value
adjustments on
prepaid lease
payments on
land use rights

i 3E R

(a) CHRBELEHESE

and buildings Other taxable
on business Revaluation of temporary
combinations properties differences Total
REBEHE
RiwERER
BF2RAHEY
HFRAEZ Hib RS
DAEAER EXrY/ES ERER a%t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000
FiET FET FET FET
At 1 January 2015 R-_Z-—hF—H[—H 640 4,015 146,614 151,269
Exchange realignment HIME R - (191) (977) (1,168)
Charged to the consolidated TR ARERNZ H
income statement (Note 12) (F#E12) - - 10,999 10,999
Attributable to changes MEEEER (FF12)
in tax rates (Note 12) - - (411) (411)
Reclassified to liabilities directly ~ EFNHEZENBABEHLEZ
associated with assets of HERNEEERER AR
the disposal group classified (FsE14)
as held for sale (Note 14) (640) (3,824) (368) (4,832)
At 31 December 2015 and RZZE-RF+-A=+—-AKk
1 January 2016 —E-R"F-A—H - - 155,857 155,857
Exchange realignment SNE B - - (880) (880)
Credited to the consolidated TialERAAR
income statement (Note 12) (F#E12) - - (1,964) (1,964)
Deferred tax assets reclassified ~ EHDBEENBABELEZ
to the Disposal Group HEMR 2 EEHIBEE
classified as assets held for sale ~ (Fff314)
(Note 14) - 10,155 10,155
At 31 December 2016 R-B-xE+ZA=1+-H - -
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REMBHRRME (F)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 BEZZ—RFE+_A=+—HILFE

21.

148

DEFERRED TAXATION (continued)

21, EEHIE (&)

(a) Deferred tax liabilities recognised (continued) (a) EEIRELEHEBEEMSE (&)
For the purpose of consolidated statement of financial MEVNGEMBRARME & TELERIE
position presentation, certain deferred tax assets/(liabilities) BE/ (BB DERBASKHERE K6
have been offset in accordance with the conditions set MBRARERATEERBESRITOT
out. The following is the analysis of deferred tax balances
shown in the consolidated statement of financial position:
2016 2015
ZE-XF —E—AF
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FET
Deferred tax liabilities RIERIEEE (163,245) (155,857)
Deferred tax assets REBIRE E 77 -
(163,168) (155,857)
(b) Deferred tax assets/(liabilities) have not been recognised in (b) WARNTBERABELHBELE, (A

respect of the following items:

8

13»:

2016 2015
ZE-XF —E—hF
HK$000 HK$000
FET FrET
Deductible temporary differences ARERER

— decelerated tax depreciation — BRI IETE 2,980 1,372
— others —Hith 6,195 6,267
Tax losses HIE K18 106,290 52,046
115,465 59,685

Notes: B EE

(i) The deductible temporary differences do not expire under the

current tax legislation.

(i) Tax losses of approximately HK$83,711,000 (2015:
HK$26,987,000) arising from the Group's lottery business in
the PRC will expire in the fifth year commencing from the
year the loss incurred whereas tax losses of approximately
HK$22,579,000 (2015: HK$25,059,000) arising from the
Group's other subsidiaries in Hong Kong do not expire under

the current tax legislation.

REXLot Holdings Limited fJZe-R #1ZR B R AR

(i)

REBERTHE THNREREZREL T EE
HA o

BERITRE AEERPREZ Y RER
FrE£ 2 BB 184983,711,0008 T (=%
— F % :26,987,000/ 70) i B EEE BT
ERAZSATIS MAEERESZ Eitb
B /B8 A I FTEE 4 2 B IB 5 18 4922,579,000/%
(= ZF— A4 25,059,000 7T) I &
ZHF o



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

eV HBBERRME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HEZZ—RF+_A=+—RHILFE

22. INVENTORIES 22. 78
(a) Inventories in the consolidated statement of financial (a) IWALZEBRARZFERSRE:
position comprise:
2016 2015
—E-RE —E—RF
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Raw materials R 5,295 17,152
Work-in-progress &G 2,157 4,112
Finished goods BIAK SR 504 2,230
7,956 23,494
(b) The analysis of the amount of inventories recognised as (b) BRAEAIZWFARNEBRBER 2 FEHE
expense and included in the Group's profit or loss is as ba /RN
follows:
2016 2015
—E-REF —E—hF
HK$000 HK$°000
FET FET
Cost of inventories sold (Note 9) HEFEZ KA (KF9) 477,393 433,073
Cost of services provided RRERF 2 AR 65,917 73,645
Cost of sales/services rendered HE IRERSE ZRAE 543,310 506,718
23. TRADE RECEIVABLES 23. EREZERX
2016 2015
—E-RF —E—hF
HK$000 HK$000
FET FET
Trade receivables — Lottery business ERESGER-—FEREL 490,836 760,152

The Directors consider that the carrying amounts of trade

receivables approximate to their fair values. The Group generally
grants credit periods of 90 to 270 days (2015: 90 to 270 days)

to its trade customers.

EERAE BRESERZEEAEEALEM
B AKEE-—BRETESHEFIORE270K (=
T -AF 90KE270K) ZEEH -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
meMBEBRKRMKME (F)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 BEZZ—RF+_A=+—HIFE

23. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued) 23. EHESRR (&)

The ageing analysis is as follows: BRE 2T T -
2016 2015
ZE-XF —E—AF
HK$000 HK$000
FET FET
Three months or less =EAKAT 224,922 358,148
One year or less but over three months —FHEUATE=@EAUE 189,745 382,644
Over one year —F LAk 76,169 19,360
490,836 760,152

As at 31 December 2016, trade receivables of approximately
HK$76,169,000 (2015: HK$1,776,000) were past due but not
impaired. These related to a number of independent customers

for whom there is no recent history of default. The ageing of

these receivables is as follows:

RZZE—XF+ZA=+—H" 476,169,000
T (ZZE—FF:1,776,000/87T) 2 B E SR
REBHBEIWRRE - ZFHIATS R % BT &
MR REH 2 BIRE - ZSRIMFIAZ KR
W

2016 2015

ZE-XF —E—AF

HK$000 HK$'000

FET FET

Three months or less past due BEH=FEAKAT 66,437 -
One year or less but over three months BH—FUATE=EAMNL

past due 7,200 -

Over one year past due BE—FE 2,532 1,776

76,169 1,776
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24.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

REUHBBERME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HEZZ—RF+_A=+—RHItFE

TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued) 23.

In the opinion of the Directors, all of the other trade receivables
are neither past due nor impaired.

Movements on the allowance for impairment of bad and
doubtful debts are as follows:

FEWE 5 BRMA (F)
E=ZAR MAEHOBRKREZRFIGARES
ERE -

SEEAEREEDNT

2016 2015

—E-RF —T—RF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FET

At 1 January m—H—H - 1,551
Exchange realignment SMEE 38 2 - (74)
Reclassified as held for sale BN DHERFIELE - (1,477)
At 31 December ®n+=—A=+—H - -

Amounts charged to the allowance account are generally written
off when there is no expectation of recovering additional cash.
The Group does not hold any collateral as security.

UTILITY AND OTHER DEPOSITS 24.

Utility and other deposits represent the deposits paid for the
rollout of lottery business operation including rental, machines

and equipment, projects and related utility deposits.

In the opinion of the Directors, all utility and other deposits are
neither past due nor impaired.

PR BR AN B 2 3R — AR A TR H3 A AT i (=) B8 S
ReBME - AREYESAEMNERRERE
o

DREXRAMES
AAEEREMRSERARYEEBINZ
B BRMEE #HEk&E HEREBRLHR
EXRE-

BE=ZRA MEBELARERERHEMES RN
TR R(E
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 BEZZ—RFE+_A=+—HILFE

25. PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

152

25. BBFAREMERNKIR

2016 2015

—B-AF —T-AHF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHETT FET

Prepayments and other receivables T8 4% 7R 1A Ko EL fh JiE WK IE 1,839,938 1,795,121

At the end of the reporting period, the above balances
represent prepayments made to suppliers, lottery project related

prepayments, staff advances and other receivables.

As at 31 December 2016, other receivables of approximately
HK$358,175,000 (2015: HK$156,000) were impaired. As at 31
December 2016, the amount of the allowance for impairment
was approximately HK$233,529,000 (2015: HK$151,000). The
individually impaired other receivables mainly related to those
which were in financial difficulties and management assessed
that only a small portion of the other receivables is expected to
be recovered.

In the opinion of the Directors, the remaining other receivables

are neither past due nor impaired.

Movements on the allowance for impairment of bad and
doubtful debts are as follows:

MREREHIR - L A5 645 M B P S T 2 TR
B RREBREESFIE EIRREEMRE
YRR -

R-T—XNE+-_A=+—0 HtEWzHE
# 49358,175,0008 70 (=& — A & : 156,000
AT)AREEE- R _T—XR"E+-A=1+—
H B ERE 4 /5233,529,0008 T (2 —H
F 1 151,000 7T ) © @RI 38R E 2 H fth B UK
BXZHEHBAVREESR MESRETG &
HA AT W (2 /)N 5B 9y 52 5 L At R MR RRIE o

EFERR BN EMBUFIEL AR I E
B

RIZEREBEEESHOT

2016 2015

—E—XE —T—AHF

HK$°000 HK$'000

FET FET

At 1 January »—A—H 151 940
Exchange realignment SN BE 37 B (5,089) (46)
Impairment recognised BRI E 238,467 57
Reclassified as held for sale EHPBARBELE - (800)
At 31 December R+=—A=+—H 233,529 151
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

eV HBBERRME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HEZZ—RF+_A=+—RHILFE

26. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT 26. BREREBEAREHEZERMEE
OR LOSS
2016 2015
—E-KF —E—hF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Listed securities held for trading: BEEEEZLEMES:
Equity securities listed in Hong Kong BELTRAES 132 63,935
The fair value of all equity securities is based on their current bid FFERABLHZAABENIRBESBEBATRERE
prices in an active market. Mz EABE -
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are presented BABRERANBHEZEMEENRRERE
within the section of operating activities as part of changes in RANEEEH -2 JMELEESLEFH
working capital in the statement of cash flows. e
Gains/losses on disposal of financial assets at fair value through HEBRBREAANBEFEZEMEE Z W
profit or loss and their changes in fair value are recorded in SERBURERAREEHREERERTEHRA
other gains and losses in the consolidated income statement H bz R E B (MEEEs) -
(Note 5).
27. CASH AND BANK BALANCES 27. RERBITHEER
2016 2015
—E-KF —E—hF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Fixed bank deposits EHRITFR - 491,429
Cash at banks HRITRE
- general accounts ——REP 2,136,292 605,665
- segregated accounts —BERP - 330
Cash in hand FER® 670 649
2,136,962 606,644
2,136,962 1,098,073
Fixed bank deposits represented fixed bank deposits with EHRTEFERNVEEC=ZFAAE—FAT
maturity at acquisition over 3 months and within 1 year. Mz EHRITIFER

Annual Report 2016 —Z—/4F4F4f 153



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

REMBHRRME (F)
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27.

28.

154

CASH AND BANK BALANCES (continued)

Cash and bank balances include the following amounts
denominated in currencies other than the Company’s functional
currency, HK dollars:

27. RERBITHEER (FH)
KRS RBITEHT  BETINUARRNEE
BB TIASNE R SIME 2 5 -

2016 2015
—E—XE —ET—RF

‘000 ‘000

F For

US dollars ESp 29,926 27,691
Renminbi AR 1,001,342 731,702

Cash and cash equivalents include the following for the purpose

HEAReRERME RELREEFEYERRE

of the consolidated statement of cash flows: Ty &I :
2016 2015
—E-XREF —E—hF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET Fi&ET
Cash in hand FHERE 670 649
Cash at banks — general accounts RITRE——REP 2,136,292 605,665
Cash and bank balances included FIADBEAFELE ZHEARZ
in a disposal group classified Re RIBTES (MFE14)
as held for sale (Note 14) 100,086 144,718
Cash and cash equivalents in the VWAGFEReERERIAE R
consolidated statement of cash flows ReEEW 2,237,048 751,032

NON-CASH TRANSACTION

During the year ended 31 December 2015, further capital
injections made for the available-for-sale financial asset as
mentioned in Note 20 was transferred from prepayments and
other receivables of HK$232,684,000.

During the year ended 31 December 2015, 23,470,628 new
ordinary shares were allotted and issued at HK$0.4598 per share
in respect of the final dividend for the year ended 31 December
2014.

REXLot Holdings Limited fJZe-R #1ZR B R AR

28. FBEERH
BE-_Z—AF+-_A=+—BIFEE BAHE
HESRMEEREZEIINIE (RKE20)E®
%8 232,684,00008 7T 2 TSR IE & E b FE 4K
15 o

HE-_Z-—AF+-_A=1t—BILEE &XQF
MBE-_ZT-—NE+_A=+—BIFEZ2XH
% B 3% §180.4598/%8 JU A B M #1723,470,628
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HEZZ—RF+_A=+—RHItFE

29. SHARE CAPITAL 29. B&
Number
of shares Amount
R EE &5
‘000 HK$'000
Fg FHET
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each BEREECIBT2EER
Authorised: EE:
At 1 January 2015, 31 December 2015and HR-_ZT—HF—HA—HB - —ZT—1F
31 December 2016 ZA=ET—HERZE—RF
+=—A=+—H 20,000,000 200,000
Issued and fully paid: ERITRAR:
At 1 January 2015 WZZE—-H¥—HA—H 9,960,025 99,600
Issue of shares in lieu of cash dividends BITROHRBREKE (H5@)
(Note (a)) 23,471 235
At 31 December 2015 RZE—RAF+=-A=+—H 9,983,496 99,835
Exercise of share options (Note (b)) TR AR AE (M3t (b)) 45,000 450
At 31 December 2016 R-ZEBE-XR"FE+=ZHB=+—H 10,028,496 100,285
Notes: B o
(@) On 31 July 2015, 23,470,628 new ordinary shares were allotted (@) MZZE—RAFtA=Z+—H XxRAFEBEE_Z
and issued at HK$0.4598 per share in respect of the final dividend —MOFE+ A=+ —BLEFEZRAREEZRER
for the year ended 31 December 2014. [i& 70.4598%8 7T BC % & % 1723,470,628% %1 & i@
Bg o

(b)  During the year ended 31 December 2016, 45,000,000 share by REBEEZFT-—R"F+_A=+—HLEFE-
options were exercised by the eligible option holders at their 45,000,0007 R R A& ERBRERE ARE
respective exercise prices for a total cash consideration of BATTIEETTE - 2R & (B /4,869,000 T - A
HK$4,869,000, resulting in an issue of 45,000,000 new ordinary 3%1745,000,000 R EE0.01B T2 ¥ E B -
shares of HK$0.01 each.

All new ordinary shares issued during the year rank pari passu in FANETZMBNETBERES TEHERER

all respects with the existing shares. MEBRFMAL -
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30. SHARE OPTION SCHEME

156

2012 Scheme

The purpose of the 2012 Scheme is to enable the Company
to grant options to eligible participants as incentives and/or
rewards for their contribution to, and continuing efforts to
promote the interests of, the Group.

According the 2012 Scheme, the Board may grant options to the
eligible participants as defined in the 2012 Scheme to subscribe
for such number of shares as the Board may determine. Options
granted should be accepted within 30 days from the date of
the letter of grant. Upon acceptance of the options, the grantee
shall pay HK$1.00 to the Company by way of consideration
for the grant. Subject to the terms of the 2012 Scheme and
all applicable laws, the Board has the power to determine the
period within which payments or calls must or may be made.

The exercise price of options shall be determined by the Board,
which shall be at least the highest of (i) the closing price of
the shares as stated in the daily quotations sheet of the Stock
Exchange on the date of the grant, which must be a business
day; (ii) the average closing price of the shares as stated in
the daily quotations sheets of the Stock Exchange for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of the grant; and
(iii) the nominal value of a share.

The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon the
exercise of all options to be granted under the 2012 Scheme
and any other share option scheme(s) of the Company must not
exceed 10% of the issued share capital of the Company on the
date of approval and adoption of the 2012 Scheme provided
that the Company may at any time seek approval from its
shareholders to refresh the limit to 10% of the shares in issue as
at the date of approval by the shareholders in general meeting
where such limit is refreshed. Options previously granted under
any share option schemes of the Company (including those
outstanding, cancelled, lapsed in accordance with such schemes
or exercised options) will not be counted for the purpose of
calculating the limit as refreshed.

REXLot Holdings Limited fZe-R #1Z R B R AR

30.

i8R R at

—E-CFFE
CE-HFFIEERARAARNAERSH
ALTERLERE FARSHAKEMELZE
BEBRAREENGEMEL 2T BE N2 &
B, E -

BE-_Z-——"FH8 EFg0m _T—_F5
AT ZEERSBBATRLBERE URE
ExEeEERA IR RHEHZBERERAAR
K B B A 30 B AR A o B A R AR B - R
RANRMARBZF1.008 T E R ERERE
ZRE-Z-F-—F 2GR RABERX
RITAR EESARETLALAEFELMR
BT Rz HR -

BhEzoEERESSET AZPRTIZ
BEeE (IMEREEH(LAREER)BMIM
HERMBIRO 2 WHE: (R EERD
FHMAE2XABImE R REXRMBEND
Z PR E - R (i) 2 E{E

HTERE-Z - —FHAEARARAEMEM
BRESIRDZMABREMAIETZRN
A LR TEEBHERRMN T - —F51E
BHARBEEITRAZ10% @ HEA QA B
R ACR LA EREBFEE BIRRNERR
RELHEEHBELREAZEETERMNZ
10% - FHEEHEE 2 LRE ERREAQF
ERBEREFEREZBRE(BEREZSE
FEMATE BEE BEXRRETEZBR
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HEZZ—RF+_A=+—RHItFE

30. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

2012 Scheme (continued)

The total number of shares issued and which may fall to be
issued upon exercise of the options granted under the 2012
Scheme and any other share option scheme(s) of the Company
(including exercised, cancelled and outstanding options) to each
eligible participant in any 12-month period up to and including
the date of grant shall not exceed 1% of the shares in issue as
at the date of grant unless such grant has been duly approved
by ordinary resolution of the shareholders of the Company
in general meeting at which the relevant eligible participant
and his associates abstained from voting. Options granted to
substantial shareholders or independent non-executive directors
or any of their respective associates in any 12-month period in
excess of 0.1% of the Company's issued share capital on the
date of grant or with a value in excess of HK$5,000,000 must be
approved in advance by the Company’s shareholders.

The period during which an option may be exercised will be
determined by the Board at its absolute discretion, save that no
options can be exercised more than 10 years after it has been
granted. There is no general requirement that an option must
be held for any minimum period before it can be exercised. The
2012 Scheme will expire on 28 June 2022.

30.

BRRERE (8)

—E-—F5E(8)
REBZERBERLBRZER ST I2@AR -
RITERE T —ZF 8 RA QM EA
BREGESRE CERE (BEEBTE BB
REKRITEZERE) MEBHTRABRITTFESR
BERSEATZBRMHAE  THEBBIFLHBEK
BEEBZ2RETROZ1% BRIEFARHER
BEAEG L EAARRRUEBRERER
M (HHEAER2BATREBRBABANE LK
FIRE) BIERIR - MANEM1218 A BHE @ E
ERRABILFPTEETHEES G 2 A5
BARLBEAARDNREHBHEBITRAZ
0.1% 3k E{EHH 5,000,000/ 70 2 B4 - BI78
TR DRI PR R AL AE o

BRETEHHSEESSSENBEET  HERD
BREB R OF BT AITEREBRE - AR A
WERSHTEASEREEREZERBRZ
—BEE T ZFHEER T =F <A
—t+tNHEmM-
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 BEZZ—RF+_A=+—HIFE

30. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)
The following table discloses movements in the 2012 Scheme:

158

During the year ended 31 December 2016:

30. BBRERTE (/&)
TREB-_T——FHEx®

RBEZZ—A"FTZA=+—HILFE:

Number of share options (000)

BRERA (71)
Date of Exercise Outstanding Granted Exercised Lapsed  Outstanding
offer to price per Exercisable at during during during at
Grantees grant options share period  01.01.2016 the year the year theyear  31.12.2016
IS —E-X%
ZE-RE TZA
BHBRE 58 ) -p-8 ) =t-§
REA EHAH TEE & Ei:d ERRHL ERfTE FREH CESXd
HKS (Note (a)) (Note (b))
AT (fitiE(a)) (HiE(b))
Directors 29.09.2016 0.1082 29.09.2016 - 28.09.2018 - 25,000 - - 25,000
sz
Employees 07.01.2014 1.090 13.01.2014 - 06.01.2016 2,000 - - (2,000) -
E&
27.06.2014 0.910 15.07.2014 - 26.06.2016 120,000 - - (120,000) -
29.09.2016 0.1082 29.09.2016 - 28.09.2018 - 330,000 (45,000) - 285,000
122,000 355,000 (45,000) (122,000 310,000

During the year ended 31 December 2015:

ARE-F—BE+-A=+—BIEFE:

Number of share options (‘000)

BRERA (71)
Date of Exercise Outstanding Granted Exercised Lapsed  Outstanding
offer to price per Exercisable at during during during at
Grantees grant options share period  01.01.2015 the year the year theyear  31.12.2015
IS “E-1%
—E-1% t=A
BUBER KL ) -A-8 ) =+-§
REA EHRE 1| TEH CEi:d ERRHL ERTE FREN CESX:d
HKS (Note (b))
BT (M)
Employees 07.01.2014 1.090 13.01.2014 - 06.01.2016 2,000 - - - 2,000
EE
27.06.2014 0.910 15.07.2014 - 26.06.2016 160,000 - - (40,000) 120,000
162,000 - - (40,000) 122,000
Notes: B
(@)  The closing price of the share immediately before the date of grant (a) EERLEBAB(B=FT—X"FAAZTIR)FAIZ
on 29 September 2016 was HK$0.102. fi& {5 Y 7 8 40.1028 7T
(b)  The respective share option reserve of approximately HK$6,329,000 by RBE_F-AF+_A=t+—BHLFE H

(2015: HK$2,074,000) has been transferred to retained profits
during the year ended 31 December 2016.

REXLot Holdings Limited fJZe-R #1ZR B R AR

8 B PR A 1 496,329,000 T (=& — L4 ¢
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HEZZ—RF+_A=+—RHItFE

30. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) 30. BRESTE (&)
Details of share options exercised during the year ended 31 (a) REBEZEZZE—R"EF+-_A=+—BHLEFE
December 2016: T AR RIS -
Market value
Exercise per share at Proceeds Number of
Exercise date price exercise date received  share options
7R
TR TEE BRTE CWHABXE BREHA
HK$ HK$ HK$'000 ‘000
BT BT FET T
07.10.2016 - 14.11.2016 0.1082 0.121-0.129 4,869 45,000
The weighted average share price at the date of exercise REBEZ-_ZFE-—R"F+_A=T—HILFE

(b)

for share options exercised during the year ended 31
December 2016 was HK$0.127 per share.

The number and weighted average exercise prices of

share options

BITEERETEAZNETFIRERS

f0.1277% 7T -

(b) BREZHBERMNETITEE

Movements in the number of share options outstanding MARITEEREREZHREE@EMET
and their related weighted average exercise prices are as BITEBENT
follows:
2016 2015
—E2-RF —Z—-nf
Average Average
exercise price Number of exercise price Number of
per share  share options per share share options
=13 S
FTEE BREZE FHTHE BREHA
HK$ ‘000 HKS ‘000
BT Tt BT 71
Outstanding at 1 January R—A—HEKTE 0.913 122,000 0.912 162,000
Granted [SE s 0.108 355,000 - -
Exercised B8 0.108 (45,000) - -
Lapsed BARM 0.913 (122,000) 0.910 (40,000)
Outstanding and exercisable ~ W+ =A=+—HHRITE
at 31 December Rt 0.108

310,000 0.913

122,000
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30. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

30. BERESTE (B)

(b) The number and weighted average exercise prices of (b)y BREZHERMEFLGITEEE)
share options (continued)
The options outstanding at 31 December 2016 had RZE-—RE+TZA=+T—HERTEZ
exercise price of HK$0.1082 (2015: HK$0.910 to BREZITFEEARIB2ET(ZE—H
HK$1.090) and a weighted average remaining contractual F:0.91087LE1.0907 7T + M e FH 5%
life of 1.74 years (2015: 0.48 year). No option was TEHFHAR1.74F (ZF—FHF:0.48
cancelled during the years 2016 and 2015. F)e ZFB—RNFR-ZZF—AFRLETH
{F {r] B % A o
The exercise in full of the outstanding 310,000,000 (2015: BEARNAAR 2EARAEE BHIT
122,000,000) share options at 31 December 2016 would, FRZZFT—-—R"RFEF+A=Z=+—HH#H
under the present capital structure of the Company, KT 2310,000,000(0 (—ZZFE—F
result in the issue of 310,000,000 (2015: 122,000,000) 4 :122,000,00017 ) B I% 4 #5 8 B
additional shares for a total cash consideration, before % 17310,000,000 (=& — H & :
expenses, of approximately HK$33,542,000 (2015: 122,000,0000% ) S NRE 15 - IR & R (&
HK$111,380,000). PRI FE X A4 A33,542,0008 0 (= Z
— A4 111,380,000/ 7C) °
(c) Fair value of share options and assumptions (0 BEREAAERRER

During the year ended 31 December 2016, 355,000,000
options were granted and were fully vested immediately.
The estimated fair value of the options granted in 2016
was approximately HK$10,367,000.

The fair value was calculated using the Black-Scholes
option pricing model. The weighted average inputs into

the model were as follows:

HE-_Z—RE+A=+—RHILEE"
355,000,00017 & A% # 2 £ tH 3 BN & & 28
BB N AFREZEREZAAR
B 5T4410,367,000/8 7T °

ARETIERAE N -FRRMEEER
WHE-ZREZ MEFHEAEBRT:

Share options granted
ERHBRE

Date of offer to grant options
29.09.2016
BREBREZNAH
ZE-XEAA=1+NA

Share price 1 (& HK$0.1067% 7T
Exercise price 111E(E HK$0.1082/8 7T
Expected volatility T8 BB 1R 89.812%
Expected option life (in year) TEERIE AR R EAIR (3R F5T) 0.65
Risk-free rate #1213 0.358%
Dividend yield iR 8% 0.00%

REXLot Holdings Limited fJZe-R #1ZR B R AR
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HEZZ—RF+_A=+—RHItFE

30. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

(9

Fair value of share options and assumptions
(continued)

The expected volatility was determined by using the
historical volatility of the Company's share price over the
previous 260 days. The expected life used in the model had
been adjusted, based on the managements’ estimate, for
the effects of non transferability, exercise restrictions and
behavioral considerations.

The Group recognised share-based payment of
approximately HK$10,367,000 for the year ended 31
December 2016.

31. RESERVES

(a)

(b)

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements
therein for the current and prior years are presented in
the consolidated statement of changes in equity of the
consolidated financial statements.

Nature and purposes of the reserves

(i)  Share premium
The application of the share premium account is
governed by section 40 of the Bermuda Companies
Act 1981 Bermuda.

(ii) Capital redemption reserve
Capital redemption reserve arises from the reduction
of the nominal value of the issued capital of the
Company upon the cancellation of the repurchased
shares.

(iii) Convertible bonds reserve
Convertible bonds reserve represents the amount
allocated to the equity component of convertible
bonds issued by the Company recognised in
accordance with the accounting policy adopted for
convertible bonds in Note 2(p).

(iv) Share-based payment reserve
The share-based payment reserve represents the
fair value of the actual or estimated number of
unexercised share options granted to employees of
the Company recognised in accordance with the
accounting policy adopted for share based payments
in Note 2(q)(iii).

30. BERESTE (B)
(0 BREAAERRERR (E)

FEHREOERAARRRERIBA260R
ZESLEEET ZEBAAZETFEY
ERBEEBEBZ G TE RN 176
BREIRITHEEZHEMBAE-

BHE—ZT—AE+-_A=+—HBIt&EE"
N8 B FE SR LA BR 10 2 A4 5XIE 4910,367,000
T e

31. #E
(a) AEBEAFERBAFTFEZFHELERLE
BHRERAVBERRPIGAEREZHRE

E K

(b) REMEREN
(i) ReGEE
B EERZERE - NWN\—FBR
ERRDEELOGRARE -

(i) BFXEEGFE
B 7R O {3 4 70 R A R 1 A 0 B fe
ARBEHETEAEBERDPAESL -

(i) TRREFFE
AT AR B 25 R HE 1R IR MY FE2(p)3h AT
BB PR 2 & R BUR T R
ARAFFETARKRAESESREDE
Dz

(iv) URGXMFEZ#EE
VA B £ 32 90 5R0R 2 4 HE AR IR B R
2(q)ii st AR I TN R RN 2 &
STRRRER 2 AR AR B BR S fhaT
EEARMAITRZBRERBEZARN
E
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31.

162

RESERVES (continued)

(b)

(9

Nature and purposes of the reserves (continued)

(v)

(vi)

Exchange translation reserve
The exchange translation reserve comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising from the translation
of the financial statements of foreign operations.
The reserve is dealt with in accordance with the
accounting policy in Note 2(u).

Contributed surplus

The contributed surplus of the Company as at 31
December 2016 represents the difference between
the consolidated net assets of REXCAPITAL Financial
Group Limited at the date when its shares were
acquired by the Company, and the nominal amount
of the Company’s shares issued for the acquisition,
less dividends paid in 2000.

Distribution of reserves

Under the Company Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended),

the contributed surplus account of the Company is

available for distribution. However, the Company cannot

declare or pay a dividend, or make a distribution out of the

contributed surplus, if:

@)

(i)

the Company is, or would after the payment be,
unable to pay its liabilities as they become due; or

the realisable value of the Company's assets would
thereby be less than the aggregate of its liabilities
and its issued share capital and the share premium
account.

REXLot Holdings Limited fZe-R #1Z R B R AR

—RFTZA=+—HILFE

8 (8)
(b) REEHERBH(E)
v) EZFEE

(o)

(vi)

E S B R RREEINERZ B
WERMELEZFABELZRE -ZHE
THARIEM FE2(u) 2 & RFERR B 3R

BAEEG
RRRARZZE—R"F+ZA=+—H
Z BN B IEREXCAPITAL Financial
Group Limited 7 E i& 7 # A 2 AW HE
EEZEEEEFERBWEMET
ZARRBROEEBER 2 Z8E  BHK
REZZZZFRM2BKRE -

Dk fE R
BRE-NWN—FEREQRE (K IX;J)'
RRRZHANBARERTIAHED IR - i

BELLTER

'EUJZ!SAEKEI /)E /)fﬂ#

BB AEBMABRERIEH DK

(if)

HIBE B REER
,\EIJ,HHB féfﬁﬁﬁt\ g,

AprBEEZERBESH D
REEBEREBSEITRA R E
RZBAEE-



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

31. RESERVES (continued)

(c) Distribution of reserves (continued)

oy

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HZEZZ

31.

In the opinion of the Directors, the Company's reserves

disclosed in Note 47 available for distribution to

shareholders as at the end of the reporting period were as

follows:

e (E)
(0 ZIRfEE(H)

MBEHRRME (&)

—RFTZA=+—RHIFE

BEEZRB ARARARBKREHRAHIIET
R (R F47HE) T

2016 2015
—NE —ARF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Contributed surplus f/%ﬁl)\%%} 199,605 199,605
Retained profits il 156,350 559,846
355,955 759,451

32. TRADE PAYABLES 32. ENESZERR
2016 2015
—E-XF —ARF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Other client payables FEAT E b & P BRI 314 314
Trade payables — Lottery business BB SRR —FRER 1,487 2,414
1,801 2,728

Other client payables are repayable on demand and bear interest

at prevailing market rates.

No ageing analysis is disclosed for other client payables as, in

the opinion of the Directors, the ageing analysis does not give

additional value in view of the nature of business.

Trade payables are expected to be settled within one year or are

repayable on demand.

The Directors consider that the carrying amount of trade

payables approximate to their fair values.

R EME S RRAREREE

MEGE -

HREERR/EREBUELD REDWTEET
RN BENTEFREENEMESPERZERD

#r o

BNEZERBEHN —FAXNLARERE

o

BE=ZRA ENEZERZEEERERAER

o
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 BHEZZ—RF+_A=+—HIFE

32. TRADE PAYABLES (continued)
The ageing analysis of the Group's trade payables — Lottery
business is as follows:

32. ENESRA(E)
AEERENESZER - FTEEB 2REKR DTN
T

2016 2015

—NE —T—FHF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FET

Three months or less =fAAKNUAT - 966
Over three months =@AMNE 1,487 1,448
1,487 2,414

33. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS
Other payables and accruals of the Group are expected to be
settled or recognised as income within one year or are repayable
on demand.

33. HthfEFIARER
ZK;‘%lZEITM%‘\HMIE&EEEf%klﬁfﬁi,ﬁﬁ‘ﬁé—i
NEEXERRBBALEIREREE-

The Directors consider that the carrying amounts of other EERE Bz HhEMNRIBEREGSRIEZ
payables and accruals of the Group approximate to their fair REEREE ’& CEMEE
values.
34. BANK BORROWINGS 34. RITEE
2016 2015
—RE —T—RF
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Bank loans IRITE X
— secured and due within one year —BER LN —F AR 4,901 -

The bank loans are repayable within one year or when the
facility is withdrawn. These borrowings are used to finance the

lottery business of the Group.

The bank loans of approximately HK$4,901,000 (2015:
HK$Nil) are secured by the trade receivables of a subsidiary of
approximately HK$15,052,000 (2015: HK$Nil) and guaranteed
by a subsidiary of the Group.

The effective interest rates on the Group’s borrowings are equal
to contractual interest rates.

164 REXLot Holdings Limited #1Z=h#A=E R AT

RITERBER —FAREEROREER - ZEE
EREREEYREB ZAEES -

#494,901,0008 L (ZE—RF : TH L) ZRIT
B3R A— MK B AR 415,052,000 L (=%
—RFE EBT)ZEKRESEIIERT L H
AEE B ARER-

AEEEEZERNEBERANNE-



34.

35.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HEZZ—RF+_A=+—RHItFE

BANK BORROWINGS (continued)
The Directors considered that the fair values of borrowings at

34. |ITEE (E)
BEERR EERNBERRZ AN EEKREENR

the end of the reporting period approximate to their carrying o
amounts.
Bank borrowings included the following amount denominated RITEED TETW [P/ BE B IS T LASN
in a currency other than the Company’s functional currency, HK B 5|E 2 HIE
dollars:
2016 2015
—E—XE —ET—hF
‘000 ‘000
Fr Fr
Renminbi AR 4,412 -
CONVERTIBLE BONDS 35. ATRRES

(i) CB2019

On 9 April 2014, the Company entered into a subscription
agreement to issue up to HK$1,900,000,000 principal
amount of 4.5% convertible bonds due in 2019.
On 17 April 2014, the issue of principal amounts
of HK$1,200,000,000 of the convertible bonds and
HK$400,000,000 of the convertible bonds pursuant to an
option under the subscription agreement being exercised
in full before the closing date of the option was completed
(the "Firm & Option Bonds 2019"). On 8 July 2014, the
issue of HK$300,000,000 in principal amount of the
convertible bonds to Kingly Profits Corporation (“Kingly”)
was completed pursuant to the subscription agreement
(the "VC Bonds 2019”, and together with Firm & Option
Bonds 2019, the "CB2019").

Each bond of CB2019 will, at the option of the holder
(“CB2019 Bondholders”), be convertible (unless previously
redeemed, converted or purchased and cancelled) on or
after 27 May 2014 up to and including 7 April 2019 into
fully paid ordinary shares of the Company with a par value
of HK$0.01 each at a conversion price of HK$1.407 per
share, subject to adjustments in accordance with the terms
and conditions of the bonds agreement as a result of
dilutive events.

(i) =ZZF-—hEwgERES
RZZE—MFMANA  AARGLRE
WE UNBETR_Z—NAFEH A&5HE
&= /51,900,000,00058 7t 2 4.5 7] # i
BEHE - RZTE—NHFOA++H BEFEX
EARBEREHMEE T EEENEERER
IR BRI ERETEMBTRAEE SRR
1,200,000 000;‘%7%&400 000,000/ 7T .2
AmEESs ([ —NEEHERILEE
#1) °E@_§—IEI¢J:H)\E B KR
R BE ¥ % MKingly Profits Corporation
(IKingly |) % 77 7K & % /300,000,000
TZABRBRESF ([ ZE-—NEFRELERE
F] ER-ZT-NFEERLEEFRE
BIZE-—NFrBBRESR]) -

—NFARBREFZEDESBERE
BA(NZZE-NFABRREFHEADZ
BER T -NMFRAA TR ZRE
ERBRE-E-NAFMOMALBHE® (LA
CED B BOWFEHEERN) BEAR
BEREECOVEIL Z MR & B Bk
ERTR1.4078 T BEBEEHBEZHERK
Rttt B ER RIEEHER IR
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35. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (continued)

166

(M

(i)

CB2019 (continued)

The CB2019 were issued at an initial conversion price of
HK$1.407 per share. As a result of the interim dividend
for the six months ended 30 June 2014 and final dividend
for the year ended 31 December 2014, pursuant to the
conditions of the CB2019, the conversion price of the
CB2019, had been adjusted from HK$1.407 to HK$1.390
and from HK$1.390 to HK$1.370 per share with effect
from 31 October 2014 and 19 June 2015 respectively.

CB2016
On 21 September 2011,
subscription agreement to issue up to HK$1,040,200,000

the Company entered into a

principal amount of 6% convertible bonds due in 2016.
On 28 September 2011, the issue of principal amount of
HK$816,900,000 of the convertible bonds was completed
(the "Firm Bonds”). On 7 November 2011,
principal amount of HK$70,000,000 of the convertible
bonds was completed pursuant to an option under the

the issue of

subscription agreement being partially exercised before the
closing date of the option (the “Option Bonds”). On 28
November 2011, the issue of HK$77,800,000 in principal
amount of the convertible bonds to Kingly was completed
pursuant to the subscription agreement (the “VC Bonds”,
together with the Firm Bonds and Option Bonds, the
"Existing Bonds”).

On 3 September 2012, the Company entered into a
subscription agreement to issue up to HK$429,000,000
principal amount of 6% convertible bonds due in
2016. On 13 September 2012, the issue of principal
amount of HK$312,000,000 of the convertible bonds
was completed (the “New Underwritten Bonds”). On
19 October 2012, the issue of principal amount of
HK$78,000,000 of convertible bonds was completed
pursuant to an option under the subscription agreement
being exercised in full before the closing date of the
option (the “New Option Bonds”). On 13 November 2012,
the issue of HK$39,000,000 in principal amount of the
convertible bonds to Kingly was completed pursuant to
“New VC Bonds”, and
together with the New Underwritten Bonds and New
Option Bonds, the “New Bonds"”).

the subscription agreement (the

REXLot Holdings Limited fZe-R #1Z R B R AR

—RFTZA=+—HILFE

35. ARKRES (F)

(i)

(i)

“TE-NEURRES (B)
ZE-NFAURREFRVSERESR
14078 BT HRIENEEZE=-F—N
FRAZFTHLERNBAZHABEERHEZ

—HFE+_A=+—BLEFEZRHA
RE -BMBBE-FT-NFARKRES 2K
" ZE-NEFURRES2EBRED D
ME-ZE-—WMFE+A=+—HBEZ=ZZ—%
FRATNBER BER1I407BTHES
1.3908 7T X B 1.3908 Tl B =1.370/8
To

—E-XREURRES
RZZ——FhLAZ+—8 ARQRFIR
Hipad UABTR-Z—NFHH K448
% 41,040,200,000% 7T 2 6]E 7] #2 f% &
SN E——FhLA=-+/\H BEEMHE
7784 %8 /816,900,000 JT 2 7] ¥ % (&
5 ([BE®ES]) R-T—F+— A+
B BEXKEREZABHEET ZEEERN

BEEB AN ESSTEMETAS
%8/70,000,0008 0 2 AT ¥R IR B % (388
BE]) RZTE——F+—A=+tN\H B2
ERIRIEREREAKnglyEITASEA
77,800,000 7t 2 Al R &S ([BREAE
H] EREBERBEFRIEEELRBAIR
BEF]) -

RZZE—ZFhAhB=A AQAFTILRE
M LWBITR T —AFIH AeHER
= /429,000,000 7T 2 6[E A AR E 5 ©
RZE——FNA+=0 DERBETAE
%6 /312,000,000 L 2 Al AR E & ([0
BiEESE]) RN-_T——F+A+A1A8"
B ERIBREREE N 2 BIEENE
BESLONIERRTEMRTASE
478,000,000/ 7T, AJ AR & 5 ([ 3738
E5) R-_ET——F+—A+=A'B
TRBIERERZEEKinglyBITALEAS
39,000,000 T2 Al AR &5 ([ 37FR % 4
& ERMPIEEFLINILEESRE
BIFES]) -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

35. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (continued)

(i)

CB2016 (continued)

The New Bonds have the same terms and conditions as the
Existing Bonds (the Existing Bonds and together with the
New Bonds, the “CB2016"), in all respects except for the
issue date and issue price which is 109.5% of the principal
amount and will be consolidated and form a single series
with the Existing Bonds and vote together as one series on
all matters with respect to the Existing Bonds.

Each bond of CB2016 will, at the option of the holder
("CB2016 Bondholders”), be convertible (unless previously
redeemed, converted or purchased and cancelled) on or
after 8 November 2011 up to and including 18 September
2016 into fully paid ordinary shares of the Company
with a par value of HK$0.01 each at a conversion price
of HK$0.6175 per share, subject to adjustments in
accordance with the terms and conditions of the bonds
agreement as a result of dilutive events.

The CB2016 were issued at an initial conversion price of
HK$0.6175 per share. As a result of the final dividend for
the year ended 31 December 2012, 2013 and 2014 and
the interim dividend for the six months ended 30 June
2013 and 2014, pursuant to the conditions of the CB2016
agreement, the conversion price of the CB2016, had been
adjusted from HK$0.6175 to HK$0.61, from HK$0.61 to
HK$0.60, from HK$0.60 to HK$0.58, from HK$0.58 to
HK$0.57 and from HK$0.57 to HK$0.56 per share with
effect from 19 June 2013, 31 October 2013, 19 June
2014, 31 October 2014 and 19 June 2015 respectively.

On 9 September 2016, an extraordinary resolution was
duly passed by the CB2016 Bondholders at a meeting held
to extend the maturity date to 28 February 2017.

Kingly is a company indirectly wholly-owned by Mr. Chan

How Chung, Victor, a director and substantial shareholder of
the Company. The issue of the VC Bonds 2019, the New VC
Bonds and the VC Bonds to Kingly constituted a non-exempt

connected transaction under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The CB2016 and the CB2019 (the “Bonds”) are both listed on
Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited.

e BBERME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HZEZZ

—RFTZA=+—RHIFE

35. AIMRMES (&)

(i) =ZB-—AETRERES (B)
MESESTHERAES (REEFER
HESEBAIZE—RFABRKRES])
ZHER R AR EBETRMRETE
(REEEZ109.5%) KRN BEBREFE
HZAALEKRRA—FI - BERSR— R
WEREBFMEEERE-

TE-REURRESFZEDESF BRI
BA(NZZE-—REARBREFHEADZ
BER T ——F+—-AN\BARZREE
EBE-_ZF-R"EALATNBER(KH
D @M BOWEHERN) BEAR
B EREECOVEITL Z MR & @ Bk
ERER0.61758 T RIEEFHEZ K
RN BRER TSR BE -

ZE-RFABRBRESENSERESR
061758 BT ARKNEZE_ZT—=
F R =FRZFTNF+ZA=1+—
HEFEZREBREERBE-Z—=FK
—E—MFERA=ZTBHIENEA ZHERK
B MBRE T AT RKRESFRHEZIE
" ZE-RNFARREFZERER D
ME-—ZEZ—=F~"At+thLB ZZE—=F
+A=Z=+—8 Z=—WFEXA+HLBE =
T-NEF+A=Z+—AR-_ZE—HENA
THhB#E HER06175BTLAEZE0.61
B A ER061TBITHEZ0.608 T
HER.60EBITHAEZZ0SSE L HER
0.58B LAEBE0.578 T HEM0.57/8
TTHABE056BTT -

RZE-—RNFLANLE ZE—RFA[#R
BEFHEABRE %IETL}B%EJ??&E%
2 BEHALEEE-_T—+tF-_A=1+N
=

Kingy R A RBEFHREIEMRMEBELM
EEEBEB AR -BREBELTHRAUNEIAE [
Kingly# 1T —Z—hFREEEF FRELE
HERELESBRIERLEERS

—E-RFHREREFA T -AFAERE
F([ZEEFVARFMBEESZ S LT -
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HZEZT

35. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (continued)
The redemption terms of the Bonds are as follows:

168

(a)

(b)

(9

Redemption at maturity

Unless previously redeemed, converted, or purchased
and cancelled, CB2016 and CB2019 will be redeemed on
extended maturity date 28 February 2017 (extended from
28 September 2016) and 17 April 2019 respectively at
their principal amounts together with accrued but unpaid
interest thereon.

Redemption at the option of the Company

The Company may at any time after 28 September 2014
and prior to 28 September 2016 redeem in whole or in
part, the CB2016 and after 17 April 2017 and prior to 17
April 2019 redeem in whole or in part, the CB2019 for the
time being outstanding at their principal amounts together
with interest accrued to the date fixed for redemption,
provided that the closing price of the Company's shares for
any 20 consecutive trading days, the last of which occurs
not more than five trading days prior to the date on which
notice of such redemption is published, was at least 130%
of the prevailing Conversion Price; or

If at any time at least 90% of the aggregate principal
amount of the Bonds has already been converted,
redeemed or purchased and cancelled, then the Company
shall have the option to redeem in whole, but not in part,
of the outstanding Bonds at their principal amounts as at
such date together with interest accrued to such date.

Redemption at the option of the Bondholders

The Company will, at the option of any of the
CB2016 Bondholders and CB2019 Bondholders (the
“Bondholders”), redeem all or some of the Bondholders’
CB2016 and CB2019 on 28 September 2014 and 17 April
2017 respectively at their principal amounts together with
interest accrued to such date.

The Company will also, at the option of any of the
Bondholders,
principal amounts as at such date together with interest

redeem all or some of the Bonds at their

accrued to the relevant date for redemption when there
is a change of control of the Company, or when the
Company's shares cease to be listed or admitted to
trading or suspended for trading for a period equal to
or exceeding 30 consecutive trading days on the Stock
Exchange subject to the terms and conditions of CB2016
and CB2019, respectively.
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35.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HZEZZ

CONVERTIBLE BONDS (continued)

At initial recognition, the Bonds are separated into a liability
component consisting of the straight debt element of the
Bonds, embedded financial derivatives consisting of redemption
options, and an equity component representing the conversion
options of the Bondholders to convert the Bonds into equity.
As the Company’s and the Bondholders’ redemption options
are considered as closely related to the host contracts, the fair
values of these options, which are determined using Binomial
Tree Pricing Model at initial recognition, have not been
separated from the host contracts, but included in the carrying
amount of the liability component. The equity component is
presented as convertible bonds reserve in equity, whereas the
liability component is classified under non-current liabilities. The
proceeds received from the issue of the Bonds have been split as

follows:

(i)  Liability component represents the fair value of the
contractually determined stream of cash flows discounted
at the prevailing market interest rate applicable to
instruments of comparable credit status and providing
substantially the same cash flows, on the same terms,
but without the conversion features. The interest charged
for the year is calculated by applying an effective interest
rate. The effective interest rate of the Existing Bonds,
New Bonds, Firm & Option Bonds 2019 and VC Bonds
2019 are 9.79%, 15.20%, 9.06% and 9.03% per annum,
respectively.

(i)  Equity component represents the conversion options,
which is determined by deducting the fair value of the
liability component from the proceeds of issue of the
Bonds as a whole.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 BHEZZ—RF+_A=+—HIFE

35.

170

CONVERTIBLE BONDS (continued) 35. A[ERES (&)
The fair value of the liability component of the Bonds on initial ZEBFABE IRV THERFE Z A RENE
recognition was calculated using the discounted cash flow REFeRERWAE - —HABREEBEE A
model. The major inputs used in the Binomial Tree Pricing Model ZEEMAMBBLOT
were as follows:

VC Bonds Firm & Option

2019 Bonds 2019 New Bonds Existing Bonds

ZE-hF ZE-RF

REEES HERREBES HEH REHES
Share price R HK$0.873% 7T HK$0.937% 7T HK$0.503% 7T HK$0.477% 7T
Exercise price 1B HK$1.40707 7T HK$1.40707 7T HK$0.6175% 7T HK$0.6175/ 7T
Risk-free rate 2 3 B ) 1.394% 1.380% 0.267% 0.755%
Dividend yield BBk 4.115% 3.849% 3.360% 2.213%
Credit spread HE=E 8.184% 8.133% 12.300% 8.407%
Expected life T 1 4.78 yearst 5.00 years§ 4.04 yearsF 5.00 years§
Volatility IR 46.328% 47.724% 62.431% 67.761%

The risk-free rate was determined with reference to the Hong
Kong Exchange Fund Notes Yields as extracted from Bloomberg.
The expected life was the remaining life of the Bonds. Volatility
is the annualised standard deviation of the continuously
compounded rates of return on the daily average adjusted share
price of the Company.

Any changes in the major inputs used in the model will result
in changes in the fair value of the liability component. The
variables and assumptions used in calculating the fair value
of the liability component are based on the Directors’ best
estimates.

On 20 August 2015, the Company announced that an event
of default had occurred pursuant to the terms and conditions
of Bonds by virtue of the fact that the ordinary shares of the
Company had been suspended for trading for a period equal to
or exceeding 30 consecutive trading days on the Stock Exchange
(the "Relevant Event”).
entitled to require the Company to redeem all or some only
of the Bonds on 2 November 2015 (the “Relevant Event
Redemption Date”) at their principal amount together with

Consequently, the Bondholders are

interest accrued to the Relevant Event Redemption Date.
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35.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

MBEHRRME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HEZZ—RF+_A=+—RHItFE

CONVERTIBLE BONDS (continued)

An extraordinary resolution was duly passed by the Bondholders
at a meeting held on 29 October 2015 in which the Company
agreed to redeem 5% of the principal amount of the Bonds with
total nominal amount of HK$2,247,700,000 on 30 November
2015 and the Bondholders agreed to delay the Relevant Event
Redemption Date to 31 March 2016 and the Company agreed
to offer Bondholders who vote in favour of the extraordinary
resolution a consent fee of 1% of the principal amount of the
relevant Bonds as an incentive. In the extraordinary resolution,
the Bondholders also agreed to provide a carve-out to the
relevant event of default to ensure that the Company and
its principal subsidiaries are permitted to dispose of assets,
business or operations, where the net proceeds of such disposal
are primarily applied towards the redemption or repayment of
the Bonds (including interest), without triggering an event of
default. Further details in relation to the Relevant Event are
disclosed in the Company’s announcements dated 20 August
2015, 22 September 2015, 7 October 2015 and 29 October
2015.

On 30 November 2015, the Company redeemed the Bonds
with principal amount of HK$112,385,000 at HK$112,385,000
and a gain of approximately HK$1,013,000 (Note 5) from the
redemption was recognised in profit or loss. Immediately after
the redemption and at the end of the reporting period, the
Bonds with principal amount of HK$2,135,315,000 remained
outstanding.

On 1 March 2016, the Company received redemption notices
from some of the Bondholders to redeem the Bonds with
principal amount of approximately HK$1,848,415,000. As
a result, the outstanding Bonds with principal amount of
approximately HK$1,848,415,000 became payable on 31
March 2016 and unwinding of interest totaling approximately
HK$189,168,000 was accelerated at 31 December 2015 and the
carrying amount of liability component of the Bonds that subject
to redemption has been classified as current liabilities.

35. ARKRES (F)
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HZEZT

35.

172

EMBHRRME (&)

CONVERTIBLE BONDS (continued)

Subject to the outstanding restructuring PRC approval, the
conditions precedent for the Disposal had not been satisfied.
The Company did not have sufficient offshore cash resources
to satisfy its redemption obligations. Accordingly, the Company
obtained an written resolution duly passed by the Bondholders
on 8 April 2016 in which the Company agreed to offer
Bondholders who voted in favour of the written resolution
to delay the Relevant Event Redemption Date to 29 April
2016 a consent fee of approximately 0.314% of the principal
amount of the relevant Bonds as an incentive. Further details in
relation to the Relevant Event were disclosed in the Company’s
announcement dated 29 March 2016 and 8 April 2016.

On 29 June 2016, the State Administration of Taxation
promulgated the Bulletin 42, which affects related party
transactions such as the Group’s Disposal. As a result, it has
become an outstanding Condition Precedent to be satisfied
which requires additional documents to the relevant PRC
authorities for the purpose of obtaining the Tax Clearances.
The Company requires additional time to prepare the required
additional documents. Accordingly, an extraordinary resolution
was duly passed by the Bondholders at a meeting held on 3 June
2016 in which the Company agreed to redeem approximately
6.79% of the principal amount of the Bonds with total nominal
amount of HK$2,135,315,000 on 22 June 2016 and the
Bondholders agreed to delay the Relevant Event Redemption
Date to 29 July 2016 and the Company agreed to offer
Bondholders who voted in favour of the extraordinary resolution
a consent fee of 0.5% of the principal amount of the relevant
Bonds as an incentive. Further details in relation to the Relevant
Event were disclosed in the Company’s announcements dated 3
May 2016, 4 May 2016 and 3 June 2016.

On 22 June 2016, the Company redeemed the Bonds with
principal amount of approximately HK$145,000,000 at
approximately HK$145,000,000 and a loss of approximately
HK$1,750,000 (Note 5) from the redemption was recognised in
profit or loss. Immediately after the redemption, the Bonds with
principal amount of approximately HK$1,990,315,000 remained
outstanding.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HEZZ—RF+_A=+—RHItFE

35. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (continued)

As completion of the Disposal has not taken place as at 29
July 2016, the Company did not have sufficient offshore cash
resources to satisfy its redemption obligations. An extraordinary
resolution was duly passed by the Bondholders at a meeting held
on 9 September 2016 in which the Company agreed to redeem
approximately 16.94% of the principal amount of the Bonds
with total nominal amount of approximately HK$1,990,315,000
on 30 September 2016 and the Bondholders agreed to delay
the Relevant Event Redemption Date to a date no later than 28
February 2017 and the Company agreed to offer Bondholders
who voted in favour of the extraordinary resolution a consent
fee of 0.75% of the principal amount of the relevant Bonds
as an incentive. At the extraordinary resolution, the CB2016
Bondholders also agreed the extension of maturity date of
CB2016 to 28 February 2017. Further details in relation to the
Relevant Event were disclosed in the Company’s announcements
dated 2 August 2016, 3 August 2016 and 9 September 2016.

On 30 September 2016, the Company redeemed the Bonds
with principal amount of HK$337,155,000 at HK$337,155,000
and a loss of approximately HK$4,401,000 (Note 5) from
the redemption was recognised in profit or loss. Immediately
after the redemption and at the end of the reporting
period, the Bonds with principal amount of approximately
HK$1,653,160,000 remained outstanding.

35. ARKRES (F)
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 BEZZ—RFE+_A=+—HILFE

35. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (continued)
The movements of the liability components of the Bonds for the

35. AIMRMES (&)
ZEBFABRDZFREHHINWT

year are set out below:

CB2019 CB2016 Total
—E-hE —E-XRE

TRRES TERES &t

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FET FET

Carrying amount at 1 January 2015 R-E—RAF—A—HBZEHEEAE 1,599,686 300,766 1,900,452

Redemption during the year FREE (82,714) (16,193) (98,907)

Interest expense (Note 8) FMERMZ (KEs) 144,128 45,948 190,076

Interest payable JFEAS 7 2 (84,669) (20,718) (105,387)

Acceleration of unwinding interest (Note 8) AR 7 & %@ (Hf5E8) 175,881 13,287 189,168
Carrying amounts at 31 December 2015 RZE—RAF+A=+—H2Z

BRTEE 1,752,312 323,090 2,075,402

Redemption during the year FREE (400,873) (74,585) (475,458)

Interest expense (Note 8) FMERMZ (Kzs) 100,748 25,560 126,308

Interest payable JERFIE (75,138) (18,334) (93,472)
Carrying amounts at 31 December 2016 RZBE—RETZA=+—RHZ

BREE 1,377,049 255,731 1,632,780

Portion classified as current SER/NE I (1,175,309) (255,731) (1,431,040)

Non-current portion EnBE D 201,740 - 201,740

As at 31 December 2016, the aggregate principal amount

S

EaN

E-RE+A=+—B REBELIFFS

ZEEFR DAEBEZZSESFA A2 A

174

of the Bonds remaining outstanding following the partial
redemptions of the Bonds was approximately HK$1,653,160,000
(2015: HK$2,135,315,000). Details of subsequent events after
the end of the reporting period are shown in Note 48 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HEZZ—RF+_A=+—RHILFE

36. OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE LEASES 36. MEHEFK
At 31 December 2016, the Group had obligation under finance RZZE—RF+ZA=+—H Fx5EEBEENZ
lease repayable as follows: RMEHEERHMOT
2016 2015
—E-RE —T-RE

Present Present

value of value of
minimum Minimum minimum Minimum
lease payment  lease payment lease payment lease payment

REAN KIEHAL
NRAE REBRITH NHBE REBLHFH
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET
Within 1 year —F R 8,268 8,367 17,038 18,032
Between 2 to 5 years MEZERE - - 8,867 8,977
8,268 8,367 25,905 27,009
Less: Total future finance charges W R R B AR N B e 99 1,104
Present value of lease payments M E 8,268 25,905

37.

The effective interest rate of the obligation under finance
lease is 5.56% (2015: 5.81%) per annum. Certain subsidiaries
of the Group have provided corporate guarantees to the
lessor to secure the finance lease obligation to the extent of
approximately HK$56,667,000 (2015: HK$60,714,000). The
carrying amount of the printing machine under the sales and

leaseback agreement was disclosed in Note 15.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME

Retirement benefit costs

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident
Fund retirement benefits scheme in Hong Kong (the “MPF
Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance, for those employees who are eligible to participate in
the MPF Scheme. Contributions are made based on a percentage
of the employees’ basic salaries and are charged to profit or loss
as they become payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF
Scheme. The Group's employer contributions vest fully with the

employees when contributed into the MPF Scheme.

Pursuant to the relevant PRC regulations, the PRC subsidiaries
are required to make contributions to defined contribution
retirement schemes organised by the relevant Social Security
Bureau in respect of the retirement benefits for the PRC

subsidiaries” employees in the PRC.

37.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 BEZZ—RFE+_A=+—HILFE

38.

39.

176

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Financial guarantees issued

As at 31 December 2016 and 2015, certain subsidiaries of
the Group have issued corporate guarantees in respect of
the finance lease obligation under a sales and leaseback
arrangement granted to a subsidiary of the Group which will
expire when the lease is terminated (Note 36).

As at 31 December 2016, one of the subsidiaries of the Group
has issued a corporate guarantee to a bank for the bank loans
granted to a subsidiary of the Group (2015: HK$Nil) (Note 34).

The Group has not recognised any deferred income and the
related expenses in respect of such guarantees, as in the opinion
of the Directors, their fair value cannot be reliably measured
using observable market data and their transaction price was nil.

As at 31 December 2016 and 2015, the Directors do not
consider it probable that a claim will be made against these
subsidiaries under any of the guarantees.

DIRECTORS’ MATERIAL INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,

ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

1. Undertakings and shareholder loans
Kingly (being a holder of CB2019), is a company
indirectly wholly-owned by Mr. Chan, who is a Director
and a substantial shareholder of the Company, has
provided several undertakings to the Company (“the
Undertaking(s)”) and shareholder loans, among other
things,

) For the year ended 2016:

A.  Shareholder loan

During the year, Kingly provided an
unsecured, interest-free and repayment on
demand shareholder’'s loan in the amount
of approximately HK$280,000,000 for the

Company’s general working capital;

REXLot Holdings Limited fJZe-R #1ZR B R AR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HEZZ—RF+_A=+—RHILFE

39. DIRECTORS’ MATERIAL INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS (continued)
1. Undertakings and shareholder loans (continued)

D)

For the year ended 2016: (continued)

B.

Undertaking provided on 3 May 2016:

a. to provide a valid block voting instruction
in favour of the extraordinary resolution
which was duly passed on 3 June 2016;

b.  to provide, subject to certain conditions,
an unsecured and interest-free
shareholder’s loan in the amount of
approximately HK$1,425,000, with a one-
year term, for the Company's general
working capital;

c.  to provide, subject to certain conditions,
an unsecured shareholder’s loan in
amount of approximately HK$19,353,000,
with a one-year term, with an interest rate
equal to the coupon rate of the CB2019
for the Company’s general working
capital,

d. not to exercise the put option in relation
to a “Relevant Event” as stated in the
announcement dated 3 May 2016 in
respect of the CB2019 it holds.

The shareholder loans amounting to approximately
HK$1,425,000 and HK$19,353,000 were fully
repaid before the end of the reporting period.

39. EERRG RHAEGN2ERERE ()

1. EERARBRRER (&)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

REMBHRRME (F)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 BEZZ—RF+_A=+—HIFE

39. DIRECTORS’ MATERIAL INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS, 30. EERRS RFAGHNZERER (B)
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS (continued)
1. Undertakings and shareholder loans (continued) 1. BRHERRBRRER(E)
I)  For the year ended 2016: (continued) N BEZZT-ARFIEFE: (&)
C.  Undertaking provided on 2 August 2016: C. RZE—XR"FNAZHR#HZE
B
a. to provide a valid block voting instruction a. BHABRERZET &
in favour of the extraordinary resolution EERR_ZT—X 1A
which was duly passed on 9 September NBIERBBZ DR
2016; E

b.  to provide, subject to certain conditions,
an unsecured and interest-free
shareholder’s loan in the amount of
approximately HK$1,992,000, with a one-
year term, for the Company's general
working capital;

c.  to provide, subject to certain conditions,
an unsecured shareholder’s loan in
amount of approximately HK$45,000,000,
with a one-year term, with an interest rate
equal to the coupon rate of the CB2019
for the Company’s general working
capital,

d. not to exercise the put option in relation
to a “Relevant Event” as stated in the
announcement dated 2 August 2016 in
respect of the CB2019 it holds.

The shareholder loans amounting to approximately

XBRETHEE RBELY
1,992,000,%712—%%@?%
ERLEEREE R K
HARAFRE—REER

P
o

ERNETIRME RELD
45,000,000/ 7T 2 — F HA
ERARIRE R - HFIXAR
g)‘%:?*hi—ﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁ
HZBENE - AMEAR
RE—meEBEES:

THEMFEF_Z-NFA
BMREHFTEEBBESRA
ZE-RNFENAZRHZA
mprE [HEEEM] 204
R

,992,000 #E Tk

HK$1,992,000 and HK$45,000,000 were fully 45,000,000 T 2 R EFHE
repaid before the end of the reporting period. RBERRABHREE -
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REUHBBERME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HEZZ—RF+_A=+—RHItFE

39. DIRECTORS’ MATERIAL INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS (continued)

1.

Undertakings and shareholder loans (continued)

1)

For the year ended 2015:

Undertaking provided on 7 October 2015:

to provide a valid block voting instruction in
favour of the extraordinary resolution which was
duly passed on 29 October 2015;

to provide, subject to certain conditions, an
unsecured and interest-free shareholder’s
loan in the amount of approximately
HK$100,000,000, with a one-year term, for the
Company's partial redemption obligations;

to provide, subject to certain conditions, an
unsecured and interest-free shareholder’s loan
in amount of approximately HK$3,000,000,
with a one-year term, for the Company's
general working capital,

to provide, subject to certain conditions, an
unsecured shareholder’s loan in amount of
approximately HK$15,000,000, with a one-year
term, with an interest rate equal to the coupon
rate of the CB2019 for the Company’s general
working capital;

to, from time to time, if it shall receive any Early
Redemption (as defined in the announcements)
payment (in respect of the CB2019 it holds)
from the Company, provide a further unsecured
shareholder’s loan to the Company in the
amount equal to such Early Redemption
principal payment so received by it; and

not to exercise the put option in relation
to a “Relevant Event” as stated in the
announcement dated 22 September 2015 in
respect of the CB2019 it holds.

During the year ended 2015, shareholder’s loan in the
aggregate amount of approximately HK$118,000,000
had been advanced to the Company pursuant to the
above undertaking. This was fully repaid before the
end of the reporting period.

39. EERRG RHIEGN2ERESE (B)

1.

AHERARRRER (&)
) BE-_Z-—HFILFE:

RZFT-—AF+ALBERHEZ AR
K|
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

REMBHRRME (F)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 BEZZ—RFE+_A=+—HILFE

39. DIRECTORS’ MATERIAL INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS (continued)

2.

Mega Market Assets Limited, wholly-owned by Mr. Chan
has provided an unsecured, interest-free loan and due
for repayment on the completion date of the Disposal in
the amount of approximately HK$357,867,000, for the
Company’s partial redemption obligations of convertible
bonds and repaid the shareholder loan provided by Kingly.

During the year, Mr. Chan has provided unsecured
and interest-free shareholder loans in the amount of
approximately HK$87,140,000 (2015: HK$Nil) to the
Company. This was fully repaid before the end of the
reporting period.

Save as disclosed above, no other significant transactions,

arrangements and contracts in which the Company was a party

and in which a director of the Company has a material interest,

whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or

at any time during the year.

40.

180

COMMITMENTS

(a)

Capital commitments outstanding at 31 December 2016
not provided for in the consolidated financial statements
are as follows:

39. EERRG RHAEGN2ERERE ()

40.

Mega Market Assets Limited ( PR %4
2EWAE)IREH357,867,0008 T2 EiK
A LERREESETKBAIBRES
ZHREREF UEERARABITHBS TR
EHEEETREEBKNglyIRHZRER
B

FRREARANAFREETRERBMR
B E 487,140,000 L (=T — R F:
TET) ZERENHREHAKRATBEHE

o

Rilg

B EXFEEIN ARBNFREIFRNEM
R EETHALERNARREFNEFE
KRR EARGZHMEERS RHR
B8

A
(@) RZZE—AR"E+ZA=-+—BUERELHE

MR BH RN EARAENT

2016 2015
—E-XKE —E—RF
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FET
Contracted for REES)
- purchase of property, plant and —BEME BEREH

equipment - 383

— increase in registered capital of —— B ARz M &G
a subsidiary 84,000 84,000
84,000 84,383

REXLot Holdings Limited fJZe-R #1ZR B R AR




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

eV HBBERRME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HEZZ—RF+_A=+—RHILFE

40. COMMITMENTS (continued) 40. #&¥E (&)
(b) At 31 December 2016, the Group's future aggregate by RZE—RFE+ZA=+—R80 FTEER
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating BRI CEHERN 2 RRKEELD
leases are payable as follows: EET

As at 31 December 2016
R-EB-XRE+=ZA=+—H

Land and Factory
buildings equipment Total
T REF WERE X1l
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$000
FET FET FET
Within one year —F A 10,879 8,378 19,257
In the second to fifth year FEEERF
inclusive (REEEMEF) 1,723 33,405 35,128
More than five years AFEMUE - 41,319 41,319
12,602 83,102 95,704
As at 31 December 2015
R-ZE-—HF+-_R=+—H
Land and Factory
buildings equipment Total
T g F B E =B &5k
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET
Within one year —F R 17,105 8,960 26,065
In the second to fifth year F_EFRF
inclusive (BREEMF) 6,160 35,730 41,890
More than five years AFLE - 53,199 53,199
23,265 97,889 121,154
The Group leases various office and factory premises, office AEBMBRECEHEEAZENAE KK
equipment and warehouses under operating leases. The EWME BAEREBERAE - ZSHEVS
leases run for an initial period of 1 to 10 years (2015: 1 to ABH-—ZEZ+F(ZT—RF:—2+—F)
11 years). The leases do not include any contingent rentals. TE WA BEERMSIAES -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
meMBEBRKRMKME (F)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 BEZZ—RF+_A=+—HIFE

41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORIES
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial

instruments at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

41. BERNE22E¢@MIA
RMEPRR ST ABRZERENT

Financial assets SRMEE
2016 2015
ZE-NE “E-1f
Financial Financial
assets at asset at
fair value fair value
through through
profit Available- profit Available-
or loss for-sale or loss for-sale
held for ~ Loansand financial held for  Loans and financial
trading  receivables assets Total trading  receivables asset Total
BARE BARE
TEZER HEZER . ‘
EE- EXR EH_?%EE BE- Bk W{ﬁ% ‘
BEFEE EURE SREE @i BEEEE  RUHE  SREE &
Notes  HK$'000 HK$ 000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS$ 000 HK$ 000
Wit TEx TEx FEx TRz FET TET FET TET
Available-for-sale financial assets HLESREE 20 - - 288806 288,806 - - 307810 307810
Trade receivables EUESER 23 - 490,836 - 490,836 - 760,152 - 760,152
Utlity and other deposits RAFERAMES 24 - 1,533,259 - 1533259 - 1,600,474 - 1,600,474
Other receivables HfRssE 25 - 1,837,693 - 1,837,693 - 1,791,021 - 1,791,221
Financial assets at fair value through ~ BBEREAAEHEL
profit or loss SHEE 26 132 - - 132 63,935 - - 63,935
Cash and bank balances ReRATEH 2 - 2,136,962 - 2,136,962 - 1,008,073 - 1,098,073
132 5,998,750 288,806 6,287,688 63,935 5,249,920 307,810 5,621,665
Financial liabilities cReRs
Financial liabilities at amortised cost REBEREIEzZcMEE
2016 2015
—E-XE —E—RF
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
H e FET T
Trade payables FERE Z BN 32 1,801 2,728
Other payables and accruals L JE < RRIE K FE ET IR 33 77,271 64,311
Bank borrowings RITIEE 34 4,901 -
Convertible bonds amRkES 35 1,632,780 2,075,402
Obligations under finance leases RERERS 36 8,268 25,905
Amounts due to related parties JE 1<) B B T N 44 1,259,967 118,000
Amount due to a joint venture B —HE B ERE 19 46,195 46,195
3,031,183 2,332,541
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

REUHBBERME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HEZZ—RF+_A=+—RHItFE

42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUE OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(a)

Financial risk factors

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial

risks: market risk (including foreign exchange risk, fair

value interest rate risk, cash flow interest rate risk and

price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk arising from the

normal course of its business and financial instruments.

The Group's overall risk management programme focuses

on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to

minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s financial

performance as follows:

(i)  Market risk

(1)

Foreign exchange risk

Foreign exchange risk is the risk of loss due to
adverse movements in foreign exchange rate
relating to foreign currency deposits with banks.
The Group did not have significant exposure to
foreign exchange risk arising from the trade and
other receivables in the current and prior years.

In addition, foreign exchange risk arises from
future commercial transactions, recognised
assets and liabilities and net investments
in foreign operation. The Group's lottery
business operates in the PRC with most of the
transactions settled in RMB. The conversion of
RMB into foreign currencies is subject to the
rules and regulations of the foreign exchange
control promulgated by the PRC government.

At 31 2016, if HK$ had
strengthened/weakened by 5% against the

December

RMB, with all other variables held constant,
loss for the year would have been higher/lower
by approximately HK$7,105,000 (2015: profit
for the year lower/higher by approximately
HK$92,983,000) and equity would have
been approximately HK$57,148,000 (2015:
HK$54,517,000) lower/higher due to foreign
exchange realignment arising from translating
investments in foreign operations into HKS$.

42 MERREEREMIAZAAE

(a)

MEREEE
REBEBT—RESKBEPRASHT
EmpkZEVERAK: mi5RERER (2F
SMNERE  AAEFRER  BERE R
R REERR) FERBREAEE SR
o AEE s BRERKREEEEING A
MHEZAABABR UEFEHAREE
MBERBERN 2 EETFEERERE
FEEMT

(i) TEmEE
(1) SMEmE
S [ B A3 B B2 AF PR SR 1T 2 Hb
KEREHZERTNEBME
EZEERAR - REERKNFEE
MBEFEYEAZFNERE S
R EMEYREMEEZE

RS [ 2
N REABEER S CHERBE

ERBENRERINEHREFE
BEELINERR NEBZF
EXBETRBRALE KA
RHNANREEE - BARE
R RINERZ T EBF MBS
ZHMNEE BIRBI KR PIEEE

R-ZZE—AR"EF+=-—A=+—8"
WETHARKERAE TE
5% MATA B s8pEFTE -
HREBEINEH 2 RERER
BILEAER AR FEEBESG
@, % A #97,105,00078 7T
(ZE—HF - FEBEFRL
# Hn4792,983,0005% 7T ) -+ M #E
= BIEL 38 N #957,148,000
B (ZF—H4F 154,517,000
HIT) o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

REMBHRRME (F)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 BEZZ—RFE+_A=+—HILFE

42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUE OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

184

(a)

Financial risk factors (continued)
Market risk (continued)

(i)

(1)

(2)

3)

Foreign exchange risk (continued)

The above sensitivity analysis has been
determined assuming that a change in foreign
exchange rate had occurred at the end of the
reporting period and had been applied to the
exposure to foreign exchange risk for financial
instruments in existence at that date. The 5%
increase or decrease represents management's
assessment of a reasonably possible change in
exchange rate over the period until the next
reporting date. The analysis was performed on
the same basis for 2015.

Cash flow and fair value interest rate risks

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate
risk in relation to cash at banks on a floating
rate basis. Management does not anticipate
significant impact on interest-bearing assets
resulted from changes in interest rates because
the interest rates of bank deposits are not
expected to change significantly. Therefore, the
Directors of the Company consider the Group’s
exposure to interest rate risk is not significant
and therefore no sensitivity analysis has been
prepared.

Price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk arising
from investments in equity securities classified
as financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss. The Group is not exposed to commodity
price risk. To manage its price risk arising from
financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss, the Group diversifies its portfolio. The
sensitivity analyses below have been determined
based on the exposure to price risk at the end
of the reporting period.

REXLot Holdings Limited fJZe-R #1ZR B R AR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

eV HBBERRME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HEZZ—RF+_A=+—RHILFE

42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUE OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
(a) Financial risk factors (continued)

(i)

(i1)

Market risk (continued)

(3)  Price risk (continued)
At 31 December 2016, it is estimated that
an increase/a decrease of 10% in the market
value of the Group’s financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss, with all other
variables held constant, loss for the year would
decrease/increase by approximately HK$13,000
(2015: increased/decreased profit for the year
by approximately HK$6,394,000). The stated
changes represent management’s assessment of
reasonably possible changes in the market value
of the Group’s investment portfolio over the
period until the next annual reporting date. The
analysis is prepared on the same basis for 2015.

Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to
trade and other receivables, listed investments and
other financial instruments. Management has a
credit policy in place and the exposures to these
credit risks are monitored on an ongoing basis. In
order to minimise the credit risk, the management
of the Group has delegated a team responsible to
compile the credit and risk management policies, to
approve credit limits and determine any debt recovery
action on those delinquent receivables. In addition,
the Group reviews the recoverable amount for each
individual account receivable at the end of each
reporting period to ensure that adequate allowances

for impairment are made for irrecoverable amounts.

The credit risk on liquid funds is also limited because
the counterparties are banks with high credit-ratings
assigned by international credit-rating agencies. In
this regard, the Directors of the Group consider that
the Group's credit risk is effectively controlled and
significantly reduced.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has a
certain concentration of credit risk as approximately
8% (2015: 8%) of the total trade and other
receivables were due from the five largest customers.

42. BHEBREEREMIAZAAE(BE)

(a) MBEBEZE(E)

(i)

(ii)

TEmE ()
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REMBHRRME (F)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 BEZZ—RF+_A=+—HIFE

42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUE OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

186

(a)

Financial risk factors (continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Credit risk (continued)

Further quantitative disclosure in respect of the
Group's exposures to credit risk arising from
trade receivables, utility and other deposits, and
prepayments and other receivables are set out in
Notes 23, 24 and 25 respectively.

Liquidity risk

The Group is exposed to liquidity risk on financial
liabilities. To address the risk, management is
responsible for its own cash management, including
the short term investment of cash surpluses and the
raising of loans to cover expected cash demands,
subject to approval by the management when the
borrowings exceed certain predetermined levels of
authority. The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor
its liquidity requirements and its compliance with
lending covenants, to ensure that it maintains
sufficient reserves of cash and readily realisable
marketable securities and adequate committed lines
of funding from major financial institutions to meet
its liquidity requirements in the short and longer

term.

REXLot Holdings Limited fJZe-R #1ZR B R AR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

REUHBBERME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HEZZ—RF+_A=+—RHItFE

42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUE OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

42. BHEBREEREMIAZAARE(BE)

(a) Financial risk factors (continued) (a) HMBERAKBEZ(E)
(iii) Liquidity risk (continued) (iii) FEBEZEE (F)

TRARAEESBABRBEHR
ZBTAKNBNEBER  THAAKHRE
BRERE (BRREQOF T (10
BERIREBEREMREAMMNEGTE
ZHMBNFOURAEE A KERME

The following tables detail the remaining contractual
maturities at the end of the reporting period of
the Group’s financial liabilities, which are based
on contractual undiscounted cash flows (including
interest payments computed using contractual rates

or, if floating, based on rates current at the end of

the reporting period) and the earliest date the Group

can be required to pay:

EEHFBEZZFEHAKE:

Total Within More than
contractual 1 year 1 year but
Carrying undiscounted or on less than
amount cash flows demand 5 years
BRRER —FRm BB—F
REE ReRELE RER BREREF
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FIETT TET FET FET

2016 —E-REF
Trade payables B8 SRR 1,801 1,801 1,801 -
Other payables and accruals H fth A FRIE X FE AT AIA 77,271 77,271 77,271 -
Bank borrowings RITEE 4,901 5,047 5,047 -
Convertible bonds AR ES 1,632,780 1,692,631 1,457,862 234,769
Obligations under finance leases MEREES 8,268 8,367 8,367 -
Amounts due to related parties &1 BB 5 3R08 1,259,967 1,259,967 1,259,967 -
Amount due to a joint venture BN —HaEtERE 46,195 46,195 46,195 -
3,031,183 3,091,279 2,856,510 234,769

2015 —E-RF
Trade payables ERTE SRR 2,728 2,728 2,728 -
Other payables and accruals H fth FE A FRIE & FEET IR 64,311 64,311 64,311 -
Convertible bonds MR ES 2,075,402 2,199,963 1,883,333 316,630
Obligations under finance leases AMEREER 25,905 27,009 18,032 8,977
Amounts due to related parties B BB 5 3R0E 118,000 118,675 118,675 -
Amount due to a joint venture R —HaEhERE 46,195 46,195 46,195 -

2,332,541

2,458,881
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

REMBHRRME (F)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 BEZZ—RFE+_A=+—HILFE

42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUE OF HEEREERESHIEZ2AAE (B)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
(b) Fair value measurement (b)
(i)  Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair

value
Fair value hierarchy
The following tables present the fair value of the
Group's financial instruments measured at the end of
the reporting period on a recurring basis, categorised
into the three-level fair value hierarchy as defined
in HKFRS 13, Fair value measurement. The level
into which a fair value measurement is classified
is determined with reference to the observability
and significance of the inputs used in the valuation
technique as follows:

o Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using
only Level 1 inputs i.e. unadjusted quoted prices
in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
at the measurement date

J Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using
Level 2 inputs i.e. observable inputs which
fail to meet Level 1, and not using significant
unobservable inputs. Unobservable inputs are
inputs for which market data are not available

o Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using
significant unobservable inputs
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

eV HBBERRME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HEZZ—RF+_A=+—RHILFE

42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUE OF 42. BBEBREEREMIAZAAE(E)
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
(b) Fair value measurement (continued) (b) DARMEFE(E)
(i)  Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair (i) BAAEFNEBZLHEEREE
value (continued) (%)

Fair value measurements
categorised into

ARBEHEZAE
Fair value at
31 December Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
R+=A
=t-B2
MAE £-8 et ] =R
HK'000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$000
FET FHET FET FHET
2016 —E-REF
Recurring fair value measurements: KEERAERE:
Financial assets at fair value through BREBREAAENEZ
profit or loss: TREE:
- Listed equity investment — ETRAKRE 132 132 - -
2015 —E—hF
Recurring fair value measurements: KEERAAERFE
Financial assets at fair value through BRBREAAENEZ
profit or loss: TREE
- Listed equity investment — FTRAKRE 63,935 63,935 - -
During the years ended 31 December 2015 and HE_Z-—HFR-_ZT—RF+ZA
2016, there was no significant transfer between =+ —HIEFE F-REE_RH
investments in Level 1 and Level 2, or transfer into or ZIREWBMERER TEEAL=
out of Level 3. FHRE=HEL -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

REMBHRRME (F)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 BEZZ—RF+_A=+—HIFE

42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUE OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

190

(b)

Fair value measurement (continued)

42. BHEBREEREMIAZAARE(BE)

(b) AREFEE)

Valuation techniques and inputs used in Level 3 fair
value measurements

The fair value of the convertible bonds is estimated
as being the present values of future cash flows,
discounted at interest rates based on the government
yield curve as at 31 December 2016 and 2015 plus
an adequate constant credit spread, adjusted for the
Group's own credit risk.

REXLot Holdings Limited fJZe-R #1ZR B R AR

(i)  Fair value of financial assets and liabilities carried (i) BAARBEUSEIRZ ZHBEERE
at other than fair value EZRAE
The carrying amounts of the Group's and the N5 B R AN RHR B AR S SH K AR B
Company’s financial instruments, including the EremITA(BEAHEESRE
available-for-sale financial assets (Note 20), carried E (M5520) ) Z2BRAEER T —X
at cost or amortised cost are not materially different FRZZF-RAFFTZA=+—RHZA
from their fair values as at 31 December 2016 and RETEREAEZRE ETIHeMIA
2015 except for the following financial instruments, Boh-BRINERMITAZEREELAAR
for which their carrying amount and fair value and BEAERARBEERABEEOT
the level of fair value hierarchy are disclosed below:
Fair value measurements
as at 31.12.2016 categorised into
RIB-AE+ZA=+-HZ
AREHEDE
Carrying Fair
amount at value at
31.12.2016 31.12.2016 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
RIB-—RE RZIB-XREF
+=A +=A
=+-8  =1-8
ZERHE ZARE £-8 E-R E=R
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET
Convertible bonds AR E S 1,632,780 1,595,413 - - 1,595,413
Fair value measurements
as at 31.12.2015 categorised into
R-F-HE+-A=+-A2
AREFHENE
Carrying Fair
amount at value at
31.12.2015 31.12.2015 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
R-Z-h% R-ET-0%F
+=A T=A
=f—4 =t—H
ZIREE ZARE £-4 E-H £=4
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET
Convertible bonds AT R (& 5 2,075,402 1,564,812 - - 1,564,812

FEZRARE BB NG ERMNE
BAE

MEEFZ ARERAR/RRRS
MEZBRE DERNR-_F-RFR=
Z-AF+ A=+ - BURBNRE
TR EZMEYR ZNTEZ
BEFEEZE UYRAEEAT ZE
EREBELFE-



43.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

oy

MBEHERRKEE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HEZZ—RF+_A=+—RHItFE

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going concern,
so that it can continue to provide returns for shareholders and
benefits for other stakeholders, by pricing products and services
commensurately with the level of risk and by securing access to
finance at a reasonable cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its capital
structure to maintain a balance between the higher shareholder
returns that might be possible with higher levels of borrowings
and the advantages and security afforded by a sound capital
position, and makes adjustments to the capital structure in light

of changes in economic conditions.

Consistent with industry practice, the Group monitors its capital
structure on the basis of a debt-to-adjusted capital ratio. For this
purpose the Group defines debts as total debts (which includes
bank borrowings, obligations under finance leases, trade and
other payables, amount due to a joint venture and liability
component of convertible bonds plus unaccrued proposed
dividends). Adjusted capital comprises all components of equity,
other than amounts recognised in equity relating to cash flow
hedges, less unaccrued proposed dividends.

During the year, the Group's strategy, which was unchanged
from 2015, was to maintain the debt-to-adjusted capital ratio at
a reasonable level. In order to maintain or adjust the ratio, the
Group may adjust the amount of dividend paid to shareholders,
issue new shares, return capital to shareholders, raise new debt
financing or sell assets to reduce debt.

43.

EXRERERE
AEHEREAEEREBEDREASEER
HERBSBELEAELE KMEBERRK
FHHEZERRRBEBARNEGERALE
GTRE EEARFRERRE REMERRES
EE R -

AEBEET HRH REREARE  URER
BB SRR T G AR S Bk T
B A AR 5 2 47 T ARRE 2 RS T
A PR A RO A AR M I R

BITEEN B NREBEUNEBHEHREARL
REREBREARBZELE -BUTE £AEH
REBEBREBAR (BRERTER BEEE
B ENEZRRAREMENRE BN —H
BEMEFRANRAIMBES 2B G NIk
RFAEEBRR) RARELABEEE ZAE B
DFRBREREHHIT R EAER 2SR
SN) R IE REHE AR S o

FRAKEEREA_ZT-AFZRE SEHY
RABREALEREFRAEKT - BRITHFR
ZLLE AEEAREHABERNTRRZES
BOBTHRG REBEATRE FIEELH
AR EEERE-
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

REMBHRRME (F)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 BEZZ—RF+_A=+—HIFE

43. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 43. EXEBEE (&)
The debt-to-adjusted capital ratios at 31 December 2016 and RZE-—REERZTE—HAF+ZRA=+—HZ
2015 were as follows: ERHEHAEERLENT
2016 2015
—E-XRE —E—ARF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Current liabilities: BB E -
Trade payables FETE 5 IR 1,801 2,728
Other payables and accruals 5T RRIE R FEETRIE 77,271 64,311
Bank borrowings IRITIEE 4,901 -
Current portion of convertible bonds AMRES 2 REHBH 1,431,040 1,824,629
Obligations under finance leases MEREER 8,268 17,038
Amounts due to related parties JE < A Bt 75 3k I8 1,259,967 118,000
2,783,248 2,026,706
Non-current liabilities: Ei /Y-
Amount due to a joint venture BN —EeEEENRE 46,195 46,195
Convertible bonds, the liability component AgmRES—BENS 201,740 250,773
Obligations under finance leases MEHERR - 8,867
Total debts BEI5AE 3,031,183 2,332,541
Adjusted capital KRABRER 5,511,177 6,085,403
Net debt-to-adjusted capital ratio B FRAEHEAR L % 55% 38%
The Group is not subject to either internally or externally AEBHAXHIINIBEETFERMERE K

imposed capital requirements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

REUHBBERME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HEZZ—RF+_A=+—RHItFE

44. TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES WITH RELATED
PARTIES

(a)

44. BBBAER B RER

Details of the Group's significant transactions and balances (@) ANEBRERNGELTEEFETERAR
with the following related parties during the year are as S REH FEOT:
follows:
2016 2015
—E-AF —ZT—AhF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Shareholder: AR
Balance due from the Group JE s 7N &2 [ 45 R 280,000 118,000
Interest on a shareholder loan REERZFE 1,020 -
Redemption of convertible bonds fE Bl ARk E 5 64,353 15,000
Convertible bonds interest paid ERABmRESFE 11,864 13,443
Consent fee paid for delaying BIEEBE A RBRES D2
redemption of convertible bonds Eh=%- 4,359 3,000
Companies connected with a director: HMEZEFHEB AR
Balance due from the Group AR & B 4 A 357,867 -
Deposits received on sales of HELESE 2D WiZE
Disposal Group 622,100 -

In the opinion of the Directors, including the Independent
Non-executive Directors, the above transactions were
entered into in the Group's ordinary course of business or
at terms agreed by both parties. During the year ended
31 December 2016, the balances are unsecured, interest
free and repayable within one year. For the year ended 31
December 2015, except for the balance of HK$15,000,000
due to a shareholder bearing interest at 4.5% per annum,
the remaining balance of HK$103,000,000 is interest free.

As at 31 December 2016, Mr. Chan has given personal
guarantee in respect of bank borrowings of the Disposal
Group of approximately HK$81,900,000 (2015: HK$Nil)
(Note 14).

During both years, compensation of key management
personnel represents Directors’ emoluments and those of
senior staff as stated in Notes 10 and 11. The Directors’
emoluments are determined by the remuneration
committee having regard to the performance,
responsibilities and experience of individuals and market
trends.

EFE(RREBYFATEET)RA Ll
RGN AEERAFEBBRPRIRES
MEZERET - BE=SE—X~"F+=A
St+-BLEFE GHAEEN RERK
BR—FREBE-BE-_Z—HE+=A
=+ —HILFE 15,000,000/ 7T 2 fE
N—2BREERIZFFNRISERT BN
103,000,000 T2 2 T&EH#R AL E -

by M-ZT—RE+-_A=+—08 BELHE
EEE 481,900,000 L (ZE—RHF: T
BT ) ZIRITIEEREEAER (KE14) ©

() PAMEFTERN TZEEASFHHMEWT
TIORMAAZEERSRET 2 &
EHWETHNEZESL2RBRBEARE BE
REBIARTIZEEAET -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

REMBHRRME (F)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 BEZZ—RF+_A=+—HIFE

45. POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW 45. ERAEHRERZIERT HEHR2ER
STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT BEEZE
YET EFFECTIVE
Up to the date of issue of these consolidated financial HEAGEAVBHRERTNZEAH AEgHAS
statements, the HKICPA has issued the following amendments, EEAUTREZ_Z—<"F+-A=+—H
new standards and interpretations which are not yet effective IEFEBREMELREALGZE B REAK
for the year ended 31 December 2016 and which have not been Mz EET FERIRRRE:

adopted in these consolidated financial statements:

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after

RTI B 2ERBEZ
ST HBEXR
Amendments to HKFRSs Annual improvements to HKFRSs 2014-2016 1 January 2017 and
BBV BREER Z(EF] BBV BREER 2 FERE 1 January 2018
(ZZE—NFE=T— R FHEH) —T—tF-A-HK
—E-NF—-A—H
Amendments to HKFRS 2 Classification and measurement of share-based 1 January 2018
BB REERE2R ZEF] payment transactions - \F—H—H
RO ZNRIER G 2R E
Amendments to HKFRS 4 Applying HKFRS 9 Financial instruments with 1 January 2018
BBV B RS ERIFEARE 2 B85 HKFRS 4 insurance contracts —ZT-N\F—A—H
HEBVBRELEZARZ2RBEHER
ERMBHREENESF eI A
Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 Sales or contribution of assets between an investor To be determined
BB REERFE105% R EBGEER and its associate or joint venture HE
285 ZEE] KREERABERNANEEREBEEHSEK
A
Amendments to HKAS 7 Statement of cash flows: Disclosure initiative 1 January 2017
BB G EANETR BT BeRER: HEAE —ZE—+F¥—-A—H
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

REUHBBERME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HEZZ—RF+_A=+—RHItFE

45. POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW 45. BEEMEERERZET FEARZRET

STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT

YET EFFECTIVE (continued)

REEZEE (E)

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after
RTIBHR2EBEZ
S HABEN

Amendments to HKAS 12
BREGETERE 129 25T

Amendments to HKFRS 10,
HKFRS 12 and HKAS 28

BEMBRELRE 109
BEMBREERE125 R
BEGETERE285 2 BT

Amendments to HKFRS 15
BRI B WREERE 155 2 185]

HKFRS 9
B S AR E IR

HKFRS 15
BB E ERIE 155

HKFRS 16
BEMGRE LN 165

The Group is yet to assess the full impact of these amendments
and new standards on its consolidated financial statements. In ReMBHREz2E
the opinion of Directors, all of the new developments are not

Recognition of deferred tax assets for unrealised
losses
MAZREEERELHIEEE

Investment entities: Applying the consolidation
exception
REER BREEARZOIMER

Clarification to HKFRS 15
EEERBMBMEEAE155%

Financial instruments
SRT A

Revenue from contracts with customers
BEPEHBA

Leases
HE

expected to have a material impact on the consolidated financial

statements.

1 January 2017
—ZE—+F—-H—H

1 January 2017
—ET—+tF—-A—H

1 January 2018
AN &

1 January 2018
—ZE-N\E—HA—H

1 January 2018
—E-NF—-A—H

1 January 2019
—ZT-hFE—-—HA—H

REBRBFDAREFEZFET L EREE
TR -BEERR BHME
MBERITGHEAMBRRBREATZE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

REMBHRRME (F)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 BEZZ—RF+_A=+—HIFE

46.

196

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

The following list contains only the particulars of subsidiaries
which principally affected the results, assets or liabilities of the

46. RMBRARAZRE

TREJNEHAKE RS BEXRBEREXN
FEZHMBARFE-

Group.
Place of Principal Particulars of issued/ Effective
incorporation/ activities and registered and interest
Name registration place of operation paid up capital held
BRI /HEMRK
=L SEMR RS R R i B TEEBREXBE BRERE EARFE s E R Es
REXCAPITAL Financial Group  British Virgin Islands Investment holding 197,400,856 ordinary shares 100%
Limited HNBRIHS in Hong Kong of HK$1 each
REBETREZR 197,400,856 & X E (B 18 7T
ZERmR
REXCAPITAL Financial British Virgin Islands Investment holding 1 ordinary share of US$1 each 100%
Management Limited RBRLES in Hong Kong IREBEIETZ L BR
REBETRERER
Genius Nation Limited British Virgin Islands Investment holding 1 ordinary share of US$1 each 100%
KBRELES in Hong Kong IREEIETZERBR
REBETREER
Huge Top Enterprises Inc. British Virgin Islands Investment holding 1 ordinary share of US$1 each 100%
KBRLES in Hong Kong IREEIETZERBR
REBETRERER
Wai Tian Limited British Virgin Islands Provision of system 1 ordinary share of US$1 each 100%
SNKRBER A KBETHE software in the PRC 1REEIET 2 EBR
R B R R e i
Oriental View Limited Hong Kong Investment holding Ordinary share of HK$1 100%
EBHRAA B in Hong Kong 12 LBk
REBETREER
REXCAPITAL Corporate Hong Kong Arrangement of Ordinary shares of HK$2 100%
Management Limited o administration services 27Tz LBk

WHECEERARRA

REXLot Holdings Limited fJZe-R #1ZR B R AR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

REUHBBERME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HEZZ—RF+_A=+—RHItFE

46. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 46. RBARZIRE (&)

Place of Principal Particulars of issued/ Effective
incorporation/ activities and registered and interest
Name registration place of operation paid up capital held
BRI /EMRK
=L SEM B R R i B TEEBREE LY BRAERE ERFE s ER gL
REXCAPITAL Finance Limited Hong Kong Money lending and Ordinary shares of 100%
BREEERAT B investment trading HK$2,000,000
in Hong Kong 2,000,000/ L2
REBETERK EBR
KREEE
FINFEEHRPRIRE PRC Investment holding HK$153,885,941 100%
BRAR H in the PRC 153,885,941/8 7T
(Shenzhen Qianhai RexLot RAPBETREER
Investment Co. Ltd.*)
RN B SR F Al PRC Provision of lottery RMB80,000,000 100%
BRADA i machines and software A K #%80,000,0007T
(Shenzhen Sinodata system in the PRC
Technology Co. Ltd.*) R BRI R
RYIT B BUR R 1 IR S PRC Provision of maintenance RMB2,000,000 100%
BRAA H service for lottery AR #2,000,0007T
(Shenzhen Sinodata machines in the PRC
Equipment Services Co. KA BRHEY RS
Ltd.*) MR
RYIT B LB AR Bl PRC Provision of paperless RMB30,000,000 100%
BEREERAF H systems and services A E#30,000,0007T
(Shenzhen Sinocyber to industrial specific
Technology Co. Ltd.*) channels
RiETEXRERME
ARG R IR
RN & NE PRC Production of lottery RMB55,000,000 100%
BRAA i machines in the PRC AR ¥55,000,0007C
(Shenzhen Kingsail Software R B EER E#
Tech Co. Ltd.*)
RINTHERFRERE PRC Investment holding RMB30,000,000 100%
ARRA i in the PRC A #30,000,0007T
(REXLot Investment RPBETRERER
(Shenzhen) Co. Ltd.*)
IRELXREREERAT  PRC Provision of lottery RMB44,000,000 100%
(Beijing Xinan Sino-lottery H printing service AR #44,000,0007T

Technology Co. Ltd.*)

in the PRC
FA R B 42 1 %2 32 BNl AR 75
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REMBHRRME (F)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 BEZZ—RF+_A=+—HIFE

46.

198

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

46. RMBLARZKRE (&)

Place of Principal Particulars of issued/ Effective
incorporation/ activities and registered and interest
Name registration place of operation paid up capital held
BRI /EMRK
=L SEM AR AL R i 2 TEEBREE LY BHERAE ERFE s ER gL
BEMTEEHERERAT  PRC Production of lottery RMB55,000,000 90%
(Guangzhou Latech H machines in the PRC A R#55,000,0007T
Technology Co. Ltd.*) RABEERRE
bR R R R PRC Lottery distribution and RMB1,280,000 60%
BRAT H marketing business AR1,280,00070
(Beijing Lohowin in the PRC
Marketing Co. Ltd.*) RERETYERKE
BEES
[ R 18R A4 {5 BRI PRC Provision of marketing RMB10,000,000 80%
BRAA H services for lottery AR #10,000,0007C
business in the PRC
RPBRRHEERERZ
35 R %
RIS R AR A A PRC Lottery distribution and RMB10,000,000 100%
H marketing business AR #10,000,0007T
in the PRC
R BHETTR REL KR
BEES
IEREEERRLERAE PRC Investment holding RMB 100,000 100%
H in the PRC AR #100,0007T
R BHETTIR & 2R
FBARK (dLR) B PRC Provision of mobile value-  RMB30,000,000 50%"
BRAR H added services for AR #30,000,0007T
(Elottery Vision (Beijing) lottery business in the
Technology Co. Ltd.*) PRC
RAPBEREEEBRE
FHIEERS
BEHEBYBREARAR  PRC Provision of mobile value- ~ RMB10,000,000 50%"
H added services for AR #10,000,0007C
lottery business in the
PRC
R BB R EBREM
FHRIZERS
BEREABERIEARAR  PRC Provision of mobile value- ~ RMB1,010,000 50%*
H added services for AR#1,010,00070

REXLot Holdings Limited fJZe-R #1ZR B R AR

lottery business in the
PRC
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REUHBBERME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HEZZ—RF+_A=+—RHItFE

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

46. RMBLARZKRE (&)

Place of Principal Particulars of issued/ Effective
incorporation/ activities and registered and interest
Name registration place of operation paid up capital held
BRI /EMRK
=L SEM B R R i B TEEBREE LY BRAERE ERFE s ER gL
BEZFK (JER) Bk A PRC Investment holding RMB50,000,000 66.6%
BRDA i REER AR #50,000,0007T
RINTREEHERRA PRC Investment holding RMB 100,000 100%
i REAER AR #100,0007T
YN BE = MR R PRC Provision of lottery system  RMB10,000,000 50%*

BRAR H support services
(Shenzhen Siyuan Zhuoyue REYERGIIERS
Technology Development
Co. Ltd.*)
# These investee companies are regarded as subsidiaries as the #

Group, although the Group has only 50% ownership in these
investee companies. The Directors concluded that the Group has a
sufficiently dominant voting interest to direct the relevant activities
of these investee companies as the Group holds more than half the
voting rights in these investees.

The Directors of the Company are of the opinion that the none
of the Group’s subsidiaries that has non-controlling interests
are material to the consolidated financial statements as a whole
and therefore, the financial information in respect of those
subsidiaries that have non-controlling interests are not presented
under HKFRS 12, Disclosure of interests in other entities.

AR %10,000,0007T

BEAKEERAZSERRERAZS0%EE
HEZERXREARAEARAEEZHE L
Fl-BEZERA ANAKERAERZFERKE
REBFEEEE WAEEEARATERR
ERETZEERRERRZEEED-

RRABEERR B FEBRE
RABGAVBRREBYTIEN Bt B/
BHEERERZMBRRZHBERLIER
BEEMBHMELENE 2R [RENELMER

Bl 275
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

REMBHRRME (F)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 BEZZ—RF+_A=+—HIFE

47. COMPANY-LEVEL STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL 47. AEIEEZHBRRE
POSITION
2016 2015
—B-REF —F-AF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
HaF FET FET
ASSETS EE
Non-current assets kRBEE
Interests in subsidiaries S NIENGIPA T 7,698,910 7,050,476
Current assets REEE
Amount due from a subsidiary FE Y — I B A B 5 E - 426,000
Prepayments TBHEIE 2,959 4
Cash and bank balances Be MRITLHER 1,075 2,404
Total current assets REBEEHE 4,034 428,408
Total assets EEHE 7,702,944 7,478,884
EQUITY B
Capital and reserves attributable EAREERREEERR
to equity shareholders of &
the Company
Share capital & 75 29 100,285 99,835
Reserves #% 47(a) 4,691,953 5,176,022
Total equity A 4,792,238 5,275,857
LIABILITIES =R
Non-current liabilities ERBEE
Convertible bonds AR E S 201,740 250,773
Current liabilities REAE
Other payables and accruals E b JE T FIR R E ST IR 17,959 9,625
Amounts due to related parties FE AT BAHS 75 kI8 1,259,967 118,000
Current portion of convertible bonds AR ES 2 RBE S 1,431,040 1,824,629
Total current liabilities REBEEEE 2,708,966 1,952,254
Total liabilities EEHAE 2,910,706 2,203,027
Total equity and liabilities ERRkEEREE 7,702,944 7,478,884
Net current liabilities REBEEFE (2,704,932) (1,523,846)
The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue HEHRERER _E—+F=A=+—HE=E=
by the Board on 31 March 2017 and are signed on behalf of the REREHETE TR TN ESeREEES:
Board by:
Chan How Chung, Victor Boo Chun Lon
PREHR I i B
Director Director
EE o
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REUHBBERME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HEZZ—RF+_A=+—RHItFE

47. COMPANY-LEVEL STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL 47. AEIBEZBMBMRR K (&)
POSITION (continued)
Note (a) Reserve movement of the Company Hiit@ AR R Z EEE
Capital Convertible Share-based Proposed
Share redemption bonds payment Contributed Retained final
Premium reserve reserve reserve surplus profits dividend Total
&% ARR  ARBXA B3
R4 BE REf#E BERE HEZRE BNBEH REEF AERE At
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET FET FET FET
At 1 January 2015 R-E-A1%—A—H 4,002,373 3,025 415,039 8,403 199,605 638,327 79,680 5,346,452
Loss for the year FEER - - - - - (86,816) - (86,816)
Lapse of share options AR BB R - - - (2,074) - 2,074 - -
Redemption of convertible bonds B Rk ES (H535)
(Note 35) - - (20,752) - - 6,261 - (14,491)
2014 proposed final dividend paid “I-mEDRNERRBRE 10,557 - - - - - (79,680) (69,123)
At 31 December 2015 and RZZ-RF+-A=+-BR
1 January 2016 —E-"E¥-A-H 4,012,930 3,025 394,287 6,329 199,605 559,846 - 5,176,022
Loss for the year FEER - - - - - (498,309) - (498,309)
Lapse of share options BB - - - (6,329) - 6,329 - -
Exercise of share option nEERE 5,733 - - (1,314) - - - 4,419
Share option granted BB E - - - 10,367 - - - 10,367
Redemption of convertible bonds B SRR ESH (H535)
(Note 35) - - (89,030) - - 88,484 - (546)
At 31 December 2016 RZE-RETZA=1—H 4,018,663 3,025 305,257 9,053 199,605 156,350 - 4,691,953

48. NON-ADJUSTING EVENTS AFTER THE END OF THE
REPORTING PERIOD

0)

As disclosed in Note 14, the Disposal was completed in
February 2017. Upon completion of the Disposal, the
Company ceased to hold any equity interest in the Disposal
Group and the results of the Disposal Group would no
longer be consolidated into the consolidated financial
statements of the Company. Further details were disclosed
in the announcement of the Company dated 14 February
2017.

48. MEMRRFHBER

()

BANPEE1APT IR R HEFER T —+
FoHAZER - RIEEFRTKR - ARFR
BRAHEREZEMRE MEEEE

ZEBEBIBEAREZ

e mRe

AAE - E—SHERAAAAHA-T

—tEF_ATHBZAMARKE-
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

REMBHRRME (F)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 BEZZ—RF+_A=+—HIFE

48. NON-ADJUSTING EVENTS AFTER THE END OF THE
REPORTING PERIOD (continued)

202

(if)

As disclosed in Note 35, the Company was required to
redeem the Bonds which was subject to redemption
notices and in the aggregate principal amount of
approximately HK$1,427,365,000 on 27 February
2017, CB2016 in the aggregate principal amount of
approximately HK$3,677,000 with the maturity date on 28
February 2017. The Company has not been able to fulfill
its redemption and payment obligations on the respective
due dates, which constituted an event of default of the
respective Bonds. The Company starting from 27 February
2017, has been in default under the Bonds. The trustee
or the Bondholders through the trustee may take legal
actions against the Company in respect of the Bonds. In
that case, the business of the Group and the interests
of the Company and the shareholders may be materially
and adversely affected. However, the Company expects
the possible courses of actions to be taken by the trustee
would not have substantial impact on the Company
provided that the redemption of the bonds takes place by
28 April 2017.

REXLot Holdings Limited fJZe-R #1ZR B R AR

48. MEMRRIFAESR (H)

(i)

WM 3SR ARRAR T —+
FZAZTLHERBAMS AR BELD
%1,427,365,0008 L2 ZEESH - A KRE]
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BITZEBEHF XA ARBBRITATS
ZEFFHBAUNERZEEFRIGYHAR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

REUHBBERME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HEZZ—RF+_A=+—RHItFE

48. NON-ADJUSTING EVENTS AFTER THE END OF THE
REPORTING PERIOD (continued)

*

(if)

(continued)

The Company had made a partial repayment on 29
March 2017 to satisfy part of the principal amount of
the outstanding Bonds and the accrued but unpaid
interest thereon. Following such partial repayment, the
aggregate principal amount of CB2016 of approximately
HK$100,907,000 remain outstanding and the aggregate
principal amount of CB2019 of approximately
HK$551,402,000 remain outstanding. The Company is
seeking the Bondholders’ consent to delay the redemption
date and maturity date from 27 February 2017 and 28
February 2017 respectively to 28 April 2017 and extend
the original 3rd anniversary put option redemption date
of the CB2019 to 31 May 2017 (the “Proposals”). The
Proposal for the extension will only take effect if the
conditions set out in the Company’s announcement dated
29 March 2017 are satisfied: (i) passing the extraordinary
resolution in the Bondholders’ meeting and (ii) obtaining
the approval required by Listing Rules. The quorum at
the Bondholders’ meeting for passing the extraordinary
resolution will be a single voter representing or holding
not less than 66 2/3% of the aggregate principal amount
of the outstanding Bonds and not less than 75% of votes
cast for the Proposals during the Bondholders’ Meeting.
The total maximum amount of consent fees up to
approximately HK$978,000 will be payable to the eligible
Bondholders who vote in favour of the extraordinary
resolution in the prescribed manner (subject to the
satisfaction of the relevant conditions). Further details are
disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 29
March 2017.

The English translation of Chinese names or words are for information

48. MEMRRIFAESR (H)

(i (&)
ARBERZZE—+tF=ZA=+hBESD
B WENZEEFERERZHD
ReBREEHRAFE -HIELHEHE
g —E-RFARRESFEAREER
£ 4%EH) /100,907,000  M—-E—Ah
FAIRREFZHAEERASBRBRANA
551,402,000 7T - AR BREFRKEFF
EARESEDNA R P _-_T—+F
ZAZttHERZE—EFZA=+N\H
DAEEE —T—tFMNA =+ /\B I
ZE-NFARERESZRE ZBEF RN
EERNATEEE T —+tFRA=1+—
B([EEREZ]) - TCEEZENARAR
MA_E—+F=A-_+tINBZAMMH
WHEN B : (VA ESFHEATERBRE
BIREE S R (DES _ETT 8 BB E 2 #tf
B HRER - REFFEASR BB
RERZETEABBAREIBET IR
ZEBEHFWMAREENCETEC6 2/3% 258
—BHBEAURTLPRIS%Z BHRESH
BEACE LR EENTCERZE B8
B4 5978,0008 L2 AEBFILE TS
ANEXNFREERFINAZRZEERE
HRBA (BHBEBRGEHERFITEER) -
HE—FSHBRARFAHPA-_T L=
AZ+NABZRAWANEE-

* PXEFRARZ KX PEERDL TEERZET

purpose only, and should not be regarded as the official English XEBRFARZIEEES

translation of such Chinese names or words
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Five Year Financial Summary

EIFUBRE

The following is a summary of the consolidated results, assets and UTEAREEHEZE—_T—"F+-_A=+—HILAAE
liabilities of the Group for the five years ended 31 December 2016, FEIREXE BERBERE HENERRBREAHY
BHRERMF2RIFAFZEERFR -

which have been prepared on the basis set out in Notes 2 and 3 to
the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS E45

For the year ended 31 December

BET-ASt-ALFE

2016 2015 2014 2013 2012

ZE-X"E ZT-HF ZT-WNF ZT—=Ff T—=F

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000

FET FET FET FET FET

(Restated)

(& 55)

Revenue WA 1,252,144 1,554,394 1,687,953 2,165,474 1,961,560

(Loss)/profit before taxation BEA (BE) /85 (416,091) 205,358 (141,541) 1,000,939 920,168

Taxation HiE (29,898) (41,124) (30,559) (74,489) (53,249)

(Loss)/profit for the year FE (BE) &7 (445,989) 164,234 (172,100) 926,450 866,919

Non-controlling interests FEIERR R 52,982 (13,355) 68,408 (57,468) (45,620)

Equity shareholders of the Company N2 &) i 3R (393,007) 150,879 (103,692) 868,982 821,299
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERERE

As at 31 December

R+=A=+-H

2016 2015 2014 2013 2012

—E-RxE ZZE-8f ZE—mE =—T—=-%F —T—=F

HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000

FET FEr FET FET FET

(Restated)

(&)

Total assets EEMGE 9,111,799 8,730,468 8,566,521 7,596,344 7,010,998

Total liabilities BEAE (3,600,622)  (2,645,065)  (2,426,415)  (1,373,672)  (1,212,562)
Total equity i

# 5,511,177 6,085,403 6,140,106 6,222,672 5,798,436

In order to comply with HKFRS 11, in 2013 the Group changed
its accounting policy with respect to joint ventures. This change
in accounting policy has been applied retrospectively. As a result,
turnover, profit before taxation and taxation for the year 2012 have
been restated. This change in accounting policy has no effect on
profit for the year, non-controlling interests and total equity for the
years 2012 of the Group.

204 REXLot Holdings Limited #1Z=h#AZE R AT

REEEBUBRELMNE R R-_E—=F K&
EENEARALLRZEMEER LB RERE
BEPEM AL —F - F 2 EXER  RHRAER
EHECRES - WA RREDHY T EANEE -
T-_E7FEEMN FERERMERER






	Cover
	Contents
	Corporate Information
	Directors’ Report
	Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management
	Management for Lottery Business
	Corporate Governance Report
	Environmental, Social and Governance Report
	Independent Auditor’s Report
	Consolidated Income Statement
	Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
	Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
	Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
	Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
	Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
	Five Year Financial Summary
	Back Cover

